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An investment in our securities involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all of the risks described below, together with the other information
contained in this report, including the financial statements, before making a decision to invest in our common stock. If any of the following events occur, our business,
financial condition and operating results may be materially and adversely affected. In that event, the trading price of our securities could decline, and you could lose all
or part of your investment. The risk factors described below are not necessarily exhaustive and you are encouraged to perform your own investigation with respect to us
and our business. Risks Relating to our Business Our revenue, earnings, margins and other operating results have fluctuated significantly in the past and may fluctuate
significantly in the future. If demand for our products fluctuates, because of economic conditions or for other reasons, our revenue and profitability could be impacted.
We incurred net losses of $ 11, 242, 404 in 2024 and $ 2, 465, 439 in 2023 and-$-67%1H0712022- As of December 31, 2023-2024 , we had an accumulated deficit of
$9-21, 769012, 723-127 . These losses and our accumulated deficit reflect the substantial investments we have made to develop our products. Our future operating
results will depend on many factors affecting our new market segments, including the following, many of which are out of our control: the continued market acceptance
of our current and new products for 5G, cryogenic quantum computing, internet of things (IoT) and MMICs. Although hard to predict under the current global
environment, we believe our core LNA product line, as well as Spectrum Semiconductor Material and 5G product lines will continue to be in demand and generate top
line revenue and cash flow to sustain ongoing activitics. There is no assurance that the Asset Purchase Agreement will close or that even if we close we will realize
the anticipated benefits. On March 26, 2025, the Company entered into the Asset Purchase Agreement. The closing of the Asset Purchase Agreement is subject
to the occurrence of certain closing conditions, which include actions to be taken by a certain third- party customer. There can be no guarantees that the
closing conditions will be met satisfied. Even if the transactions contemplated by the Asset Purchase Agreement is completed, the acquisition of the assets may
not materialize into purchase orders and new customers and generate the financial and strategic benefits we expected. In addition, purchase orders are
subject to cancellation, modification or delays, which could negatively impact our revenues and return on investment. In addition, we may face operational
challenges and unforeseen liabilities that may negatively impact our business. We have entered into non- binding letter of intent for purchase orders and there
no assurance that we will enter into definitive purchase orders or generate revenues as expected. On March 20, 2025, the Company entered into a non-
binding letter of intent with a contract manufacturer on behalf of its end user for the purchase of $ 78 million of the Company’ s Oran radios. There is no
assurance that the letter of intent will result in a series of definitive purchase orders or generate revenues as expected. Even if we enter into definitive purchase
orders, they are subject to delay, modification or cancellation, which may adversely affect our revenue and financial performance. The Company is dependent
on the global supply chain and has in the past experienced supply chain constraints, as well as increased costs on components and shipping. The Company has
experienced supply chain constraints which have slowed down production and-wil-which may negatively impact the timing of deploying ASRs (Available Supply
Rate) to our clients. These supply constraints include, but are not limited to, semiconductor shortages as well as shortages of certain commodities. Extended lead times
on certain parts as well as a lack of immediate availability may delay our ability to deploy ASRs, and consequently, may delay our ability to recognize revenue. In
addition, the Company has also faced increased costs of components and freight. Further, current or future governmental policies may increase the risk of inflation and
tariffs , which could further increase the costs of raw materials and components for our business. Similarly, if the costs of goods continue to increase, our suppliers may
seek price increases from us. If we are unable to mitigate the impact of supply chain constraints and inflationary pressure through price increases or other measures, our
results of operations and financial condition could be negatively impacted. Even if we can raise the prices of our products, consumers might react negatively to such
price increases, which could have a material adverse effect on, among other things, our brand, reputation, and sales. If our competitors substantially lower their prices,
we may lose customers and mark down prices. Our profitability may be impacted by lower prices, which may negatively impact gross margins. Even though we are
working to alleviate supply chain constraints through various measures, we are unable to predict the impact of these constraints on the timing of revenue and operating
costs of our business in the near future. Raw material supply shortages and supply chain constraints, including tariffs and cost inflation, have-may impaeted--- impact
and could continue to mgall\ le 1mpact our 1b1111v to meet mc,rc’mcd dunand which in turn could 1mpaut on our net §1lu revenues and market share —Fhe-inereased

p . Our market is very
compctitiw If we f"ul to compglc succusiullv our bu@mcs% and opcmlmg 1Lsull§ will \uffu V\/L, face ﬂwmllumt LOH)lelllOl] in lhc amplifier industry from both
established and emerging players such as Lucix, Erzia, and Narda- Miteq. Some of our competitors have longer operating histories and significantly greater financial,
research and development, marketing and other resources than us. As a result, some of these competitors can devote greater resources to the development, promotion,
sale and support of their products. These competitors may also provide discounted pricing on their products to gain market share. In addition, consolidation in the
amplifier industry could intensify the competitive pressures that we face. Many of our existing and potential competitors may be better positioned than we are to acquire
other companies, technologies or products. Some of our customers may also maintain diverse supplier bases to enhance competition and maintain multiple providers of
amplifier products. Our ability to increase order sizes from these customers and maintain or increase our market share would be constrained by these policies. In
addition, any decline in the quality or availability of our products or any increase in the number of suppliers that such a customer use may decrease demand for our
products and adversely affect our operating results, business and prospects. Our ability to compete successfully depends on numerous factors, including our ability to: ®
maintain and increase our market share and the strength of our brand in amplifiers; ® maintain and expand our relationships with channel partners; ® secure products in
large volume in a cost- effective and timely manner from our suppliers; ® develop innovative, differentiated, high- performance products relative to our competitors’
solutions; and e protect our intellectual property. We cannot assure you that our solutions will compete favorably or that we will be successful in the face of increasing
competition from new products and enhancements introduced by our existing competitors or new companies entering our market. In addition, we cannot assure you that
our competitors do not have or will not develop processes or product designs that currently or in the future will enable them to produce competitive products at lower
costs than ours. Any failure to compete successfully would materially adversely affect our business, prospects, operating results and financial condition. Global
economic uncertainty and financial market volatility caused by political instability, changes in international trade relationships and conflicts, such as the conflict in the
Middle East or the conflict between Russia and Ukraine, could make it more difficult for us to access financing and could adversely affect our business and operations.
Our abilities to raise capital and operate our business are subject to the risk of adverse changes in the market value of our securities. Periods of macroeconomic
weakness or recession and heightened market volatility caused by adverse geopolitical developments could increase these risks, potentially resulting in adverse impacts
on our ability to raise further capital on favorable terms. The impact of geopolitical tension, such as a deterioration in the bilateral relationship between the US and
China, the swas-conflicts in the Middle East eran-and eseatationtneonfliet-between Russia and Ukraine, including any resulting sanctions, export controls or other
restrictive actions that may be imposed by the US and / or other countries against governmental or other entities in;-for-example; Russias-alse-could lead to disruption,
instability and volatility in global trade patterns, which may in turn impact our ability to source necessary reagents, raw materials and other inputs for our operations.
Changes in US trade policy, including the imposition of tariffs and the resulting consequences, may have a material adverse impact on our business and results
of operations. Changes in the import and export policies, including trade restrictions, new or increased tariffs or quotas, embargoes, sanctions and
countersanctions, safeguards or customs restrictions by the U. S. and / or other foreign governments, could require us to change the way we conduct business
and adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations, reputation and our relationships with customers, suppliers and employees in the short- or
long- term. On February 1, 2025, the U. S. government announced a 25 % tariff on product imports from certain countries, including Mexico and Canada,
and 10 % tariffs on product imports from certain countries, including China. On February 3, 2025, the prospective tariffs on Canada and Mexico were
deferred for 30 days, though the execution of these tariff increases remain possible beyond the current short- term reprieve. The 10 % additional tariff on all
imports from China went into effect, and on February 4, 2025, China retaliated with various levels of tariffs on certain products imported into that country
from the U. S. The extent and duration of the tariffs and the resulting impact on general economic conditions and on our business are uncertain and depend
on various factors, such as negotiations between the U. S. and affected countries, the responses of other countries or regions, exemptions or exclusions that
may be granted, availability and cost of alternative sources of supply, and demand for our products in affected markets. Further, actions we take to adapt to
new tariffs or trade restrictions may cause us to modify our operations or forgo business opportunities. There can be no assurances that these disruptions will
not continue or increase in the future, with the previously mentioned countries or additional countries with which we do business. We cannot predict future
trade policy or the terms of any renegotiated trade agreements and their impact on our business. The adoption and expansion of trade restrictions, the
occurrence of a trade war, or other governmental action related to tariffs or trade agreements or policies has the potential to adversely impact demand for our
products, our costs, our customers, our suppliers, and the US economy, which in turn could adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of
operations. Economic conditions may adversely impact our business, operating results and financial condition. Economic conditions, market and political instability,
changes in trade agreements and conflicts, such as the conflict in the Middle East or the conflict between Russia and Ukraine, could adversely affect global markets and




transactions and may adversely affect our customers and suppliers. Any adverse financial or economic impact to our customers may impact their ability to pay in a
timely manner or result in their inability to pay. It may also impact their ability to fund future purchases or increase the sales cycles which could lead to a reduction in
revenue and accounts receivable. Our suppliers may increase their prices or may be unable to supply the necessary raw materials on a timely basis which could result in
our inability to meet customers’ demand or affect our gross margins. Our suppliers may also impose more stringent payment terms on us. The timing and nature of any
recovery from the effects of adverse economic conditions or market and political instability on credit and financial markets is uncertain, and there can be no assurance
that market conditions will improve in the near future or that our results will not be materially and adversely affected. Changes in our product mix could cause our
overall gross margin to decline, which may adversely affect our operating results and financial condition. Our gross margin is dependent on product mix. A shift in sales
mix away from our higher margin products could adversely affect our gross margins, and there can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain our historical gross
margins. In addition, as our product mix becomes more customer specific and diversified, our cost of manufacturing has increased. If revenue from LNAs and customer-
specific products continues to grow relative to our other products and services, our company- wide gross margin will likely decline. Additionally, increased competition
and the existence of product alternatives, weaker than expected demand and other factors may lead to further price erosion, lower revenue and lower margins for us in
the future, adversely affecting our operating results and financial condition. Our products must meet exact technical and quality specifications. Defects, errors in or
interoperability issues with our products or the failure of our products to operate as expected could affect our reputation, result in significant costs to us and impair our
ability to sell our products. Our products may contain defects or errors or not operate as expected, which could materially and adversely affect our reputation, result in
significant costs to us and impair our ability to sell our products in the future. Our customers have demanding specifications for quality, performance and reliability that
our tag and reader products must meet. Our products are highly technical and designed to be deployed in large and complex systems, networks and other settings under
a wide variety of conditions. Customers and end users may discover errors, defects or incompatibilities in our products only after they have been fully deployed. In
addition, users of our products may experience compatibility or interoperability issues between our products and their enterprise software systems or networks, or
between our products and other amplifying products they use. We may also experience quality problems with our products that are combined with or incorporated into
products from other vendors, such as tags produced by our inlay manufacturers, or that are assembled by subcontractors. We may have difficulty identifying and
correcting the source of problems when third parties are combining, incorporating or assembling our products. If we are unable to fix errors or other problems, we could
experience: ® loss of customers or customer orders; ® lost or delayed market acceptance and sales of our products; ® loss of market share; ® damage to our brand and
reputation; @ impaired ability to attract new customers or achieve market acceptance; @ diversion of development resources; ® increased service and warranty costs; ®
replacement costs; @ legal actions by our customers; and e increased insurance costs. We may be required to indemnify our customers against liabilities arising from
defects in our products or their solutions which incorporate our products. These liabilities may also include costs incurred by our customers or end users to correct the
problems or replace our products. While we test our products for defects or errors prior to product release, defects or errors are occasionally identified by our customers.
Such defects or errors have occurred in the past and may occur in the future. To the extent product failures are material, they could adversely affect our business,
operating results, customer relationships, reputation and prospects. We may face claims of intellectual property infringement, which could be time consuming, costly to
defend or settle and result in the loss of significant rights. Our industry is characterized by companies that hold large numbers of patents and other intellectual property
rights and which may vigorously pursue, protect and enforce their intellectual property rights. We may in the future be required to license patents and other intellectual
property rights to technologies that are important to our business, which may be costly or prohibitively expensive to our business operations. We may also receive
assertions against us, our customers or distributor, claiming that we infringe patent or other intellectual property rights. Claims that our products, processes, technology
or other aspects of our business infringe third- party intellectual property rights, regardless of their merit or resolution, could be costly to defend or settle and could
divert the efforts and attention of our management and technical personnel. If we decline to accept an offer, the offering party may allege that we infringe such patents,
which could result in litigation. In addition, many of our customer agreements require us to indemnify and defend our customers from third- party infringement claims
and pay damages in the case of adverse rulings. Moreover, we may not know whether we are infringing a third party’ s rights, due to the large number of patents related
to amplifiers or to other systemic factors. For instance, patent applications in the United States are maintained in confidence for up to 18 months after their filing or, in
some cases, for the entire time prior to issuance as a patent. Thus, we would not be able to account for such rights before publication. Competitors may also have filed
patent applications or received patents and may obtain additional patents and proprietary rights that block or compete with our patents. Claims of this sort could harm
our relationships with our customers or distributor and might deter future customers from doing business with us. We do not know whether we will prevail in any such
future proceedings given the complex technical issues and inherent uncertainties in intellectual property litigation. If any pending or future proceedings result in an
adverse outcome, we could be required to: ® cease the manufacture, use or sale of the infringing products, processes or technology; @ pay substantial damages for
infringement; ® expend significant resources to develop non- infringing products, processes or technology; e license technology from the third- party claiming
infringement, which license may not be available on commercially reasonable terms, or at all; ® cross- license our technology to a competitor to resolve an infringement
claim, which could weaken our ability to compete with that competitor; or ® pay substantial damages to our customers or end users to discontinue their use of or to
replace infringing technology sold to them with non- infringing technology. Any of the foregoing results could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and operating results. We may incur substantial costs enforcing or acquiring intellectual property rights and defending against third- party claims as a result of
litigation or other proceedings. We may incur substantial costs enforcing or acquiring intellectual property rights and defending against third- party claims as a result of
litigation or other proceedings. In connection with the enforcement of our own intellectual property rights, the acquisition of third- party intellectual property rights or
disputes related to the validity or alleged infringement of third- party intellectual property rights, including patent rights, we may be subject to claims, negotiations or
complex, protracted litigation. Intellectual property disputes and litigation may be costly and can be disruptive to our business operations by diverting the attention and
energies of management and key technical personnel, and by increasing our costs of doing business. If we fail to prevail in any future litigation and disputes, it could
adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition. Third- party intellectual property claims asserted against us could subject us to significant liabilities,
require us to enter into royalty and licensing arrangements on unfavorable terms, prevent us from assembling or licensing certain of our products, subject us to
injunctions restricting our sale of products, cause severe disruptions to our operations or the marketplaces in which we compete or require us to satisfy indemnification
commitments with our customers, including contractual provisions under various license arrangements. In addition, we may incur significant costs in acquiring the
necessary third- party intellectual property rights for use in our products. Any of these could seriously harm our business. If we are unable to obtain patent protection for
our products or otherwise protect our intellectual property rights, our business could suffer. Our success depends, in part, on our ability to obtain patent protection for or
maintain as trade secrets our proprietary products, technologies and inventions and to maintain the confidentiality of our trade secrets and know- how, operate without
infringing upon the proprietary rights of others and prevent others from infringing upon our business proprietary rights. Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary
rights, it is possible that competitors or other unauthorized third parties may obtain, copy, use or disclose our technologies, inventions, processes or improvements. We
cannot assure you that any of our existing or future patents or other intellectual property rights will be enforceable, will not be challenged, invalidated or circumvented,
or will otherwise provide us with meaningful protection or any competitive advantage. In addition, our pending patent applications may not be granted. If our patents do
not adequately protect our technology, our competitors may be able to offer additive manufacturing systems or other products like ours. Our competitors may also be
able to develop similar technology independently or design around our patents, and we may not be able to detect the unauthorized use of our proprietary technology or
take appropriate steps to prevent such use. Any of the foregoing events would lead to increased competition and lower revenues or gross margins, which could adversely
affect our operating results. Confidentiality agreements with employees and third parties may not prevent unauthorized disclosure of trade secrets and other proprietary
information, and our inability to maintain the confidentiality of that information, due to unauthorized disclosure or use, or other events, could have a material adverse
effect on our business. In addition to the protection afforded by patents, we seek to rely on trade secret protection and confidentiality agreements to protect proprietary
know- how that is not patentable or that we elect not to patent, processes for which patents are difficult to enforce, and any other elements of our product discovery and
development processes that involve proprietary know- how, information, or technology that is not covered by patents. Trade secrets, however, may be difficult to
protect. We seek to protect our proprietary processes, in part, by entering into confidentiality agreements with our employees, consultants, advisors, contractors and
collaborators. Although we use reasonable efforts to protect our trade secrets, our employees, consultants, advisors, contractors, and collaborators might intentionally or
inadvertently disclose our trade secret information to competitors. In addition, competitors may otherwise gain access to our trade secrets or independently develop
substantially equivalent information and techniques. Furthermore, the laws of some foreign countries do not protect proprietary rights to the same extent or in the same
manner as the laws of the United States. As a result, we may encounter significant problems in protecting and defending our intellectual property both in the United
States and abroad. If we are unable to prevent unauthorized material disclosure of our intellectual property to third parties, or misappropriation of our intellectual
property by third parties, we will not be able to establish or maintain a competitive advantage in our market, which could materially adversely affect our business,
operating results and financial condition. We are subject to order and shipment uncertainties. Inaccuracies in our estimates of customer demand and product mix could
negatively affect our inventory levels, sales and operating results. We derive revenue primarily from customer purchase orders rather than long- term purchase
commitments. To ensure the availability of our products, in some cases we start manufacturing based on forecasts provided by customers in advance of receiving
purchase orders from them. In some cases, our supply chain has been affected by both tariffs and supply chain disruptions by-the-COVAD-—+9-pandemte-. Some of our



products are manufactured according to our estimates of customer demand, which requires us to make demand forecast assumptions for every customer, and which may
introduce significant variability into our aggregate estimate. We typically sell to channel partners and end users, and we consequently have limited visibility into future
end- user demand, which could adversely affect our revenue forecasts and operating margins. Additionally, we sometimes receive soft commitments for larger order
sizes which do not materialize. If we manufacture more products than we can sell to our customers or channel partners, we will incur losses and our results of operation
and financial condition will be harmed. Our sales and marketing efforts may be unsuccessful in maintaining and expanding existing sales channels, developing new
sales channels and increasing the sales of our products. To grow our business, we must add new customers for our products in addition to retaining and increasing sales
to our current customers. Our ability to attract new customers will depend in part on the success of our sales and marketing efforts. There can be no guarantee that we
will be successful in implementing our sales and marketing strategy. If suitable sales channels do not develop, we may not be able to sell certain of our products in
significant volumes and our operating results, business and prospects may be harmed. Our business would be adversely affected by the departure of members of our
executive management team. Our success depends, in large part, on the continued contributions of Fawad Magbool, our Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer. Mr. Magbool is not bound by any employment contract to remain with us for a specified period. Although we have additional engineering, technical and sales
personnel, the loss of Mr. Magbool’ s service could harm our ability to implement our business strategy and respond to the rapidly changing market conditions in which
we operate. If we are unable to attract, train and retain qualified personnel, especially our design and technical personnel, we may not be able to effectively execute our
business strategy. Our future success depends on our ablllly to attract, retain and motlvatc qu'l]lll(.d personnel, including our management, %alu and marketing, finance
and especially our design and technical personnel. v
know whether we will be able to retain all these per: qonml as we continue to pursue our business strategy. As the source of our u.chmcal and produu mnovauom our
design and technical personnel are a significant asset. The competition for qualified personnel in the New York area where we are headquartered constrains our ability
to attract qualified personnel. The loss of the services of one or more of our key employees, especially of our key design and technical personnel, or our inability to
attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results. We have material
weaknesses in our internal accounting control over financial reporting and Faiture-failure to remediate a material weakness in internal accounting controls could
result in material misstatements in our financial statements. Our management has identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting related to
lack of segregation of duties resulting from our limited personnel and ineffective control over financial statement disclosure as controls were not designed and in place to
ensure that all disclosures required were originally addressed in our financial statements and has concluded that, due to such material wealeness-weaknesses , our
disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. #In addition, during the three months ended March 31, 2024, we made
several transactions in digital currency in the total amount of approximately $ 3. 25 million (the “ Digital Currency Investment ”) which was fraudulently
induced. As a result, we identified further additional material weaknesses regarding our internal controls over financial reporting including, but not limited
to, the lack of segregation of duties involved in the execution and approvals of wire transfers for material investments in digital assets. We have identified
certain steps necessary to address the material weaknesses, and we continue to implement the remedial procedures. However, if not remediated, or if we identify
further material weaknesses in our internal controls, our failure to establish and maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial
reporting could result in material misstatements in our financial statements and a failure to meet our reporting and financial obligations, each of which could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition and the trading price of our common stock. On October 31, 2024, the Company received a shareholder letter
demanding that the Company’ s Board take action against certain and / or former officers and directors of the Company asserting violations of fiduciary
duties of good faith, loyalty and due care, and / or the aiding and abetting of such breaches of fiduciary duty in connection with the Digital Currency
Investment. We have established a Board committee to review this letter and to prepare a response thereto. In addition, as previously discussed, the Company’
s Board has taken steps and adopted procedures in response to the material weakness related to the Digital Currency Investment. If not remediated, or if we
identify further material weaknesses in our internal controls, our failure to establish and maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures and internal
control over financial reporting could result in material misstatements in our financial statements and a failure to meet our reporting and financial
obligations, each of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and the trading price of our common stock. If we fail to implement
proper and effective internal controls, our ability to produce accurate financial statements would be impaired, which could adversely affect our operating results, our
ability to operate our business and our stock price. We must ensure that we have adequate internal financial and accounting controls and procedures in place to produce
accurate financial statements on a timely basis. We have tested our internal controls and identified twe-material weaknesses and may find additional areas for
improvement in the future. Remediating these material weaknesses will require us to hire and train additional personnel. Implementing any future changes to our
internal controls may require compliance training of our directors, officers and employees, entail substantial costs to modify our accounting systems and take a
significant period to complete. Such changes may not, however, be effective in establishing the adequacy of our internal control over financial reporting, and our failure
to produce accurate financial statements on a timely basis could increase our operating costs and could materially impair our ability to operate our business. In addition,
investors’ perceptions that our internal control over financial reporting is inadequate or that we are unable to produce accurate financial statements may materially
adversely affect our stock price. We may need to raise additional capital, which may not be available on favorable terms, if at all, and which may cause dilution to
holders of our common stock, restrict our operations or adversely affect our ability to operate our business. If we need to raise additional funds due to material
expenditures or if our operating results are worse than expected, we cannot be certain that we will be able to obtain additional financing on favorable terms, if at all, and
any additional financings could result in additional dilution to holders of our common stock. Debt financing, if available, may involve agreements that include
covenants limiting or restricting our ability to take specific actions such as incurring additional debt, expending capital or declaring dividends, or which impose financial
covenants on us that limit our ability to achieve our business objectives. If we need additional capital and cannot raise it on acceptable terms, we may not be able to
meet our business objectives, our stock price may fall, and you may lose some or all your investment. Breaches of network or information technology security, natural
disasters or terrorist attacks could have an adverse effect on our business. Cyber- attacks or other breaches of network or information technology (IT) security, natural
disasters, terrorist acts or acts of war may cause equipment failures or disrupt our systems and operations. We may be subject to attempts to breach the security of our
networks and IT infrastructure through cyber— dttdes malware Lomputer v1ruses dl]d other means of unduthonzed access. We—h-ave—pﬁvmns-l-y—beeﬂ-s&bjeet-te-the

Uuse ot company Lredentldls or other information could compromise our systems and operdtlons matendlly adversely
impact our lmancml condition and subject us to scrutiny and / or litigation from regulators and our customers. A failure to protect the privacy of customer and employee
confidential data against breaches of network or IT security could result in damage to our reputation. The unfavorable outcome of any future litigation or administrative
action could negatively impact us. Our financial results could be negatively impacted by unfavorable outcomes in any future litigation or administrative actions. We
cannot assure favorable outcomes in litigation or administrative proceedings. Costs associated with litigation and administrative proceedings are very high and could
negatively impact our financial results. Non- compliance with, or changes in, the legal and regulatory environment in the countries in which we operate could increase
our costs or reduce our net operating revenues. Our business is subject to various laws and regulations in the US and in the countries throughout the world in which we
do business, including laws and regulations relating to commerce, intellectual property, trade, environmental, health and safety, commerce and contracts, privacy and
communications, consumer protection, web services, tax and state corporate laws and securities laws, and specifically those conducting business of electronics, many of
which are still evolving and could be interpreted in ways that could harm our business. There is no assurance that we will be completely effective in ensuring our
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. Changes in applicable laws or regulations or evolving interpretations thereof, including increased government
regulation, may result in increased compliance costs, capital expenditures and other financial obllgauom for us md could al'lcul our proﬁmblllly or 1mpcdc the
productlon or dlstrlbutlon of our products whth could affect our net opcratmg revenues = FOV 8 v

/\Lqumtlons may expose us to
1dd1t10na1 risks. WL may 'lcqulrc or make investments in busmcs%m tuchnologlw or products whcthcr complementary or otherwise, to expand our business, if
appropriate opportunities arise. There can be no assurance that we will be able to identify suitable candidates or consummate these transactions on favorable terms. If
required, the financing for these transactions could result in an increase in our indebtedness, dilute the interests of our stockholders or both. The purchase price for some
acquisitions may include additional amounts to be paid in cash in the future, a portion of which may be contingent on the achievement of certain future operating results



of the acquired business. If the performance of any such acquired business exceeds such operating results, then we may incur additional charges and be required to pay
additional amounts. Acquisitions including strategic investments or alliances entail numerous risks, which may include: e difficulties in integrating acquired operations
or products, including the loss of key employees from, or customers of, acquired businesses; ® diversion of management’ s attention from our existing businesses; ®
adverse effects on existing business relationships with suppliers and customers; ® adverse impacts of margin and product cost structures different from those of our
current mix of business; and @ conforming standards, controls, procedures, accounting and other policies, business cultures, and compensation structures between the
two companies. Many of these factors are outside of our control and any one of these factors could result in, among other things, increased costs and decreases in the
amount of expected revenues, which could materially adversely impact our business, financial condition, and results of operations. In addition, even if we can
successfully integrate acquired businesses, the full benefits, including the synergies, cost savings, revenue growth, or other benefits that are expected, may not be
achieved within the anticipated time frame, or at all. All of these factors could decrease or delay the expected accretive effect of the acquisitions, and negatively impact
our business, operating results, and financial condition. Our revenue and operating results can fluctuate from period to period. We derive revenue primarily from
customer purchase orders rather than long- term purchase commitments. Our revenue from period to period can significantly fluctuate for a variety of reasons,
including, without limitation, our supply chain as well as receipt of customer orders. Such fluctuations may have a material adverse impact on our results of our
operations. We and / or certain of our current and former officers and directors, may face litigation and legal proceedings which could adversely affect our
business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. We are subject to lawsuits, legal proceedings and claims in the normal course of our business,
which can be expensive, lengthy, and disruptive to normal business operations. Moreover, the results of complex legal proceedings are difficult to predict.
These proceedings and any other regulatory proceedings or actions may be time consuming, could cause us to incur significant defense costs and could damage
our reputation or adversely affect our stock price. Any adverse ruling or unfavorable resolution in any legal or regulatory proceeding or action could have a
material adverse effect on our business, operating results or financial condition. Risks Relating to our Common Stock and our Listed Warrants If our business
developments and achievements do not meet the expectations of investors or securities analysts or for other reasons the expected benefits do not occur, the
market price of shares of our Common Stock traded on Nasdaq may decline. If our busi develop ts and achiev ts do not meet the expectations of
investors or securities analysts, the market price of shares of our Common Stock traded on Nasdaq may decline. The trading price of shares of our Common
Stock could be volatile and subject to wide fluctuations in response to various factors, some of which are beyond our control. Any of the factors mentioned in
this “ Risk Factors ” section and elsewhere in this report could have a negative impact on your investment in our securities and our securities may trade at
prices significantly below the price you paid for them. In such circumstances, the trading price of our securities may not recover and may experience a further
decline. The price of shares of our Common Stock has fluctuated substantially and the price of our common stock eeutd-be-vetatite-and-could decline at a time
when you want to sell your holdings. The price of shares of our Common Stock has fluctuated substantially. Therefore, some investors who have purchased our
Common Stock at high prices face the risk of losing a significant portion of their original investment if they have to sell at a time when the price of shares of
our Common Stock has declined. For example, during the fourth quarter of 2024, and in particular the months of November and December 2024, the price of
our Common Stock and trading volume significantly increased. During this period, we did not make any significant announcements other than our financial
condition and results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024. Accordingly, the market price of our Common Stock may
fluctuate dramatically and may decline rapidly, irrespective of any developments in our business. In addition, the volatility of our stock price could cause other
consequences including causing a short squeeze due to the difference in investment decisions by short sellers of shares of our Common Stock and buy- and-
hold decisions of longer investors. An investment in securities can be risky, and you should invest in securities only if you can withstand a significant loss and
wide fluctuations in the market value of your investment. Numecrous factors, many of which are beyond our control, may cause the market price of our common
stock to fluctuate significantly. Fhese-Some factors inetude-that may cause the market price of shares of our Common Stock to fluctuate, in addition to the other
risks mentioned in this “ Risk Factors ” section and elsewhere in this report, are : @ sale of shares of our Common Stock by our stockholders; e volatility in
trading volumes of our shares of Common Stock; e our ability to obtain financings to conduct and complete our business activities; ® possible delays in the
expected recognition of revenue due to lengthy and sometimes unpredictable sales timelines; e failures to meet external expectations or management
guidance; e changes in our capital structure and future issuances of securities; ® our cash position; ® announcements and events surrounding financing
efforts; e changes in general economic, political and market conditions in any area in which we conduct our business; e analyst research reports,
recommendatlons and changes in recommendatlons, prlce targets, and withdrawals of coverage; © qumterl\ variations in our results 01 Upemlmns or those of our

; ® our dbl]ll\ to de\ elop and market new dﬂd enhdnu:d pmduus on a timely bds ;
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P 0 0 i i —e-cancellation of ku} contracts; @ short
sLl]m;: activities; “and o ehaﬁges—m—other events or factors, many of whlch may be out of our control In addltlon, if the mmkul valuations-of simitar-eompanies;
and-e-for stocks in our industry or industries related to our industry, or the stock market in gcncral eeenentie-, experiences a loss of investor confidence, the
trading price of shares of our Common Stock could decline for reasons unrelated to our busmess, financnal eend-rt-reﬁs— condltlon and s’rewresults of
operatlons. If any of the foregomg occurs, it could cause er-our nega v

stock price —"Fh-ls—t-yp&e-f—l-rt-rgat-reﬁ-to fall and may expose us to lawsults that, even if unsuccessful u)uld be costlyfes'd-l-t—m
substantial-eests-to us-defend and divert-enr-a distraction to management s-attentionandreseurees-. Morcover, securities markets may from time- to- time experience
significant price and volume fluctuations for reasons unrelated to operating performance of companies, such as rising inflation and interest rates , global economic
uncertainty and political instability the—rapidiy-developingeonflietinBlaaine-. These market fluctuations may adversely affect the price of our common stock and
other interests in our company at a time when you want to sell your interest in us. Future sales or perceived sales of our common stock could depress our stock price. If
the holders of our currently outstanding shares of common stock were to attempt to sell a substantial amount of their holdings at once, the market price of our common
stock could decline. Moreover, the perceived risk of this potential dilution could cause shareholders to attempt to sell their shares and investors to short the common
stock, a practice in which an investor sells shares that he or she does not own at prevailing market prices, hoping to purchase shares later at a lower price to cover the
sale. As each of these events would cause the number of shares of our common stock being offered for sale to increase, our common stock market price would likely
further decline. All of these events could combine to make it very difficult for us to sell equity or equity- related securities in the future at a time and price that we deem
appropriate. Our common stock may be affected by limited trading volume and price fluctuations, which could adversely impact the value of our common stock. Our
common stock has experienced, and is likely to experience in the future, significant price and volume fluctuations, which could adversely affect the market price of our
common stock without regard to our operating performance. In addition, we believe that factors such as quarterly fluctuations in our financial results and changes in the
overall economy or the condition of the financial markets could cause the price of our common stock to fluctuate substantially. These fluctuations may also cause short
sellers to periodically enter the market in the belief that we will have poor results in the future. We cannot predict the actions of market participants and, therefore, can
offer no assurances that the market for our common stock will be stable or appreciate over time. Provisions in our articles of incorporation and bylaws could discourage
a change in control, or an acquisition of us by a third party, even if the acquisition would be favorable to you, thereby adversely affecting existing shareholders. Our
articles of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that may have the effect of making it more difficult or delaying attempts by others to obtain control of our
Company, even when these attempts may be in the best interests of our shareholders. For example, our articles of incorporation authorize our Board of Directors,
without stockholder approval, to issue one or more series of preferred stock, which could have voting and conversion rights that adversely affect or dilute the voting
power of the holders of common stock. These provisions and others that could be adopted in the future could deter unsolicited takeovers or delay or prevent changes in
our control or management, including transactions in which stockholders might otherwise receive a premium for their shares over then- current market prices. These
provisions may also limit the ability of stockholders to approve transactions that they may deem to be in their best interests. The ability of Fawad Magbool, our
Chairman, to sell his stake in us and speculation about any such sale may adversely affect the market price of our common stock. Mr. Magbool owns a significant
number of shares of our outstanding common stock, and he may sell any or all of his shares at any time without approval by other shareholders. Speculation by the
press, stock analysts, our shareholders or others regarding the intention of Mr. Magbool to dispose of his shares could adversely affect the market price of our common
stock. Moreover, the market price of our common stock may be adversely impacted by the fact that the public float of our common stock is relatively small. Because
Fawad Magbool, our Chairman controls a significant number of shares of our voting capital stock, he has the ability to influence actions requiring stockholder approval.
As of the date of this report, Fawad Magbool, our Chairman, President Chief Executive Officer, held 14 29-87-% of our outstanding shares of common stock. As a
result, Mr. Magbool could significantly influence the outcome of matters submitted to our stockholders for approval, including the election of directors and any merger,




consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of our assets. In addition, Mr. Magbool could influence the management and affairs of our company. Accordingly, any
investors who purchase shares will likely be minority shareholders and as such will have little to no say in the direction of us and the election of directors. Additionally,
this concentration of ownership might harm the market price of our common stock by: e delaying, deferring or preventing a change in corporate control; ® impeding a
merger, consolidation, takeover or other business combination involving us; or @ discouraging a potential acquirer from making a tender offer or otherwise attempting to
obtain control of us. Because we do not intend to pay cash dividends on our shares of common stock, any returns will be limited to the value of our shares. We currently
anticipate that we will retain future earnings for the development, operation and expansion of our business and do not anticipate declaring or paying any cash dividends
for the foreseeable future. Any return to stockholders will therefore be limited to the increase, if any, of our share price that stockholders may be able to realize if they
sell their shares. You may experience future dilution as a result of future equity offerings and other issuances of our common stock or other securities. In
addition, future equity offerings and other issuances of our common stock or other securities may adversely affect our common stock price. In order to raise
additional capital, we may in the future offer additional shares of our common stock or other securities convertible into or exchangeable for our common
stock at prices that may not be the same as the price per share paid by you. We may not be able to sell shares or other securities in any other offering at a price
per share that is equal to or greater than the price per share paid by you, and investors purchasing shares or other securities in the future could have rights
superior to existing stockholders. The price per share at which we sell additional shares of our common stock or securities convertible into common stock in
future transactions may be higher or lower than the price per share you paid. You will incur dilution upon exercise of any outstanding stock options, warrants
or upon the issuance of shares of common stock under our stock incentive programs. In addition, the sale of any future sales of a substantial number of shares
of our common stock in the public market, or the perception that such sales may occur, could adversely affect the price of our common stock. We cannot
predict the effect, if any, that market sales of those shares of common stock or the availability of those shares for sale will have on the market price of our
common stock. There can be no assurance that we will be able to comply with the continued listing standards of the Nasdaq Capital Market, a failure which could
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8 s subjeet-to-delisting
frem—thecontmgent upon our compllance w1th The Nasddq Cdpltdl Market s condltlons for contlnued —I-ﬁ-add-rbm—te—ma-mﬁnn—a—hstmg ﬁn—t-he If we fail to meet
any Nasdaq €apital-Marketlisting requirements , we-mustsatisfy-including the minimum bid price, satisfaction of minimum financial and other continued listing
requirements and standards, including those regarding director independence and independent committee requirements, minimum stockholders’ equity and certain
corporate governance requirements , and do not regain compliance, we may be subject to delisting by Nasdaq . If we are unable to satisfy these requirements or
standards, we could be subject to delisting, which would hd\/e a llt:gdtl\t: effect on the prlee of our common stock dnd would lmpd]]’ your ablhty to sell or purehase our

common stock when you wish to do so. In the event ©

v 0 altew-our common stoek to-beee-m&ls no longer llsted aga-m—for tradmg on Nasdaq stabilize-the-market
our tradmg volume and share price eﬁmpfev&t-he—hqutdﬁy—e-f-may decrease and you may have a difficult time selling euryour shares of common stock . In
addition , prevent-we may experience difficulties in raising capital which could materlally adversely affect oureem-men—steeleoperatlons and ﬁnanc1al results.
Further, delisting from drepping-below-Nasdaq markets could also have the-other minimun rt-fatd
negative effects, including potential loss of confidence by partners, lenders, suppliers and employees Flnally, hst-mg—dellstmg fequ-xfements—could make it harder
for you and the Company to sell the securities and hard for us to raise capital . The Listed Warrants are speculative in nature. The Listed Warrants do not confer
any rights of common stock ownership on their holders, such as voting rights or the right to receive dividends, but rather merely represent the right to acquire shares of
our common stock at a fixed price for a limited period of time. Specifically, commencing on the date of issuance, holders of the Listed Warrants may exercise their right
to acquire the common stock and pay an exercise price of $ 7. 00 per share, prior to five years from the date of issuance, after which date any unexercised Listed
Warrants will expire and have no further value. In addition, there can be no assurance that an active trading market for the Listed Warrants will develop. Holders of the
Listed Warrants will have no rights as common stockholders until they acquire our common stock. Until holders of the Listed Warrants acquire shares of our common
stock upon exercise of the Listed Warrants, the holders will have no rights with respect to shares of our common stock issuable upon exercise of the Listed Warrants.
Upon exercise of the Listed Warrants, the holder will be entitled to exercise the rights of a common stockholder as to the security exercised only as to matters for which
the record date occurs after the exercise. Provisions of the Listed Warrants could discourage an acquisition of us by a third party. Certain provisions of the Listed
Warrants could make it more difficult or expensive for a third party to acquire us. The Listed Warrants prohibit us from engaging in certain transactions constituting *
fundamental transactions ” unless, among other things, the surviving entity assumes our obligations under the Listed Warrants. These and other provisions of the Listed
Warrants effered-by-this-prespeetus-could prevent or deter a thud pal ty 1‘10m aequumg us even whele the aequlsmon Lould be benehual to you ITEM 1B.
UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS None Sme 8 p y . ITEM 1C.
CYBERSECURITY Cybersecurity Risk Management and Su dlegy The Company depends on lhe proper tuneuonmg sailability and securily of its information
systems, including financial, data processing, communications and operating systems. Several information systems are software applications provided by third parties.
Although risks from cybersecurity threats have to date not materially affected, and we do not believe they are reasonably likely to materially affect, us, our business
strategy, results of operations or financial condition, like other companies in our industry, we could, from time to time, experience threats and security incidents related
to our and our third- party vendors’ information systems, including attempts to gain unauthorized access to our confidential data, and other electronic security breaches.
Such cybersecurity attacks can range from individual attempts to gain unauthorized access to our information technology systems to more sophisticated security threats.
While we employ a number of measures to prevent, detect and mitigate these threats, there is no guarantee such efforts will be successful in preventing a cybersecurity
attack. A cybersecurity attack could compromise the confidential information of our employees, customers and vendors. A successful cybersecurity attack could disrupt
and otherwise adversely affect our business operations. Assessment, identification and management of cybersecurity related risks are integrated into our overall risk
management process. Cybersecurity related risks are included in the risk universe we evaluate to assess top risks to the Company at least annually. To the extent our
processes identify a heightened cybersecurity related risk, risk owners are assigned to develop risk mitigation plans, which are then tracked to completion.
Cybersecurity Governance Our Board of Directors considers cybersecurity risk as part of its risk oversight function and has delegated oversight of cybersecurity risk
strategy and governance and of other information technology risks to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors (the “ Audit Committee ). The Audit Committee
reports to the full Board of Directors regarding its activities, including those related to cybersecurity. Senior management, including the Company’ s Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer, is responsible for assessing and managing cybersecurity risk, and provides briefings regarding the
assessment and management of such risk to the Audit Committee, which then reports, as necessary, to the Board of Directors. Although members of our senior
management do not have direct cybersecurity expertise obtained through certifications, their experience managing the Company, which includes consulting and
coordinating as necessary with in- house information- technology specialists, enables them to effectively assess and manage material risks from cybersecurity threats.
The Company relies on in- house information- technology specialists to assist in managing relevant risks. Any cybersecurity incident would be reported promptly to
management and material and potentially material incidents would be assessed by management and the Audit Committee for remediation and future prevention and
detection. The Company, at least annually, updates its policies or procedures that could help mitigate cybersecurity risks. Notwithstanding the extensive approach we
take to cybersecurity, we may not be successful in preventing or mitigating a cybersecurity incident that could have a material adverse effect on us. The Company has
incorporated cybersecurity coverage in its insurance policies; however, there is no assurance that the insurance the Company maintains will cover all cybersecurity
breaches or that policy limits will be sufficient to cover all related losses. ITEM 2. PROPERTIES As of April 1, 2022....... for administrative offices and for
manufacturing. On September 15, 2019, the Company entered a five- year lease on property located at 120 Raynor Avenue, Ronkonkoma, NY with an option to buy the
property during the first two years of the lease for $ 1. 2 mm and then at fair market value for the remainder of the lease term. The option to buy the property has
expired and was not exercised. The lease commenced with a monthly rental expense of $ 7, 500, with annual rent increases by 3 % in each successive lease year
beginning on January 1, 2021. This property was used by Specialty Microwave for manufacturing and engineering services. On April 13, 2023, this lease was
terminated subject to the terms of a Surrender Agreement between the Company and landlord. As a result, a gain on termination of right- of- use operating lease was
recognized of $ 8, 461. On December 15, 2021, the Company assumed the SSM ledxe agleement-fe-r-of approxnmately 11, 500 square feet of office and warehouse
space in San Jose, CA, with the same fease-terms and conditions asp usty ease-assy n-. Fhe-Effective February
1, 2020, the lease term will expire on January 31, 2025, with ameﬁt-h-l-y—bdse rent 01L $ 24, 234 for the hrst 12 months and inerease-increases by approximately 3 %
every year. As-efDeeember-On September 6, 2024 the lease was amended extending the lease term to March 31, 2623 2030 while --aH-the-faetlities-deseribed

: d mamtammg the base rent of $ 24, 234 and inregularuse-3 % increases for each year thereafter . We
beheve—th&t—Smce April 1, 2022, our principal executive office consisting of approximately 20, 000 square feet has been located at
155 Plant Avenue, Hauppauge, NY. The property at this location is leased by the Company at a monthly rental expense of $ 28, 854 for a term of seven years
and to-two meet-months. The yearly base rent of $ 346, 248 shall increase at a rate of 2. 75 % per year to begin on the first anniversary of the lease
commencement date and each year thereafter. In the event the landlord decides to sell the property, the Company shall have the right of first offer to purchase




subject property. Our wholly owned subsidiary, AmpliTech, Inc., and the Company’ s divisions, Specialty Microwave and AGTGSS, also operate out of our
eoperational-needs-principal executive office. This property is used for the-foreseeable-future-administrative offices and for manufacturing . On January 15, 2024,
the Company entered a triple net lease agreement for a 1, 900 square foot facility in Allen, Texas for a term of five years and one month. The yearly base rent of $ 53,
675 shall increase at a rate of 2. 5 % per year to begin on the first anniversary lease commencement date and each year thereafter. The first month’ s rent shall be abated
following the commencement lease date. Upon lease execution, the Company paid two months of rent as a security deposit and one month’ s rent totaling $ 17, 999.
The Company expeets-moved into the new facility on August 1, 2024. As of December 31, 2024, all the facilities described above were in good operating
condition, well maintained and in regular use. We believe that our existing facilities are sufficient t0 be-fully-meet our opcrational at-needs for the foreseeable
future rew-MMICdivistonfaeitity May1;2024- [TEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS There are no pending legal proceedings to which we are a party or of which any
of our property is the subject. From time to time, we may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of business.
Litigations are subject to inherent uncertainties and an adverse result in these, or other matters may arise from time to time and harm our business. ITEM 4. MINE
SAFETY DISCLOSURES Not applicable. PART II ITEM 5. MARKET FOR RE (JIS]RA\ [’ S COMMON E QL‘[ I'Y, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTE RS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES Market lnlmmalmn Up-th MOR-S h

k- A y —Our common stock and w anants have been approved for llstmg on thL N ASI)AQ Capital
Markcl. or NASDAQ undcr 1hc symbo]s - /\.\4P(i and “ AM P(;W 1upu11\ ely, and commenced trading on the NASDAQ on February 17, 2021. Holders of
Record of Common Stock As of March 2721 , 2024-2025 . there were approximately 44 holders of record of our common stock. This does not reflect the number of
persons or entities who held stock in nominee or street name through various brokerage firms. Dividend Policy We have never declared or paid dividends on our
common stock. We do not anticipate paying any dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain all available funds and any
future earnings to fund the development and growth of our business. Any future determination to declare dividends will be subject to the discretion of our Board of
Directors and will depend on various factors, including applicable laws, our results of operations, financial condition, future prospects and any other factors deemed
relevant by our Board of Directors. Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities Unregistered securities sold by the Company during the period covered by this
report have been previously reported in a Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q or Current Report on Form 8- K. Purchases of Equity Securities Equity
Compensation Plan Information The following table summarizes information about our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2024: Number of
securities to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options, warrants, and rights Weighted- average price of outstanding options, warrants and rights Number
of securities remaining available for future issuance under equity compensation plans (excluding securities reflected in column (a)) (a) (b) (c) Equity
compensation plans approved by security holders 1, 295, 000 $ 2. 28 760, 142 Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders Total 1, 295, 000 $
2.28 760, 142 ITEM 6. [ RESERVED ] ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS This Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations is intended to provide a reader of our financial
statements with a narrative from the perspective of our management on our financial condition, results of operations, liquidity, and certain other factors that may affect
our future results. The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes
thereto included in *“ Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. ”” Forward- Looking Statements In addition to historical financial information, the following
discussion and analysis contains forward- looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. See *“ Forward- Looking Statements. ~” Our results and
th timing of \LlCLlLd events may dllfu 1mlulall) from lhosg ammpalnd in these forward- lool\llw statements as a result ofman\ ﬁclms NOﬂ—G&"ﬂArP—F-lﬂ&ﬂei&}

a o hen aH-finaneta 8 bustress- Busmc\\ ()\ erview AmplchLh (ymup Im ( AMP(y /\mplchgh or lhc
Company "), 111(:011')0131;(1 in 2010 in the state 01 Nudda is lhg ])dlml company of AmpliTech, Inc., and the Company”’ s divisions Specialty Microwave, Spectrum
Semiconductor Materials, AmpliTech Group MMIC Design Center (“ AGMDC ) and AmpliTech Group True G Speed Services (“ AGTGSS ). AmpliTech Inc.
designs, engineers and assembles micro- wave component- based amplifiers that meet individual customer specifications. Our products consist of RF amplifiers and
related subsystems, operating at multiple frequencies from 50kHz to 44GHz, including low noise amplifiers (“ LNA ), medium power amplifiers, cryogenic amplifiers,
and custom assembly designs for the global satellite communications, telecom (5G & IoT), space, defense, and quantum computing markets. We also offer non-
recurring engineering services on a project- by- project basis, for a predetermined fixed contractual amount, or on a time plus material basis. We have both domestic and
international customers in such industries as aerospace, governmental, defense and commercial satellite. Specialty Microwave designs and manufactures state- of- the-
art precision SATCOM microwave components, RF subsystems and specialized electronic assemblies for the military and commercial markets, flexible and rugged
waveguides, wave guide adapters and more. On November 19, 2021, AMPG entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with Spectrum Semiconductor Materials Inc. (*
SSM ”), a globally authorized distributor of integrated circuit (IC) packaging and lids for semiconductor device assembly, prototyping, testing, and production
requirements founded in 1990 and headquartered in San Jose, CA, pursuant to which AMPG acquired substantially all of the assets of the Company (the Acquisition).
The Acquisition was completed on December 15, 2021. In 2021, the Company opened a monolithic microwave integrated circuits (“ MMIC ) chip design center in
Texas and has started to implement several of its proprietary amplifier designs into MMIC components. MMICs are semiconductor chips used in high- frequency
communications applications. MMICs are widely desired for power amplification solutions to service emerging technologies, such as phased array antennas and
quantum computing. MMICs carry a smaller footprint enabling them to be incorporated into a broader array of systems while reducing costs. AGMDC designs,
develops and manufactures state- of- the- art signal processing components for satellite and 5G communications networks, defense, space and other commercial
applications, allowing the Company to market its products to wider base fulstomcm requiring high technology in smaller packages. In August 2022, the AGTGSS
division was formed to enable ““ true G speeds  to the industry. AGTGSS’ main function will be to plan and mnl]guu, 5G radio systems and make them O- RAN
compliant. AGTGSS will implement AmpliTech’ s low noise amplifier devices in these systems to promote greater coverage, longer range and faster speeds. Recent
Debt Reduction On July 23, 2024, the Company entered into a business loan and security agreement with Altbanq Lending II LLC in the amount of $ 1, 300,
000, which included an origination fee of $ 26, 000 and an original issue discount of $ 403, 000. The loan is payable within 76- weeks through 38 bi- weekly
payments of $ 44, 816 and bore an annual interest rate of 21. 2 % with prepayment options available. The loan was secured by the Company’ s assets through
a UCC filing, and proceeds were used for working capital, 5G licensing and certification fees. During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company repaid
the loan in full, through principal payments of $ 1, 534, 000, and recorded $ 260, 000 in debt discount amortization. Recent Financings On September 9, 2024,
the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with a single institutional investor to sell 1, 369, 488 shares of the Company’ s common stock, par
value $ 0. 001 per share at a per share price of $ 0. 7302. The closing of the offering occurred on September 11, 2024. The gross proceeds to the Company from
this offering was approximately $ 1 million, before deducting placement agent’ s fees and other offering expenses payable by the Company of approximately $
180, 000. On November 24, 2024, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with three institutional investors pursuant to which we sold in a registered
direct offering 1, 425, 377 shares of our common stock, at a per share price of $ 0. 92 and prefunded warrants to purchase 177, 882 shares of common stock, at
$ 0. 919 per prefunded warrant (“ Prefunded Warrant ”) (the “ November Offering ). The closing of the registered direct offering occurred on November 26,
2024. The exercise price of each Prefunded Warrant is $ 0. 001 and 177, 882 warrants were exercised in full immediately. The gross proceeds to the Company
from the offering was approximately $ 1, 474, 998, before deducting placement agent’ s fees and other offering expenses payable by the Company of
approximately $ 200, 000. On December 11, 2024, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with three institutional investors pursuant to which we
sold in a registered direct offering 1, 352, 500 shares of our common stock at a per share price of $ 1. 60 (the “ December Offering ”). The closing of the
registered direct offering occurred on December 13, 2024. The gross proceeds to the Company from this offering was approximately $ 2, 164, 000 before
deducting placement agent’ s fees and other offering expenses payable by the Company of approximately $ 220, 000. On December 16, 2024, we entered into a
Securities Purchase Agreement with two institutional investors pursuant to which we sold in a registered direct offering 1, 516, 680 shares of our common
stock at a per share price of $ 2. 10 (the “ Second December Offering ”). The closing of the registered direct offering occurred on December 18, 2024. The
gross proceeds to the Company from this offering was approximately $ 3, 185, 028 before deducting placement agent’ s fees and other offering expenses
payable by the Company of approximately $ 290, 000. On December 24, 2024, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with three institutional
investors pursuant to which we sold in a registered direct offering 1, 871, 000 shares of our common stock at a per share price of $ 3. 10 (the “ Third December
Offering ). The closing of the registered direct offering occurred on December 27, 2024. The gross proceeds to the Company from this offering was
approximately $ 5, 800, 100 before deducting placement agent’ s fees and other offering expenses payable by the Company of approximately $ 490, 000. On
December 27, 2024, we entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with three institutional investors pursuant to which we sold in a registered direct
offering 2, 173, 920 shares of our common stock, par value $ 0. 001 per share, at a per share price of $ 4. 60 (“ Fourth December Offering ”). The closing of the
registered direct offering occurred on December 31, 2024. The gross proceeds to the Company from this offering was approximately $ 10, 000, 032 before
deducting placement agent’ s fees and other offering expenses payable by the Company of approximately $ 660, 000. Pursuant to the Securities Purchase




Agreements entered into in the November Offering, December Offering, Second December Offering, Third December Offering and Fourth December
Offering we agreed to, among other things, not issue any shares of common stock for a period of 45 days after such Offerings’ respective closing dates.
Investors who participated in the November Offering, December Offering, Second December Offering and Third December Offering agreed to waive this 45-
day prohibition on issuing securities in connection with the Fourth December Offering. On March 21, 2025, we entered into an equity distribution agreement,
or the Equity Distribution Agreement, with Maxim Group LLC, or Maxim, relating to offer and sell shares of our common stock having an aggregate offering
price of up to $ 25 million from time to time through Maxim, acting as our exclusive sales agent, in an “ At- the- Market Offering ” at our discretion. Recent
Developments Asset Purchase Agreement On March 26, 2025, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement with Titan Crest, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company (the « Seller ”), and its affiliate, to purchase certain assets including intellectual property used in developing, manufacturing,
marketing and selling products that use radio frequency technology (“ 5G ORAN radio products ) (the “ Asset Purchase Agreement ). The Asset Purchase
Agreement contains customary representations and warranties and covenants by each party. In addition to customary closing conditions, the closing of the
transactions and the payment of the purchase price contemplated by the Asset Purchase Agreement is conditioned upon certain conditions, including but not
limited to (i) the issue of a purchase order from Telus for fiscal year delivery to the Company, (ii) a purchase order between the Company and the Seller or its
affiliate pursuant to which the Seller will assist in manufacturing the products to be sold to Telus to meet its purchase order, and (iii) receipt of correspondence
from Telus to the Company, indicating Telus’ intention to issue purchase orders (including Telus’ initial purchase order) which purchase orders will be spread
out over 3 years (“ Telus Subsequent Purchase Orders ). The aggregate purchase price for the assets is $ 8, 000, 000 which consists of $ 3, 000, 000 in cash and
$ 5, 000, 000 in restricted shares of common stock of which the first $ 2, 500, 000 in cash and $ 2, 500, 000 in restricted common stock will be issued upon the
procurement of the Telus’ initial purchase order and receipt of assurance of the Telus Subsequent Purchase Orders; and that the remaining $ 500, 000 in cash
to be paid on December 5, 2025 and $ 2, 500, 000 in shares of restricted common stock will be issued to Company upon the transfer of the 5G ORAN radio
products’ technology and intellectual property rights by the Seller to the Company. In addition, under the Asset Purchase Agreement, the parties are
obligated, subject to certain limitations, to indemnify the other for certain customary and other specified matters, including breaches of representations and
warranties, breaches of covenants and for certain liabilities and third- party claims. Further, the Seller and its affiliate, jointly and severally, agreed for a
period of 10 years not to engage in certain competitive activities with respect to the business or proposed business relating to the assets sold to the Company. In
addition, the Asset Purchase Agreement contemplates that after the closing, the Company and the Seller will enter short- term transition services agreements
for up to two of the Seller’ s employees to provide Company assistance in the assignment and transfer of the purchased assets from the Seller to the Company
for a fee not to exceed $ 430, 000. In connection with the transaction, Seller’ s affiliate agreed to transfer all of its rights, title and interest in 5G ORAN radio
products technology and intellectual property rights to Seller. Subsequent to the transaction, Seller’ s affiliate will continue its business and retain its
employees focusing on software solutions and services. Revolving Line of Credit On March 25, 2025, AmpliTech Group, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “
Company ), entered into a Bank Loan Agreement (the “ Loan Agreement ) with Dime Community Bank (the “ Bank ”) for a revolving line of credit for up
to $ 750, 000 (the “ Revolving Line of Credit ”). The Company has established the Revolving Line of Credit for general working purposes and uses, as needed.
As of the date of this filing, there is no outstanding balance on the Revolving Line of Credit. The term of the Loan Agreement expires once all indebtedness
under the Revolving Line of Credit has been paid in full, or until such time as the Bank and the Company agree in writing to terminate the Loan Agreement.
In addition to interest, the Company agreed to pay an annual fee of $ 500. 00 on the anniversary date of each year the Loan Agreement is in effect, subject to
change by the Bank with notice. Pursuant to an Assignment of Deposit Agreement dated March 25, 2025 between us and the Bank, the Revolving Line of
Credit is secured by a demand deposit account with the Bank which requires us to have a balance no less than $ 814, 635. The Revolving Line of Credit is
evidenced by a promissory note, which is due on demand, or if there is no demand, then on March 1, 2026, unless extended, modified or renewed (the “ Note
”). The Company has agreed to pay regular monthly payments of all accrued unpaid interest due as of each payment date, beginning April 1, 2025, with all
subsequent interest payments to be due on the same day of each month thereafter. The Note bears a variable interest rate based on changes in the Wall Street
Journal Prime Rate as published in the Wall Street Journal from time to time, plus 1. 000 %, provided however, under no circumstances will the interest rate
be less than 6. 250 % per annum or more than the maximum rate allowed by applicable law. Late payment is subject to a fee of 5. 000 % of the regularly
scheduled payment. In the event of default, the Note bears an interest at a rate per annum equal to 5. 000 % above the rate that is otherwise applicable to such
amounts. Among other things, the Loan Agreement contains customary representations and warranties, events of default, negative and affirmative covenants
and financial covenants, and certain limitations on dispositions of assets. The Loan Agreement also contains usual and customary events of default (with
customary grace periods, as applicable) and provides that, upon the occurrence of an event of default, payment of all amounts payable under the Note may be
accelerated at the Bank’ s option and / or the Bank’ s commitment and obligations will terminate without notice to the Company. Letter of Intent On March
20, 2025, the Company entered into a non- binding letter of intent with a contract manufacturer on behalf of its end user for the purchase of $ 78 million of the
Company’ s Oran radios. If fulfilled, deliveries of the order are expected to start in FY2025 and will substantially increase each year thereafter into 2027. The
non- binding letter of intent is subject to the parties entering into a series of definitive purchase orders. No assurance can be given that the Company will enter
into any purchase orders for the total amount of $ 78 million. Results of Operations As of December 31, 2023-2024 , the Company had a working capital of $ +5-26 ,
649-795 |, 254-745 and an accumulated deficit of $9-21 , 769012 , 723-127 . The Company recorded a net loss of $ 11, 242,404 and $ 2, 465, 439 and-$-677+07-for
the years ended December 31, 2023-2024 and December 31, 2022-2023 , respectively. For Years Ended December 31, 2023-2024 and December 31, 2622-2023
Revenues Sales decreased from $ 49-15 , 394-584 | 492-577 for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 to $ 459 , 584-508 , 577372 for the year ended December 31,
2023-2024 , a decrease of $3-6, 899—076 9—16—205 or dppl o\mmrcl\ -1-9-38 64—99 %. Spccrl um \d|\,~ decreased by $ 4-3 , 328-288 . 3+6-527, or 32—35 876 % .
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—Sate : inereased b\ % 5—1—8—2 49-1—787 678 or 8—43 8—3—64 % ,—pfmaﬂ-l-y— Thls decrease in sales is
attrlbutable to the tel-eeemm&mea:&eﬂ—appheﬁt—reﬁs—decrease in global demand and recessionary market dynamics affecting most of our customers across all
divisions and product lines, specifically in the Asian markets. Our RFQ (Request for Quote) activity has since increased in the first quarter of 2025 resulting in
an increase in our backlog which we believe should translate to increased sales . Cost of Goods Sold and Gross Profit Cost of goods sold decreased to § 8-6 , 308;
949172623 023, 265 in 2024 from $ +6-8 , 469-308 , 628-949 in 2022-2023 , a decrease of § 2, +66-285 , 679-684 or approximately 20-27 . 64-51 %. This decrease is
directly related to the decline in sales. As a result, the gross profit was $ 3, 485, 107 for 2024 compared to $ 7, 275, 628 for 2023 eemp&red—te%-8—9%4—864—feﬁ292-2—
a decrease of $ +3 , 649-790 , 236-521 or +8-52 . 48-10 %. Gross profit as a percentage of sales -mefe&sed—decreased t0 46-36 . 69-65 % from 46. 82-69 % , representing
—Speetrumreported-a shift in the sales mix away from our higher gross prefit-margin products, e£48—42-%-whilc maintaining fixed production and overhead
expenses Amplifeeh’s-gross-profitmargin-was44—19-%- Sclling, General and Administrative Expenses Selling, general and administrative expenses deereased
increased to $ 7, 5H-856 , 319-471 in 2023-2024 from $ 7, 629-511 , 644-319 in 2022-2023 . a-an deerease-increase of $ H8-345 . 325-152 . or approximately +4 . 55
60 %. The Company experienced a-an deerease-increase in professional fees parenteompany-expenses-, such as accounting, legal and consulting fees as well as stock
wmpummmn .—, offset by the decrease in ofﬁcers compensatlon in the second half of the year and Otherother general and administrative cxpenscs sueh-as-sates
: ' wel-. Geedwill-Intangible asset impairment As of December 31, 2022-2024 , geedwill-intangible assets,
consisting of trade name, customer relatlonshlps and mtellectual property uluud to the aequ-xs-rt-}eﬂ-purchase of Specialty was-Microwave were deemed impaired
in the amount of § 420-467 , 928 436 v £OOEW : . Research and Development Expenses
Research and development L\P(,I]dl[Lll&,\ are Llhll”Ld to opcmlltms as incurred. Iln major components of research and dc\clopmml costs include employee salaries and
benefits, consultants, outside service, and supplies. The Company’ s research and development initiative to expand its product line of low noise amplifiers to include its
new 5G and wireless infrastructure products and MMIC designs is-has pregressing-progressed significantly. Our combined engineering and manufacturing resources
are expected to complement the development of new subsystems for satellite, wireless, and 5G infrastructure, as well as advanced military and commercial markets.
Research and development costs for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-were $ 3,590, 695 and $ 2, 341, 845 and-$45-624,42F-respectively.
Research and development expenses have increased by $ 1, 347248 , 748-850 . or by 4+28-53 . 67-33 0, mainly attributable to a-resuit-ofhiring-additional-persennet
for-the AGMBEdiviston-asiteompletes-completion of our massive MIMO 64T64R Oran Cat B radio network, which provides true 5G speeds with improved
signal strength, enhanced coverage, increased user capacity and adheres to the ORAN specifications promoting openness and interoperability in radio access
networks. This radio its- is MM-I-C—des-rgn—rei-eases—T—he—currently belng tested and certlﬁed at Northeastern Umversny and is expected to become theeem-pa-ny
Company s ﬂagshlp a 3 v h A
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8, 429 987 and $ 2. a-nd—meem&from—operat-xeﬂs—ef—ﬂi—léé—%lm the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Other Income (Expenses)



As a result of the fraudulent digital currency transactions noted above, during the ycar ended December 31, 2623-2024 , the Company recorded and-—- an

impairment loss 2022;respeetively—OtherIneome(Expenses)-Aspartof § 3 ﬂe&aeqthsaﬁeﬁ-ef—s-peetf&m—%efew&v& t-h&pufehﬂs&agreemeﬁt—eeﬁtamed—a—rewmie
adjustmeﬂt—248 911 related to digital assets flihe-feveﬂue-adjasﬁﬂeﬁt-Loss on dlsposal of property and equlpment was detemed—te—be—aﬂ-afnetﬂet—eqm-l—te—lé%—ef
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------------- 5 t eat] ecorded for the year ended Dcccmbc 31 QOQQ—Gﬂ—Mafeh
29—2023 In 2024 . ﬂee—re’v‘e&ue-eameut-e-f-Spectrum was able to reclalm § 2—716 +8-9—8%6—was—ptnd—te—t-he—5el-}ef-943 of gold contained in its obsolete / slow
moving mventory Due to market fluctuations, the Company recorded an unrealized gain on investments of $ 1, 697 and-for the year ended December 31, 2023.
Realized gain on investments, resulting from the redemption of treasury bills, was $ 2—26 -343—746 and $ 131 522 for Lhe ye'ns ended Deeember 31, 2024 and
2022 aﬂd—Z(-)Q—Z—fespeet-x—vebv- Interest meeﬁae—aﬂd—mtefest—expcnsc net a :

v for the year ended Dcccmbcr 3 1, 2623-2024 —I:ess—eﬂ-d-tspes&l—ef—preperty—aﬂd—eqﬁﬁmeﬂt
was $ -1-6-292 493—195 and $—1—mterest income , 696—net for the ye&rs~ year ended December 31, 2023 and-was $ 19, 281. Interest expense increased as a result of
debt financmg obtained during the year with Altbanq. The outstanding obligations under the loan was paid in full as of December 31, 2622-2024 ;respeetively-.
Net Loss The Company reported a net loss of $ 11,242,404 and $ 2, 465, 439 and-$-67741+67-1n 2024 and 2023 and2022-, respectively. Liquidity and Capital
Resources Operating Activities The net cash used in operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 was $ 3-5 , 476-295 , 896-714, resulting primarily
from net loss , the impairment of intangible assets and the loss on investment of digital assets, as well as the operating changes in accounts receivable, inventories,
prepaid expenses, accounts payable and accrued expenses as well as customer deposits and operating lease liability. The net cash used in operating activities for the year
ended December 31, 20222023 was $ 3, 425470 , 246-890 resulting primarily from net loss and the operating changes in accounts receivable, inventories, prepaid
expenses, accounts payable and accrued expenses , as-weH-as-customer deposits and operating lease liability. Investing Activities The net cash used in investing
activities for the year ended December 31, 2024 was $ 3, 291, 831 for the purchase of property and equipment and the net investment in marketable securities.
The net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31 2023 was % 725, 899 for the purehase of plopcrty and Lqulpmem offset with the net
mvestments in mdrketdble securmes —Fhe v S r .

FmancmrY Acmmcs Thc net cash ﬂsed—m—prowded by lmancmg acll\mcs for the year Ll’ldhd Dcccmbc1
31,2024 was $ 21, 177, 516, a result of the proceeds received from the registered direct offerings and net proceeds received from notes payable offset by the
repayment of financing lease liabilities and notes payable. The net cash used in ﬁnancmg activities for the year ended December 31 2023 was § 2, 367, 420, for
the repayment of flndnemg ledse llabllmes notes pdydble and the revenue carnout. As of Fhen v e ed-December 31, %92%

Was—$%%4—2024 ay

$ -1—5-26 64-9-795 2—54—745 dnd an aeeumuldted deflut of $ 9—21 469—012 7—2—3—127 We mtend to eontmue to hnanee our mtemal glowth with eash on hand and cash
prov1dcd from operations , borrowings, debt or equity offermgs, or some combination thereof . We believe that our cash provided from operations and cash on hand
will provide enough working capital to fund our operations for the next twelve months. Critical Accounting Policies, Estimates and Assumptions The SEC defines
critical accounting policies as those that are, in management’ s view, most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations and those that
require significant judgments and estimates. The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our financial statements that
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. On an on- going basis, we evaluate our estimates including the allowance for doubtful
accounts, the salability and recoverability of inventory, the impairment analysis of intangible assets and goodwill, the valuation of stock- based compensation, income
taxes and contingencies. We base our estimates on historical experience and on other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form our basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. We cannot predict what future laws and regulations might be passed that could have a material
effect on the results of operations. We assess the impact of significant changes in laws and regulations on a regular basis and update the assumptions and estimates used
to prepare our financial statements when we deem it necessary. Basis of Accounting The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting. Principles of Consolidation The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries.
All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the periods presented. Actual results could
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.C ash and Cash hqulvalcms Thc Compdny consldcrs dcposlts that can be rcdccmcd on dcmand and mvcstmcnts and
marketable securities that have original maturities of less than three months, when purchased, to be cash equivalents. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , the Company’ s
cash and cash equivalents were deposited in five-four financial institutions. The Company’ s policy is to place its cash and cash equivalents with high- quality, major
lm'mcnl and inv estment institutions tn-eréeHo limit lhe amount oferedll exposure /\c,counls al eaeh ﬁnanual mslllullon are msured by lhe Fedeml Deposn Insurance

aﬂd%@%%— the C ompany had N 18 749 154 and $ 3 170, 5()0 aﬂd—$—l—2—949—92—2—m excess ol FDIC —S-I-P&aﬂd—e*eess—S—l-PGmsured limits, respccllwly The Company
has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Accounts Receivable Accounts receivable consist of trade receivables arising from credit sales to customers in the
normal course of business. These receivables are recorded at the time of sale, net of an allowance for current expected credit losses. In accordance with ASC Topic 326,
“ Financial Instruments — Credit Losses, ” the Company estimates expected credit losses based on historical bad debt experience, the aging of accounts receivable, the
current creditworthiness of our customers, prevailing economic conditions, and reasonable and supportable forward- looking information. An allowance of $ 0 has been
recorded at December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-, respectively. Marketable Securities The Company’ s investments in marketable securities are classified based on
the nature of the securities and their availability for use in current operations. The Company’ s marketable securities are stated at fair value with all realized and
unrealized gains and losses on investments in marketable equity securities recognized in other income, net. The realized and unrealized gains and losses on marketable
securities are determined using specific identification metheds— methoed . Inventories Inventories, which eensists— consist primarily of raw materials, work in progress
and finished goods, are stated at the lower of cost (first- in, first- out basis) or market (net realizable value). Inventory quantities and related values are analyzed at the
end of each fiscal quarter to determine those items that are slow moving and obsolete. An inventory reserve is recorded for those items determined to be slow moving
with a corresponding charge to cost of goods sold. Inventory items that are determined obsolete are written off currently with a corresponding charge to cost of goods
sold. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2022-, the reserve for inventory obsolescence was $ 1, +46-062 , 000 and $ 1, 428-146 , 000, respectively. Property and
Equipment Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the related assets using the straight- line method for
financial statement purposes. Amortization of leasehold improvements is computed using the straight- line method over the shorter of the remaining lease term or the
estimated useful lives of the improvements. Property and equipment are depreciated as follows: Description Useful Life Method Office equipment 3 to 7 years Straight-
line Machinery and-/ shop equipment 7 to +8-15 years Straight- line Computer equipment ané-/ software 1 to 7 years Straight- line Vehicles 5 years Straight- line
Leasehold improvements 7 years Straight- line Intangible Assets Definite- lived intangible assets including customer relationships and intellectual property are subject
to amortization. Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful life on a straight- line basis. Estimated useful lives are determined considering the period the
assets are expected to contribute to future cash flows. Indefinite- lived intangible assets are not subject to amortization. Intangible assets are amortized as follows:
Description Useful Life Method Trade names Indefinite N / A Customer relationships 15 to 20 years Straight- line Intellectual property 15 years Straight- line Long-
Lived Assets The Company reviews the carrying value of long- lived assets such property and equipment, right- of- use (“ ROU ”) assets, and definite- lived intangible
assets are-reviewed-for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Circumstances
which could trigger a review include, but are not limited to; significant decrease in the market price of the asset; significant adverse changes in the business climate or
legal factors; current period cash flow or operating losses combined with a history of losses or a forecast of continuing losses associated with the use of the asset; and
current expectation that the asset will more likely than not be sold or disposed of significantly before the end of its estimated useful life. The recoverability of assets to
be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated undiscounted future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount



of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying
amount of falr value Iess costs to sell and would no longer be deprecmted The depleuable basis ofasbetb that are impaired and continue in use is their respective fair
~BPurine P A a . Goodwill and Indefinite- Lived Intangible Assets We
tollow the '1cqu1§1t10n melhod of '1c&,0untmg to rec,ord the assets and 11'1b111t1es ofacquned busmesses at thelr estimated fair value at the date of acquisition. We initially
record goodwill for the amount the consideration transferred exceeds the acquisition- date fair value of net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired. Goodwill
and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually on December 31, or more frequently when events or
circumstances indicate an impairment may have occurred. When assessing the recoverability of goodwill and indefinite- lived intangible assets, the Company may first
assess qualitative factors in determining whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit, including goodwill, or an indefinite- lived intangible
asset is less than its carrying amount. The qualitative assessment is based on several factors, including the current operating environment, industry and market
conditions, and overall financial performance. The Company may elect to bypass this qualitative assessment for some or all of its reporting units or other indefinite-
lived intangible assets and perform a quantitative assessment, based on management - s judgment. If we quantitatively test goodwill and indefinite- lived intangible
assets for possible impairment, we calculate the fair value for the reporting unit and indefinite- lived assets and compare the amount to their carrying amount. If the fair
value of a reporting unit and indefinite- lived asset exceeds their carrying amount, the reporting unit and indefinite- lived assets are not considered impaired. If the
carrying amount of the reporting unit and indefinite- lived assets exeeeds— exceed their fair value, the reporting unit and indefinite- lived assets are considered to be
impaired, and an impairment charge is recognized for the difference. We estimate the fair value of our reporting units and indefinite- lived intangible assets based on the
present value of estimated future cash flows. Considerable management judgment is necessary to evaluate the impact of operating and macroeconomic changes and to
estimate the future cash flows used to measure fair value. Our estimates of future cash flows consider past performance, current and anticipated market conditions and
mtemal pm]ectlom and operatmg plam Addmonal "msumptlom include forecasted growth rates, estlmated discount rates zmd estimated royalty rates f01 ouriﬂdeﬁﬂrte-

mdeﬁmte llved mtanglble assets. lnvestment Pollcy» Cmt Method Inveﬁtmentq consist ot non-
Lontrollm& equlty mvestments in pnvately held companies. The Company elected the measurement alternative for these investments without readily determinable fair
values and for which the Company does not control or have the ability to exercise considerable influence over operating and financial policies. These investments are
accounted for under the cost method of accounting. Under the cost method of accounting, the non- marketable equity securities are carried at cost less any impairment,
adjusted for observable price changes of similar investments of the same issuer. Fair value is not estimated for these investments if there are no identified events or
changes in circumstances that may influence the fair value of the investment. Under this method, the Company’ s share of the earnings or losses of such investee
companies is not included in the consolidated balance sheet or consolidated statements of operations. The Company held $ 348, 250 of investments without readily
determinable fair values at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 , respectively. (sce Note 9). These investments are included in other assets on the consolidated
balance sheets. There were no indicators of impairment during the year-years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 . Investment in Digital Assets We account for all
digital assets as indefinite- lived intangible assets in accordance with ASC Topic 350, “ Intangibles — Goodwill and Other. ” The Company presents digital
assets separately from other intangible assets, recorded as digital assets on the consolidated balance sheets. The digital assets are initially recorded at cost and
are subsequently remeasured at cost, net of any impairment losses incurred since acquisition. We conducted an analysis to identify whether events or changes
in circumstances, principally decreases in the quoted prices on active exchanges, indicate that it is more likely than not that our digital assets are impaired. In
determining if an impairment has occurred, we consider the lowest market price of one unit of digital asset quoted on the active exchange since acquiring the
digital asset. When the then current carrying value of a digital asset exceeds the fair value determined each quarter, an impairment loss has occurred with
respect to those digital assets in the amount equal to the difference between their carrying values and the prices determined. Gains are not recorded until
realized upon sale (s), at which point they are presented net of any impairment losses for the same digital assets. In determining the gain to be recognized upon
sale, we calculate the difference between the sales price and carrying value of the digital assets sold immediately prior to sale . [.cases We lease property and
equipment under finance and operating leases. For leases with terms greater than 12 months, we record the related asset and obligation at the present value of lease
payments over the lease term. The Company has elected not to separate lease and non- lease components for all property leases for the purpose of calculating ROU
assets and lease liabilities. Many of our leases include rental escalation clauses, renewal options and / or termination options that are factored into our determination of
lease payments when appropriate. When available, we use the rate implicit in the lease to discount lease payments to present value; however, most of our leases do not
provide a readily determinable implicit rate. Therefore, we must estimate our incremental borrowing rate to discount the lease payments based on information available
at lease commencement. The incremental borrowing rate is the rate of interest that a lessee would have to pay to borrow on a collateralized basis considering such
factors as lease term and economic environment risks. Revenue Recognition We sell our products through a combination of a direct sales force in the United States and
independent sales representatives in international markets. Revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of promised goods based on the consideration we
expect to receive in exchange for these goods. This core principle is achieved through the following steps: Identify the contract with the customer. A contract with a
customer exists when (i) we enter into an enforceable contract with a customer that defines each party’ s rights regarding the goods to be transferred and identifies the
payment terms related to these goods, (ii) the contract has commercial substance and, (iii) we determine that collection of substantially all consideration for services that
are transferred is probable based on the customer’ s intent and ability to pay the promised consideration. We do not have significant costs to obtain contracts with
customers. For commissions on product sales, we have elected the practical expedient to expense the costs as incurred. Identify the performance obligations in the
contract. Qur Generalty;-eur-contracts with customers do not include multiple performance obligations to be completed over a period. Our performance obligations
generallyrelate to delivering single- use products to a customer, subject to the shipping terms of the contract. Limited warranties are provided, under which we typically
accept returns and provide either replacement parts or refunds. We do not have significant returns. We do not typically offer extended warranty or service plans.
Determine the transaction price. Payment by the customer is due under customary fixed payment terms, and we evaluate if collectability is reasonably assured. None of
our contracts as of December 31, 2623-2024 contained a significant financing component. Revenue is recorded at the net sales price, which includes estimates of
variable consideration such as product returns, rebates, discounts, and other adjustments. The estimates of variable consideration are based on historical payment
experience, historical and projected sales data, and current contract terms. Variable consideration is included in revenue only to the extent that it is probable that a
significant reversal of the revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Taxes collected
from customers relating to product sales and remitted to governmental authorities are excluded from revenues. Allocate the transaction price to performance obligations
in the contract. We typically do not have multiple performance obligations in our contracts with customers. We recognize revenue upon transfer of the product to the
customer’ s control at contractually stated pricing. Recognize revenue when or as we satisfy a performance obligation. We generally satisfy performance obligations at a
point in time upon either shipment or delivery of goods, in accordance with the terms of each contract with the customer. We do not have significant service revenue.
Cost of Sales We include product costs such material, direct labor, overhead costs, production- related depreciation expense, outside labor and production supplies in
cost of sales. Shipping and Handling Shipping and handling charges are generally incurred at the customer’ s expense. However, when billed to our customers, shipping
and handling charges are included in net sales for the applicable period, and the corresponding shipping and handling expense is reported in the cost of sales. In
accordance with ASC Topic 730, “ Rescarch and Development, ” the Company expenses research and development costs expenditires-are-charged-to-operattons-as
incurred. The major components of research and development costs include payroll, consultants, outside service, and supplies . Research and development costs for
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 were $ 3, 590, 695 and $ 2, 341, 845, respectively . Income Taxes The Company’ s deferred tax assets and liabilities
for the expected future tax consequences of events that-have been included in the financial statements or tax returns. Under this method, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are determined based on the differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and tax bases of certain assets and liabilities using enaeted-tax rates
enacted in effect in the years in which the differences are expected to reverse. The deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified according to the financial statement
classification of the assets and liabilities generating the differences. Valuation allowances are established when necessary sto reduce deferred tax assets to the amount
expected to be realized. The ASC prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The ASC provides guidance on de- recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosure and trammon At Dcccmbcr 31, 2024 and 2023 aﬂd%@Q%— the Comp"my had no material unrccogmzcd tax bcncmi Em-mgs—Loss Per Sharc Baslc eafm-ﬂgs
loss per share are-deter y HHIES e-wetg g
Dikuted-EPS-is defefmmed-calculated by d1v1d1ng net eafm-ngs—loss by the wc1ghtcd av L,l"]gC numbcr of shares of common stock outstandmg durlng each perlod
Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of sharcs used-irthe-baste- EPS-eatenlation-phus-the-number-of common shafes—t-hﬂt-
stock outstanding for the dilutive effect, if any, of common stock equivalents. Common stock equivalents whose effect would be anti- 1
ofall-potentially-dilutive seeurities-ontstanding-under-are not included in diluted loss per share. The Company uses the treasury stock method to determine the
dilutive effect, which assumes that all common stock equivalents have been exercised at the beginning of the period and that the funds obtained from those
exercises were used to repurchase shares of common stock of the Company at the average closing market price during the period . As of December 31, 2024




and 2023 and-2022- there were 4, 594, 442 and 4, 545, 442 and-4:235-442-, respectively, petentialy— potential diutiveshares-thatneed-to-be-eonsidered-as-common
share equivalents —As-a-result-of from stock options, warrants and restricted stock units which have been excluded from the net-diluted loss per -the-petentially
dilutive-shares— share calculations thatneed-te-be-eonsidered-as eemmeﬂ-shafe—eqtﬂ*a%eﬂts—fe&ﬂae—thelr effect is wm—enéeé—BeeenﬂseH—l—%%—md%@%%—are—ann—
dilutive. Fair Value Measurements The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount that could be received upon the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Financial assets are marked to bid prices , and financial liabilities are marked to offer prices.
Fair value measurements do not include transaction costs. A fair value hierarchy is used to prioritize the quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair
values. Categorization within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The fair value hierarchy is
defined in the following three categories: Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices that are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.
Level 2: Significant other observable inputs available at the measurement date, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, either directly or indirectly. Level 3:
Significant unobservable inputs that cannot be corroborated by observable market data and reflect the use of significant management judgment. Cash and cash
equivalents, receivables, inventery-inventories , prepaid expenses, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and customer deposits approximate fair value, due to their
short- term nature. The carrying value of notes payable and short and long- term debt also approximates fair value since these instruments bear market rates of interest.
Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis relate primarily to long- lived assets, intangible assets, and goodwill, which are remeasured
when the derived fair value is below carrying value in the consolidated balance sheets. Stock- Based Compensation The Company records stock- based compensation in
accordance with ASC Topic 718, Compensation* Share - Stoek-Compensation-Based Payments . ” All transactions in which goods or services are the consideration
received for the issuance of equity instruments are accounted for based on the fair value of the consideration received or the fair value of the equity instrument issued,
whichever is more reliably measurable. Equity instruments issued to employees and the cost of the services received as consideration are measured and recognized
based on the fair value of the equity instruments issued and are recognized over the employees required service period, which is generally the vesting period.
Concentration of Credit Risk Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents,
marketable securities and accounts receivable. The Company places its cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities with high- quality, major financial and
investment institutions in order to limit the amount of credit exposure. For accounts receivable, the Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and
maintains allowances for potential credit losses. Sales to the Company’ s largest customer rcprcsullcd appmxmﬂlcly 13. 97 % and 8. 45 % of total sales for the year
years ended December 31,2024 and 2023 , respectively . As of December 31, 2022-2024 th v s-tha pted o-and +6—60-%-of
feta-l-re‘veﬂue—ﬁs—ef—BeeemberZ()% and-2022-, there were two vendors llml accounted for 33. 05 % and 11 69 %, and 33 14 % "md 17 18 %—aﬂd—44—lé—%—aﬂd
20-29-%, respectively, of total component parts purchased. ReeentRecently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements In June 2016, the FASB issued...... on our
consolidated financial statement disclosures. In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023- 07, * Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable
Segment Disclosures, ” which updates reportable segment feqtrrres—a—pab-l-te—err&t-rte—d-)se}esedlsclosure requlrements by requiring disclosures of significant
reportable scgment expenses that are regularly an mentitems-on-an-annaal-an a e-provided in-interim-periods-all-diselosures
about-to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“ CODM ”) and 1ncluded within each reportable——- reported measure of a segment’ s profit or loss and-assets-that
are-eurrently-. ASU 2023- 07 also required-requires annually-disclosure of the title and position of the individual identified as the CODM and an explanation of
how the CODM uses the reported measures of a segment’ s profit or loss in assessing segment performance and deciding how to allocate resources . ASU 2023-
07 is effective for fisealyrears-annual periods beginning after Dcccmbcr 15, 202? and interim pcrmds mthm fiscal years bwmmng after Dcccmbm 15,2024 . The 5
withrearky-adoption of ASU 2023- 07 did not have a material perm he refdn ¢ v ar ng-the-impact
this-standard-will-have-on enr-the Company’ s consolidated financial st&temeﬂt-statements dtse}esufes- Recently Issued Accountmg Pronouncements Not Yet
Adopted In August 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023- 05, * Business Combinations — Joint Venture Formations (Subtopic 805- 60): Recognition and Initial
Measurement, ” which requires a newly- formed joint venture to apply a new basis of accounting to its contributed net assets, resulting in the joint venture initially
measuring its contributed net assets at fair value on the formation date. ASU 2023- 05 is effective for all joint venture formations with a formation date on or after
January 1, 2025, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are to be applied prospectively, with retrospective application permitted for joint ventures formed
bctole the ettecme ddte We—af&The Company is Lurrent]y ev dluatmg the ]]ﬂdeT t]ns stdndard will hd\e on euﬂts Lonsol]ddted tummml da-te—based—eﬁ-h-tsteﬁea-l-

his-guidane rot-have-an-n HE-CORSD - Rane St”lTCHlt.l]ts In Dcccmbc1 2023 thc PASB 1ssucd ASU 2023- 09 - Incomc Taxcs (Toplc
740):Improvements to Income Tax Diso]osures W hth enhances the transparency and decision usefulness of income tax disclosures by requiring;(1) consistent
categories and greater disaggregation of information in the rate reconciliation and (2) income taxes paid disaggregated by jurisdiction.It also includes certain other
amendments to improve the effectiveness of income tax disclosures. ASU 2023- 09 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,2025,with early adoption
permitted. These amendments are to be applied prospectively,with retrospective application permitted. ¥We-are-The Company is currently evaluating the impact this
standard will have on ewt-its consolidated financial statement-statements .In November 2024,the FASB issued ASU 2024- 03,“ Income Statement — Reporting
Comprehensive Income — Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220- 40):Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses,” which requires the
disaggregated disetosures— disclosure —of specific expense categories,including purchases of inventory,employee comp tion,depreciation,and amortization
included in each relevant expense caption presented on the statcment of operations. The standard also requires diselosures— disclosure of qualitative description
of the amounts remaining in relevant expense captions that are not separately disaggregated quantitatively, as well as the total amount of selling expenses and
an entity’ s definition of selling expenses. ASU 2024- 03 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2026, and interim periods beginning after
December 15, 2027. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on its consolidated financial statements. The Company currently
believes there are no other issued and not yet effective accounting standards that are materially relevant to its lidated financial stat ts . Off Balance
Sheet Transactions As of December 31, 2623-2024 , we did not have any off- balance sheet arrangements. ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK The Company is a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b- 2 of the Exchange Act and is not required to
provide the information required under this item. [TEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA The

Conselidated-Finanetal-financial Statements-statements Foerrequired by this item begin on page F- 1 with thc ¥earsEnded-index to financial statements followed
by the financial statements. ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures Under the supervision and with the
participation of management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures as of December 31, eastemers- Andrew Lee,age 4440 has served as a director of the Company since January 2021.Mr.Lee serves as the
chairman of the Audit Committee.Mr.Lee is a licensed CPA and holds his MBA degree from Washington State University.Mr.Lee received his Bachelor of Business
Administration,with concentrations in Finance and Accounting,from Walla Walla University. Mr.Lee is-eurrenthy-serving-began working at RealWear in 2017 as a
CFO efSeytheRebeties- Prior to joining RealWear Seythe-Robeties- Mr.Lce served-led Finance and Operations as the CFO of ReatWear-and-Ryonct Corporation,a
high- growth firm in Vancouver, Washington.Mr.Lee’ s finance and accounting experience qualifies him to serve on our beard-Board of direetors-Directors .Danicl
Mazziota,age 786 ,has served as a director of the Company since January 2021.He serves as the chairman of the Compensation Committee.Mr.Mazziota founded
Microwave Power Devices,Inc.in 1967,which he sold in +986-1981 to Macom Technology Solutions,a Nasdaq listed developer and producer of radio,microwave,and
millimeter wave semiconductor devices and components.He served as the President of Microwave Power Devices,Inc.until his retirement in 1988.He is currently has
sewed—as—presldent of IDM Consulting s-mee—l-96§-,whlch 2023 , the Board adopted a Pollcy for the Recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensatlon (the «

sets—fert-h—eeﬁa-m—mfeﬂﬁ&t—ren—mth respect to lhc beneficial ow nushlp of our voting scuultlcs by @) cach director and namcd executive OHILCI ,(ii) all executive oﬂlcus
and directors as a group;and (iii) each shareholder known to be the beneficial owner of 5 % or more of the outstanding common stock of the Company as of March 27
13 , 2025-2024 .Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC.Generally,a person is considered to beneficially own securities:(i) over
which such person,directly or indirectly,exercises sole or shared voting or investment power,and (ii) of which such person has the right to acquire beneficial ownership
at any time within 60 days (such as through exercise of stock options or warrants).For purposes of computing the percentage of outstanding shares held by each person
or group of persons,any shares that such person or persons has the right to acquire within 60 days are deemed to be outstanding but are not deemed to be outstanding for
the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.The inclusion herein of any shares listed as beneficially owned does not constitute an admission
of beneficial ownership.Unless otherwise indicated below,the address of each person listed in the table below is ¢ / o 155 Plant Avenue,Hauppauge,NY 11788.Amount
and Nature of Beneficial Ownership Common Stock (1) Name and Address of Beneficial Owner No.of Shares % of Class Directors and Officers Fawad
Magbool,Chairman,President,and Chief Executive Officer 2, §98-824 , 364-504 (2) +4-29 . 6-07 % Louisa Sanfratello,Chief Financial Officer 2797 ,500 (3) +1.0 %



Jorge Flores 422-76 , 580-917 (4) * % Danicl Mazziota 276;-237. 618 (5) +2 . 46-45 %, Matthew Kappers 43,750 (6) * Andrew Lee 595756-43750 (6) =Shaesh~
SennyMedi—" All ()ll]cux and directors as a ”I()llp (76 persons) 3, 484-324 . 732-16-039 34 . 22 6-%-5-%Steekholders Bard-Asseeiatessine+35-Seuth-EaSalte

St > 4 9% * Less than 1 % 1) Based on 49-9 , 658-717 . 966-113 shares of common stock issued and outstanding .2) Includes

issuable-tpon-exereis v ek-options 2-to purchase 175,000 shares of common stock 3) lmludu 87 (1)2:663;364-shares-of eommon

stock-a ares ne 3 ,500 options to purchase shares of
common stock. 4) Includes (-1-62 917 optmns to purchase shares 0f common stock. 5 )2§-Includes 34 375 optlons to purchase shares of common stock 6) Includes
13,750 options to purchase of common stockITEM 13.CERTAIN RELATIONSHIP AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS,AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE.We had no transactions since the beginning of the fiscal year of 2022,or any currently proposed transaction,in which the Company was to
be a participant and the amount involved exceeded or exceeds $ 120 .000 shares-ofeommon-steek-and in which any related person had or will have a direct or
indirect material interest (other than compensation described [ndependent Registered Public Accounting Firm The following table shows the aggregate fees
incurred for professional services provided to us for 2024 and 2023:2024 2023 Audit Fees $ 255,460 $ 150,100 Audit- Related Fees $- $- Tax Fees $ 10,885 $
6,665 All Other Fees-- Total $ 266,345 $ 156,765 $265;836-Audit Fees For the years ended December 31, 2023-2024 and 2022-2023 ,we paid-incurred $ H3-255
666-460 and $ +36-150 , 962-100, respectively for professional services rendered for the audit and review of our financial statements.Audit Related Fees For the years

ended December 31, 2023-2024 and 2622-2023 ,we paid-incurred approximately $ 0 36;500-and-$-F5548;-respectively, for audit related services. Tax Fees For our years
ended December 31, 2623-2024 and 2022-2023 ,we paid-incurred $ 10,885 and $ 6,665 and-$-3;420-respectively.for professional services rendered for tax

compliance,tax advice,and tax planning.All Other Fees We did not incur any other fees related to services rendered by our independent registered public accounting firm
fo] thL wars wdui I)cccmbu ,l 2-(-)2—3—2024 and 202%—2023 Policy on Pre- Approval by Audit Commlttee Pehetes—aﬁd—llreeeduresﬁs-of Servnces Performed by
pointed-three-independen Independent Auditors The ¢ 8 W
ee-as-the-chatraran 8 eomn 5 itysthe-audit committee pre- approves all audits (mcludmg dlldlt related) and permitted non- dlldlt services to be
performed by the 111dcpcndcnl auditors. Thc audit commlllu. will annually approve the scope and fee estimates for the year- end audit to be performed by the Company’
s independent auditors for the fiscal year.With respect to other permitted services,the audit committee pre- approves specific engagements,projects and categories of
services on a fiscal year basis,subject to individual projects and annual maximums.To date,the Company has not engaged its auditors to perform any non- audit related
service.The Audit Committee pre- approved all services provided by our independent registered public accounting firm.All the above services and fees during 2623
2024 were pre- approved by our Audit Committee.All the above services in 2623-2024 were reviewed and approved by our Audit Committee either before or after the
respective services were rendered.Item 15.Exhibits and F nmncml Statcmcnt Schedules.(a) Documents Tllcd as part of this Annual Report.1.Report of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm A 6 A 3 and-(PCAOB 1D ?(O7)F—l—(onsolld1lcd Balance Sheets
as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and S p ' v cemb F- 3 Consolidated
Statements of Operatlons -Steekhel-ders—Equﬁy—lm the years cndcd December l 2024 and 2023 aﬁd%@%—Z—F 4 (onsohdalcd Smcmum of €ash-Flows-Changes in
Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-F'- 5 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023 F- 6 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F- Fees-- Total $ 156,765 $ 205,030 Audit Fees For the years ended December 31,2023 and
2022,we paid $ 113,600 and $ 130,062 respectively for professional services rendered for the audit and review of our financial statements.Audit Related Fees
For the years ended December 31,2023 and 2022,we paid approximately $ 36,500 and $ 71,548, respectively,for audit related services.Tax Fees For our years
ended December 31,2023 and 2022,we paid $ 6,665 and $ 3,420 respectively,for professional services rendered for tax compliance,tax advice,and tax
planning.All Other Fees We did not incur any other fees related to services rendered by our independent registered public accounting firm for the years ended
December 31,2023 and 2022.Pre- Approval Policies and Procedures As of January 20,2021,the Board of Directors appointed three independent directors to a
newly appointed audit committee and appointed Andrew Lee as the chairman of the audit committee.In its capacity,the audit committee pre- approves all
audits (including audit- related) and permitted non- audit services to be performed by the independent auditors.The audit committee will annually approve
the scope and fee estimates for the year- end audit to be performed by the Company’ s independent auditors for the fiscal year.With respect to other permitted
services,the audit committee pre- approves specific engagements,projects and categories of services on a fiscal year basis,subject to individual projects and
annual maximums.To date,the Company has not engaged its auditors to perform any non- audit related service.The Audit Committee pre- approved all
services provided by our independent registered public accounting firm.All the above services and fees during 2023 were pre- approved by our Audit
Committee.All the above services in 2023 were reviewed and approved by our Audit Committee either before or after the respective services were
rendered.Item 15.Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.(a) Documents filed as part of this Annual Report.1.Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID 3627) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,2023 and 2022 F- 2Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years
ended December 31,2023 and 2022 F- 3Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31,2023 and 2022 F-
4Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31,2023 and 2022 F- SNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements F- 6 2.Financial
Statement SchedulesExhibits:Exhibit No. Description 3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of AmpliTech Group.Inc.(incorporated by reference to the
Current Report on Form 8- K filed ea-December 28,2020) 3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of AmpliTech Group,Inc.(incorporated by reference to the Current Report
on Form 8- K filed ea-December 28,2020) 3.3 Amended and Restated Series A Convertible Preferred Stock Certificate of Designation (incorporated by reference to the
Current Report on Form 8- K filed es-December 28,2020) 3.4 Certificate of Amendment,filed with the Secretary of State of Nevada (incorporated by reference to the
Current Report on Form 8- K filed en-February 19,2021) 3.5 Certificate of Correction,filed with the Secretary of State of Nevada (incorporated by reference to the
Current Report on Form 8- K filed es-February 19,2021) 4.1 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant (incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8- K
filed eﬁ-Fch]uan 1() 202 l) 4 2 * Warrant /\g.nu /\uccmcnl dated February 14,2024 by and between AmpliTech Group,Inc.and VStock Transfer LLC tineerporated

v i pti 4.3 Form of Representative” s Warrant (incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form
8 K lllt,d eﬂ-FLbllely ‘) 2021 ) 4. 4-’LDcsc11p110n 01 ( apllal Slock (mcorporated by reference to Form 10- K ﬁled March 31 2021) 4.5 Form ol Warrant

§ 10.+3 C ommclcm] guaranty 01 Ampl]chh (noup lnc ,dated Scplcmbu
12,2019 (mcotpomtcd by tu‘crcncc to the (uncnt chmt on Form 8- K hlcd on Scptunbu 18,2019) 10. 2-4 Lease agreement,dated September 12,2019,by and between
AmpliTech Group,Inc.and Stephen J.Faber,as Trustee of the Revocable Trust of Stephen J.Faber,dated August 29,2017 (incorporated by 1clucncc to the Current Report
on Form 8- K filed on September 18,2019) 10. 3-5 Exclusive Distribution Agreement,dated November 9,2016,by and between AmpliTech Inc,and distributor
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1 filed on December 10,2020) 10. 4-6 Advisory Agreement,dated
February 14,2018,by and between AmpliTech Group,Inc.and with Sunbiz Holdings Corp.(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’ s Registration
Statement on Form S- 1 filed on December 10,2020) 10. 5-7 Business Loan Agreement with BNB Bank,dated November 20,2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.10 to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1 filed on December 10,2020) 10. 6-8 Promissory Note issued to BNB Bank,dated November 20,2020
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 1 filed on December 10,2020) 10. 9 Amended and Restated 2020
Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 8 filed en-February 6,2024) 10. 8-10 Asset
Purchase Agreement dated November 19,2021 (incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8- K filed ea-November 19,2021) 10. 9-11 Employment
Agreement with Jorge Flores dated February 21,2022 (incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8- K filed esrFebruary 22,2022) 10. $46-12 Amendment
to Employment Agreement with Jorge Flores dated March 27,2023 (incorporated by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10- K filed on March 31,2023) 10. 413
Amendment to Employment Agreement with Jorge Flores dated March 20,2024 (incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8- K filed on March 26,2024)
l() -1—2—14 me of Director Agreement (mcmpoml«.d h\ reference to the Current chmt on Form 8- K 111cd eﬁ-l'\nuan 76 ()2’)+9—1-3—Busmess—l:eﬁﬂ-ﬂﬂd—$eeuﬁt—y
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1eleleme to E\hlbll 21.1to 1he C ompanv S Re;_,]suallon §1alemenl on Form § 1 fled on August 13,2012) 23.1 L( onsent ol @'1d]e1 (nbb & Associates,LLC 31.1 E
Rule 13a- 14 (a) / 15d- 14 (a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer 31.2 £%Rule 13a- 14 (a) / 15d- 14 (a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer 32.1 &%
Section 1350 C Llllll(.'lllon ofPrmupal EX(.(.UII\(. Officer 32.2 ¥#%Section 1350 C L.lllll(.allOn of Principal Financial Officer 97.1 Clawback Policy {ineerporated-by

S s 101.INS #Inline XBRL Instance Document (the instance document
does not appear in the Inluaullw Dala Fll(. buausu its XBRL tags are embedded \\1lhm lhg Inline XBRL document) 101.SCH #Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension
Schema Document 101.CAL #Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 101.DEF *Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
Dm,unu,nl 101. LAB '*—Illllﬂ(, XBRL Tﬂxonom\ Exu,nslon Labd Llnkbasu Dounmm 101.PRE #-Inline XBRL Tﬂmnomv Exu,nslon PlL,S(.nl'lllOn Linkbase Douumunl

ITEM 16. ‘ORM 10- K SU]\/IMARY SIGNAT URl:S I’L ant to the requn'ements m‘ Sect]on 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,thereunto duly authorized. AmpliTech Group,Inc.Date: Mareh-3+April 1, 2625-2024 By:/ s / Fawad
Magbool Fawad Magbool President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.Name Title Date / s
/ Fawad Maqgbool President,Chief Executive Officer and April 1,2024 Fawad Magbool Chairman of the Board of Directors (Principal Executive Officer) /s /
Louisa Sanfratello Chief Financial Officer and Secretary April 1,2024 Louisa Sanfratello (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) / s / Andrew Lee
Director April 1,2024 Andrew Lee / s / Daniel Mazziota Director April 1,2024 Daniel Mazziota / s / Matthew Kappers Director April 1,2024 Matthew Kappers
Exhibit 4.2 AMPLITECH GROUP,INC.VSTOCK TRANSFER,LLC,as Warrant Agent Warrant Agency Agreement Dated as of February 14,2024
WARRANT AGENCY AGREEMENT WARRANT AGENCY AGREEMENT,dated as of February 14,2024 (“ Agreement ”),between AmpliTech
Group,Inc.,a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Nevada (the “ Company ”),and VStock Transfer,LLC,a California limited liability company
(the “ Warrant Agent ”),)WITNE S S E T HWHEREAS,the Company previously entered into a certain warrant agency agreement with Manhattan
Transfer Registrar Co.(“ Manhattan Transfer Agent ) dated February 16,2021 (the “ Manhattan Warrant Agency Agreement ) pursuant to a registered
offering by the Company of 1,371,428 Units (the “ Offering ”),with each Unit consisting of one (1) share of the Company’ s 6REPORTF7REPORT OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of AmpliTech Group, Inc.: Opinion on the Financial
Statements We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of AmpliTech Group, Inc. (“ the Company ™) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-,
the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two- year period ended December 31, 2623-2024 and
the related notes (collectively referred to as the “ financial statements ). In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the two-
year period ended December 31, 2023-2024 , in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Basis for Opinion These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company” s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’ s financial statements based on
our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“ PCAOB ”) and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to
have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’ s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. Critical Audit Matters
Fhe-eritieal-Critical audit matters eemmunieated-below-are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that were communicated or required
to be communicated to the audit committee and that +(1) related- relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our
especially challenging, sub]eun e, or u)mp]ex j-ud-geme% Judgments qlhe-eemmtm-reahen-e-FWe determmed that there were no cr mml audit matters éees—net—a-l-eef

i d h od iseo y tons-. / s Sadlur (nbb & As%ocmlw LL( We ha\g suwd as llu Lommny s auditor since 2013. Dmpu UT
Aprﬂ—l—March 31 %92-4—2025 Consolldated Bdlancc Sheets December 31, December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Assets Current Assets Cash and cash equivalents $ 19, 315,
984 $ 6, 726, 013 $437296:222-Accounts receivable 1, 256, 725 2, 542, 710 5-804-F69-Inventories, net 7, 588, 764 6, 537, 578 6,632,121+ Marketable-seeurities—
247-450-Prepaid expenses 169, 913 1, 342, 335 $94:-635-Total Current Assets 28,331,386 17, 148, 636 22,466,497 Property and equipment, net 2, 253, 695 2, 599,
448 2:023;-687-Operating lease right of use assets 4, 399, 975 3, 538, 798 4.49%-324-Intangible assets, net 2, 366, 119 2, 984, 133 35:434:408-Goodwill 4, 696, 883 4,
696, 883 Cost method investment 348, 250 348, 250 Seeurity-Long- term deposits 824, 174 91, 481 H3;485-Total Assets $ 43,220,482 $ 31, 407, 629 $36;679;-634
Liabilities and Stockholders” Equity Current Liabilities Accounts payable and accrued expenses 941, 408 $ 846, 179 $-866,366-Customer deposits 128, 089 14, 239
2+0;-848-Current portion of finaneing-finance lcase obligations 16, 522 16, 799 33;480-Current portion of operating lease obligations 449, 622 541, 324 586;:379
Current portion of notes payable = 80, 841 +44;-358Revenue-earnout-—2180,-826-Total Current Liabilities 1, 535, 641 1, 499, 382 4—9-1-6%5—7—Long term Liabilities
Finanetng-Finance lcasc obligations, net of current portion 15, 478 32, 537 49:-336-Operating lease obligations, net of current portion 4, 139,562 3, 171, 979 3;-768;
932-Deferred tax liability 39, 000 24, 000 —Netes-payablenetofeurrent-portion—89,-597-Total Liabilities 5, 729, 681 4, 727, 898 #-924:422-Commitments and
Contingencies-- Stockholders” Equity Common stock, par value $ 0. 001, 500, 000, 000 shares authorized, 19, 656, 460 and 9, 714 ;-613-and-9;-634-, 613 shares issued
and outstanding, respectively 19, 656 9, 715 9;-635-Additional paid- in capital 58, 483, 272 36, 439, 739 36;-656;+6+Accumulated deficit ( 21, 012, 127) (9, 769, 723 ¥
4304;284-) Total Stockholders” Equity 37, 490, 801 26, 679, 731 28755542 Total Liabilities and Stockholders” Equity $ 43, 220,482 $ 31, 407, 629 $36;679:634
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements AmphFeeh-Group;-Ine—Consolidated Statements of Operations 2024 Fer-the-Years-Ended-Deeember
342023 and20222623-2022-Revenues $ 9,508,372 $ 15, 584, 577 $49:394:492-Cost of Goods Sold 6, 023, 265 8, 308, 949 +6;469:-628-CGross Profit 3, 485, 107 7,
275, 628 8;924:-864-Operating Expenses Selling, general and administrative 7, 856, 471 7, 511, 319 7-629;-644-Geodwillimpairment-Impairment of intangible assets
467, 928 - +26:136-Rescarch and development 3,590, 695 2, 341, 845 5024427 Total Operating Expenses 11, 915,094 9, 853, 164 87737967 meeme-Loss y-From




Operations ( 8, 429, 987) (2, 577, 536) $50;:957-Other Income (Expenses) Loss on eentingentrevente-earnount-investment in digital assets (3, 248, 911) - (815788
Loss on disposal of property and equipment = (16, 403 345-666-) Unrealized gain on investments - 1, 697 2-Other income 716 . 343-943- Realized gain on investments
26,746 131, 522 —Interest Income (expense), net (292, 195) 19, 281 @35-643)-Total Other Income (Expenses) (2, 797, 417) 136, 097 (828;-864>-Net Loss Before
Income Taxes (11,227, 404) ( 2, 441, 439 3675307 Provision For Income Taxes 15, 000 24, 000 —Net Loss $ ( 11,242, 404) $ ( 2, 465, 439 3$67%107) Net Loss
Per Share; Basic and diluted $ ( 1. 08) $ (0. 26 3}$0-67) Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding; Basic and diluted 10, 432, 416 9, 659, 421 9;-609;208
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders” Equity FerFhe-Years-Ended-Deeember3+-2623-and-2622-Shares Value Capital Deficit Equity Common Stock Additional
Total Numbcr 01‘ Par Paid- In Aceumulatcd Stockholdus Shares leuc (dpltdl Deficit Lqmt\ Baldncc Dcccmbm 31 202—1—94-82—1—1—3—55—9—58%—36—65—1—988%—(6—

9% 9

S g 29

6346 6+$ 4 9,634461389

635 $ 36, ()5() 161 $ (7 3()4 284) § "X 755 512 Slock based u)mpcnsalmn—— 38‘) 658 ?89 638 ( ommon slock 1ssucd for \L.Sllllg of RSU’ S 80 000 80 (80)-- Net
loss for the year ended December 31, 2023--- (2, 465, 439) (2, 465, 439) Balance, December 31,2023 9, 714, 613 $ 9, 715 $ 36, 439, 739 $ (9, 769, 723) $ 26, 679, 731

Balance 9, 714, 613 $9, 715 $ 36, 439, 739 $ (9, 769, 723) $ 26, 679, 731 -See-aeeeﬁﬁsaﬂy-mg—netes—te—Stock based compensation-- 517, 781- 517, 781 Common stock
issued for vesting of RSU’ s 55, 000 55 (55)-- Common stock issued in offering 9, 886, 847 9, 886 21, 525, 807- 21, 535, 693 Net loss for thc eenselidated-finanetat
statements-year ended December 31, 2024--- (11, 242, 404) (11, 242, 404) Net loss--- (11, 242, 404) (11, 242, 404) Balance, December 31, 2024 19, 656, 460 $ 19,
656 $ 58, 483,272 $ (21, 012, 127) $ 37, 490, 801 Balance 19, 656, 460 $ 19, 656 $ 58, 483, 272 § (21, 012, 127) $ 37, 490, 801 Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows December 31, December 31, 2024 2023 2822-Cash Flows from Operating Activities: Net loss $ ( 11, 242, 404) $ (2 4()5 439 }—$—€6—7—7—1-97—) Ad]ustmcnls to
reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities: Depreciation and amortization 538, 759 531, 160
Operating lease costs 545-532 , 065 545, %49—065 Stock = bascd compcnsalmn 517 781 389, 658 3-99—Amortlzatlon 0fdebt discount 260 , +26-000- Loss on dlsposal of
property and equipment - 16, 403 46 o a b jain on termination of right- of- use
operating lease - (8, 461) Deferred taxes 15 000 24 000 Impalrment of mtanglble assets 467 928 Inventory reserve (84 000) 18, 000 Loss on eentingentrevente
earnout-adiustmentinvestment of digital assets 3, 248, 911 - 815; y v 6-Changes in Operating Assets
and Liabilities: Accounts receivable 1, 285, 985 (740, 941)(—1-4-1—89—19—9ther—reeewab-}e-%9-1—2-16-lnwnlm S (967 186) 7(), 543 e—439—3—1-9)-Prcpa1d expenses 1, 167,
949 (1, 147, 700) Long- term {78;:-007)-Seeunrity-deposits (732, 693) 21, 704 95249-Accounts payable and accrued expenses 95,229 (14, 187 H2445;-968-) Operating
lease obligations ( 512, 888) (196, 609 3444;725-) Customer deposits 113, 850 (520, 086 H43;-06+) Net cash used in operating activities ( 5, 295, 714) (3, 470, 890 %
3;425;:246-) Cash Flows from Investing Activities: Purchase of property and equipment ( 42, 920) (973, 349 3H735;76+) Net investment in marketable securities (3,
248, 911) 247, 450 M&%&MWM%&%NLL cash uscd in investing activities ( 3, 291, 831) ( 725, 899 H+-679;3483-) Cash Flows
from Financing Activities: Net Repayment-on-finaneinglease-tabilitie proceeds from issuance of common shares in a private equity
offering 21, 535, 693- Net proceeds {rom notcs pqvqblc 1,274, 000 - 44-1—Repayment on ﬁnance lease obligations (17 , +39-336) (153, 114) Repayment of notes
payable (1, 614, 841) (33, 480 H626;3+6F) Payment of revenue earnout - (2, 180, 826) =Net cash provided by (used in ) financing activities 21, 177, 516 (2, 367, 420
H224;223-) Net change in cash and cash equivalents 12, 589, 971 (6, 564, 209 H4;728;-652) Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of the Period 6, 726, 013 13, 290,
222 48;648;-874-Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of the Period $ 19, 315,984 $ 6, 726, 013 $43;296;,222-Supplemental disclosures: Cash paid for interest expense $
298, 811 $ 27, 259 $425450-Cash paid for income taxes $ 8, 632 $ 10, 7()() -$-41"-9-3-\lon (a%h [nvcstma and Financing Activities: Common Stock issued on vesting of
RSLs $ 55 $ 80 Debt dlscount on notes payable ‘B 260 : 46-1—000 S- Fosson-disposal-offixed-assets $16;
; G Dperating lease right - of = use asset and
]ldblllty m-rt-ra-l—mvest-mem—measurement $ 1 393 242 S 20 380 -$—3—626—9'8§-N0tcs To (onsollddted Fmdnudl Stdtementx (1) Organization and Business Description
AmpliTech Group, Inc. (“ AmpliTech ” or the “ Company ") was incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada on December 30, 2010. On August 13, 2012, the
Company acquired AmpliTech, Inc., by issuing 833, 750 shares of the Company’ s common stock to the shareholders of AmpliTech, Inc. in exchange for 100 % of the
outstanding shares of AmpliTech Inc. (the “ Share Exchange ). After the Share Exchange, the selling shareholders owned 60, 000 shares of the outstanding $89-893 ,
256-750 shares of Company common stock, resulting in a change in control. Accordingly, the transaction was accounted for as a reverse acquisition in which
AmpliTech, Inc. was deemed to be the accounting acquirer, and the operations of the Company were consolidated for accounting purposes. The capital balances have
been retroactively adjusted to reflect the reverse acquisition. AmpliTech designs, engineers and assembles microwave component based low noise amplifiers (“ LNA ™)
that meet individual customer specifications. Application of the Company”’ s proprietary technology results in maximum frequency gain with minimal background noise
distortion as required by each customer. The Company has both domestic and international customers in such industries as aerospace, governmental, defense and
commercial satellite. On September 12, 2019, AmpliTech Group, Inc. acquired the assets of Specialty Microwave Corporation (*“ Specialty ™), a privately held company
based in Ronkonkoma, NY. The purchase included all inventory, orders, customers, property and equipment, and all intellectual property. The assets also included all
eight team members of Specialty. Specialty designs and manufactures passive microwave components and related subsystems that meet individual customer
specifications for both domestic and international customers for use in satellite communication ground networks. On February 17, 2021, AmpliTech Group, Inc.,
common stock and warrants under the symbols “ AMPG ” and “ AMPGW ”, respectively, commenced trading on NASDAQ. A reverse split of the outstanding common
stock at a 1- for- 20 ratio became effective February 17, 2021 as of 12: 01 a. m., Eastern Time. In connection with the public offering, 1, 371, 428 units at an offering
price of $ 7. 00 per unit were sold. Each unit issued in the offering consisted of one share of common stock and one warrant. In 2021, the Company opened AGMDC, a
monolithic microwave integrated circuits (“ MMIC ) chip design center in Texas and has started to implement several of its proprietary amplifier designs into MMIC
components. MMICs are semiconductor chips used in high- frequency communications applications. MMICs are widely desired for power amplification solutions to
service emerging technologies, such as phased array antennas and quantum computing. MMICs carry a smaller footprint enabling them to be incorporated into a broader
array of systems while reducing costs. AGMDC designs, develops and manufactures state- of- the- art signal processing components for satellite and 5G
communications networks, defense, space and other commercial applications, allowing the Company to market its products to a wider base of customers requiring high
technology in smaller packages. On November 19, 2021, AmpliTech Group, Inc. entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (the “ Purchase Agreement ) with
Spectrum Semiconductor Materials Inc. (the “ Seller ” or “ SSM ), pursuant to which AmpliTech would acquire substantially all the assets of the Company (the
Acquisition 7). The Acquisition was completed on December 15, 2021. Spectrum Semiconductor Materials (“ SSM ), located in Silicon Valley (San Jose, CA), is a
global authorized distributor of integrated circuit (“ IC ) packaging and lids for semiconductor device assembly, prototyping, testing, and production requirements. In
August 2022, AmpliTech Group’ s True G Speed Services (AGTGSS) division was founded to serve and provide complete system integration and ORAN compliant O-
RU’ s (Radio Units) for telcos, enabling the industry to access * True 5G Speeds’. AGTGSS provides Managed Services, Cyber Security, Cloud Services, Data Sciences
and Telco Cloud Services. AGTGSS will also be providing full installation of Private 5G Networks (P5G) which includes the deployment of AmpliTech Group ’ s
developed radio units. AGTGSS will implement AmpliTech’ s low noise amplifier devices in these systems to promote greater coverage, longer range and faster speeds.
(2) Loss on Investment of Digital Assets During the three months ending March 31, 2024, the Company made several transactions in digital currency in the
total amount of approximately $ 3. 25 million. The Company believes that it was fraudulently induced to hold its digital currency with a custodian whom the
Company believed to be valid but no longer exists. The Company is taking steps in an attempt to seek recovery of the funds including discussions with local,
federal, and international law enforcement agencies and private consultants and is currently conducting a review of its processes and procedures related to
this investment. At the present time, the Company is not aware of and does not expect any additional losses arising out or relating to the above- described
investment. In addition, the Company does not believe that the Company’ s systems, records, or other assets were otherwise affected or compromised in
connection with these investments. As a result of the fraudulent digital currency transactions noted above, the Company was a victim of a cyber phishing
scam that defrauded the Company. During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company recorded a complete loss from the investment in digital assets of
$ 3, 248, 911. As of December 31, 2024, the remaining balance of digital assets was $ 0. (3) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies The accompanying
« lidated financial stat t lnclude the accounts of the Company and lts subsndlarles. All Intercompany accounts and transactlons have been eliminated
in consolldatlon F-8 rtain r e

v astitations— [ he C ommny S pohcy is to place lts cash and cash equlvalents w1th hlgh- quahty, major
ﬁnancnal and mﬂvest-ments- investment tn-mﬂ-ﬂeetab-}e-seeuﬁt-tes-lnstltutlons to limit the amount of credit exposure. Accounts at each financial institution arc
insured by elass & and-th - the Federal Deposit Insurance availability-for-tuse-in-eurrentoperations— Corporation (“ FDIC
”) up to $ 250, 000. At December 31 2024 and 2023 the Company had $ 18 749 154 and $ 3,170, 500 in excess of FDIC insured limits, respectively . The
C ommm has not experlenced any e trittes-are—sta v a RS-a losscs eﬁ—mvest-meﬁ-ts-m such accounts




b i i I— 8—9 Schedule of pfepeny-Property and eqm-pment—Equlpment
depfeeiat-edBeserlpﬂeﬁ-Deprecmted Descrlptlon Useful LliL Muhod Office equipment 3-to 7 years Straight- line Machinery / shop equipment Fto 15 years Straight-
line Computer equipment / software 4-to 7 years Straight- line Vehicles $-years Straight- line Leasehold improvements #-years Straight- line Schedule of Amortization
oflnumubh AssetsAssetsBeseﬁ-pt-ten- —————— Description U SLILI] Life Method dee names Indclmm N A ( ustomer u]almnsh]ps to 20 years Straight- line Intellectual

W r reventie—l- 12 F-13 The Company’ s dc]‘cncd tax assets and ]ldb]l]t]C\ for thc e\pcetcd future tax
consequences of events lm\e been ll'lt.lleLd in lhe ill]’ll]t.l’ll statements or tax returns. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and tax bases of certain assets and liabilities using enaeted-tax rates enacted in effect in the years in which
the differences are expected to reverse. The deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified according to the financial statement classification of the assets and liabilities
generating the differences. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. The ASC
prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in
a tax return. The ASC provides guidance on de- recognition, classification, interest and penalties, (M,LOUHTIHL in interim pcnodx dl\LlL)sLl]C dﬂd tmnsmon At I)cwmbu
31,2024 and 2023 a-nd%%%— Ihe C ompam lnd no mamml LllllL.(.O"l]lA.d tax b&.lli.llH F- 14 The 8 sh atents ab a

that could be recelved upon the sale of an asset or pald to transfer a hablhty in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date .
T—h&ea-m-mg—Fmancnal assets are marked to bid prlces, and ﬁnanclal liabilities are marked to offer prices. Fair valuc efmeasurements do netes-—- not include
payablea 3 nates-fair valuc sinee-hierarchy is used to prioritize the quality and reliability of the
information used to determine fair values Categorlzatlon w1thm the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair
value measurement The fair value hierarchy i is deﬁned in the followmg these~ three categorles mstmmeﬁts—beﬁr—mafket—r&tea—eﬁntefest—F—HHn—NeveﬁﬂaeﬁG%—

s & es—- l< F-16 (34 ) Revenues Thc' 10]10\\ ing ldhlc pxesenls salex dl\douegdled brlscd on
geogr: aplnc regions and for tlu years Llldt,d SLhLdlllL ot d-tsaggreg&ted—Dlsaggregated revente-RevenueAmpliTech Inc. and Specialty Microwave December 31,
2023-2024 December 31, 2622-2023 AmpliFeehIne—and-SpeetaltyMierewave-Domestic sales $ 2, 660,340 $ 5, 120, 694 $4:-922-237International sales 940, 135 |
267,459 947545 Total sales $ 3,600,475 $ 6, 388, 153 $5;-869:752-Spectrum Domestic sales $ 64 , 234-088 ., 934-483 $ 6, 798-234 , H43-934 International sales 1
819,414 2. 961, 490 6;726;-027-Total sales $ 5,907,897 $ 9. 196, 424 $43:-524-740-Total sales for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-were § 9,
508,372 and $ 15, 584, 577 and-$+9:394;:492respeetively- F- 17 (4-5 ) Scgment Reporting ASC Topic 280, “ Segment Reporting 7, establishes standards for
reporting information about operating segments on a basis consistent with the Company’ s internal organizational structure as well as information about geographical
areas, business segments and major customers in financial statements for details on the Company’ s business segments. Operating segments are components of an
enterprise for which separate discrete financial information is available and regularly evaluated by the CODM to allocate resources and assess performance.
The Company has identified its Chief Executive Officer (“ CEO ) as the CODM and has determined that it operates in two reportable segments 53 the
manufacturing and engineering segment, which is operated by AmpliTech Inc. and Specialty Microwave: and the distribution segment, which is operated by Spectrum.
The manufacturing and engineering segment assembles microwave components, and the distribution segment is a global distributor of integrated circuits packages and
lids. The Company provides general corporate services to its segments; however, these services are not considered when making operating decisions and assessing
segment performance. These services are reported under “ Corporate ” below and include costs associated with executive management, financing activities and public
company compliance. F+6-The following table presents summary information by segment for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 : Schedule of Segment
Reporting Manufacturing AmpliFeehtne—and Speeialty-Speetrunr Engineering Distribution Corporate Total Revenue $ 6-3 . 388-600 , +53-475 $ 5, 907, 897 $- §$ 9,
+96-508 , 424-372 Cost of goods sold 3, 227, 140 2, 796, 125 - $-6, 023, 265 Net income (loss) (7, 379, 725) 1, 146, 548 (5, 009, 227) (11, 242, 404) Research and
development (1) 3, 590, 695-- 3, 590, 695 Total assets 27, 344, 872 15, 821, 000 584 54 , 410 577-Cesteof Geoods-Seld 35654674743 43, 220 . 482
Depreciation and amortization 418, 733 120 026 - 8—538 %98—759 Interest expense net 25 949%%&%&6:&35)—(—3— S

439 Fotal-Assets H;46126816-216 5 89-3:4 8 ation 66 849 5—3—1—1—69—1frtefest—l-ﬁeeme—ﬂet—26-266
5964979 292,195 F - 18 (—7—6%9)—1-9%}8-1—le fol lm\m” table plesu]l\ summary 111101111"111011 by segment for the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 : Manufacturing
Amplifeehtne—and Speeialty-SpeetrumrEngineering Distribution Corporate Total Revenue $ 5-6 . 869-388 . 752-153 $ 43-9 . 524-196 , 740-424 §$ - $ 15, 584, 577
Cost of goods sold 3, 565, 467 4, 743, 482- 8, 308, 949 Net income (loss) (3, 619, 842) 2, 060, 234 (905, 831) (2, 465, 439) Research and development (2) 2,341,
845-- 2, 341, 845 Total assets 11 461 268 16, 540 789 3, 405, 572 31, 407, 629 Deprec1at10n and amortization 362 663 168 497- 531, 160 Interest expense, net
26 901 (7 620) 19, 281 6 6-(1 707%154-) Research (677

S 2 63-7'—030 3—39—071 of 5G expenses and $1, 69-7—560 624 of MMIC des1gn expenses. (2)
Research and development for the year endmg December 31 2023 was comprlsed 0f $ 157 984 of 5G expenses and $2, 63-9—9%6—1“—1&1e—fe-l-bvﬁﬂg—tab}e13-a

§ 3 § 3 a 8183, 861 of MMIC des1gn
expenses. (()) Inv LlllOll(.\ Tlu 111w11101\, wnxlsls of the lollomnly at Deccmbu 31,2024 and 7()7“3 ﬁ-nd%@%%— Schedule oflm Lnlm\ Duembu 31, December 31, 2024
2023 2822-Raw Materials $ 1, 261, 307 $ 959, 645 $872484-Work- in Progress 190, 818 51, 140 229;:7H-Finished Goods 7, 198, 639 6, 672, 793 6;658+66-Subtotal
578 ,683-650 , 578-764 & 7. 766-683 , +24-578 Lcss: Reserve for Obsolescence (1, 062, 000) (1, 146 000128~ 000) Less: Reserve for Obsolescence (1, 062, 000)
(1, 146 780005128, 000) Total $ 67 , 537-588 . 578-764 $ 6, 632537 . +2+-578 F- 19 (7) Property and Equipment Property and Equipment consisted of the following
at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-: Sehedule-of Property-and-Equipment-December 31, December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Lab Equipment $ 3, 429, 447 $ 3, 400,
207 $2:455;-645-Manufacturing Equipment 129, 745 129, 745 Automobiles 7, 335 7, 335 Computer Equipment and Software 146, 785 194, 238 2—1-9,1”‘49-Ledschold



Improvements 84, 172 78-84 . 942-172 Furniture and Fixtures 170, 643 448-170 , 987-643 Subtotal 3, 968, 127 3, 986, 340 3;-629;394-_ess: Accumulated Depreciation
(1,714, 432) (1, 386, 892 HH005:-767-) Total § 2, 599-253 , 448-695 S 2, 623-599 , 687448 Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023
and2022-was $ 388, 673 and $ 381, 185 and-$262:-032-respectively, of which $ 308, 071 and $ 256, 248 and-$494;456-, respectively were included in cost of goods
sold. Property and equipment purchased in the amount of § 234, 036 under 11nanuno leases is-are 1mluded in the totals above (see Note 10) . As-Disposals of property
and equipment as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 was and a g were-5 49-61 3—36—133 and $ 082—8—1-6—
respectively. F—9-(8) Goodwill and Intangible Assets Goodwill is 1elaled to the-aequisition peetalty Mierowave § and-the
acquisition of Spectrum Semiconductor Materials Inc. on December 15, 2021. Goodwill is pnmdnly related to e\putcd improvements and technolop performance and
functionality, as well as sales growth from future product and service offerings and new customers, together with certain intangible assets that do not qualify lor separate
rccogmtlon Goodwill i is g_Lnudlly not amortlzablc for tax and fmanual statement purposes. As of December 31, 2022-2024 and 5

a : —A 2023 and-2022-, goodwill was $ 4, 696, 883, 1Lspee11\ ely. F- 20 Other Intangible
Assets lntdm_lble assets w&m&ﬁmﬂted—useﬁﬂ—kfe—ef—ﬁftee&aﬂd—tweﬁy—ye&rs&omlsted of the following at December 31, 2023-2024 : Schedule of Intangible Assets
Gross Carrying Accumulated Weighted Amount Amortization Net Average Life Trade name $ 514, 284 $- § 514, 284 Indefinite Customer relationships 2, 178, 631
326, 796 1, 851, 835 16. 97 Total $ 2, 692, 915 $ 326, 796 $ 2, 366, 119 Intangible assets consisted of the following at December 31, 2023: Gross Carrying
Accumulated Weighted Amount Amortization Net Average Life Trade name $ 584, 517 $- $ 584, 517 Indefinite Customer relationships 2, 591, 491 336, 330 2,
255,161 16. 81 Intellectual Preperty-property 202, 771 58, 316 144, 455 10. 71 Total $ 3,378, 779 $ 394, 646 $ 2, 984, 133 Amortization expense for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-was $ +49-150 , 975-086 and $ 149, 974-975, respectively. Intangible asset impairments, consisting of trade name,
customer relationships and intellectual property related to the purchase of Specialty Microwave, for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, were $ 467,
928 and $ 0, respectively. Annual amortization of intangible assets are as follows: Schedule of Amortization of Assets 2023449;-976-2024-149:-976-2025 +49-108
976-932 2026 +49-108 , 976-932 2027 +49-108 , 976-932 2028 108, 932 2029 108, 932 Thereafter 1, 649-307 , 736-175 Total $ 2-1 , 399-851 , 835 6+6-F-20-(9) Cost
Method Investment On June 10, 2021, the Company entered into a munbcuhlp interest purchase agreement with SN2N, LLC for an aggregate purchase price of $ 350,
000, to be paid in four tranches. Each tranche represents-represented a 5 % membership interest, and in aggregate a 20 % membership interest. On June 15, 2022, an
amendment to the membership interest purchase agreement was made to reflect a 19. 9 % membership interest. Considering fntght-ofthis amendment, the Company
overpaid $ 1, 750 for the membership interest and was subsequently reimbursed. As of December 31, 2623-2024 and2622-, the Company has made an investment of $
348, 250 for a 19. 9 % membership interest. F=21 (10) Leases The following was included in our balance sheet as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-: Schedule
of Lease Assets and Liabilities December 31, 2623-2024 December 31, 2022-2023 Operating leases Assets ROU operating lease assets $ 4, 399,975 $ 3, 538, 798 $4;
497324 iabilities Current portion of operating lease $ 449, 622 $ 541, 324 $-586;379-Operating lease, net of current portion $ 3-4 , $44-139 . 979-562 $ 3, 768171 ,
932979 Total operating lease liabilities $ 4, 589, 184 $ 3, 713, 303 $4;355;3H-Financing leases Assets Property and equipment, gross $ 234, 036 $ 234, 036
Accumulated depreciation ( 190, 217) (151, 919 3HH37-62+) Property and equipment, net $ 43, 819 $ 82, 117 $320;445-Liabilities Current portion of financing lease
$16,522 $ 16, 799 $33;486-Financing lease, net of current portion $ 15, 478 $ 32, 537 $49:-336-Total financing lease liabilities $ 32, 000 $ 49, 336 $-82;-8+6-F- 24-22
The weighted average remaining lease term and weighted average discount rate at December 31, 2024 and 2023 are and-2022-were-as follows: Schedule of Weighted
Average Remaining Lease Term and Weighted Average Discount Rate-Weighted-RateWeighted average remaining lease term (years) December 31, 2623-2024
December 31, 2622-2023 Operating leases 7. 95 9. 36 9—46-Financing leases 2. 08 2. 97 2-88-Weighted average discount rate Operating leases 4-6 . 45-40 % 4. 4945 %
Financing leases 4. 65 % 4. 72 % ,234 for the first 12 months and increase by approximately 3 % every year.On October 15 .2021,the Company entered a new
lease for a 20,000 square foot facility at 155 Plant Avenue,Hauppauge,New York,for a term of seven years and two months.The yearly base rent of $ 346,242 shall
increase at a rate of 2.75 % per year to begin on the first anniversary lease commencement date and each year thereafter. The first two months of basic rent shall be
abated following the commencement lease date.In the event the landlord decides to sell the property,the Company shall have the right of first offer to purchase subject
property.Upon lease execution,the Company paid two months of bdse rent as a \CLUI”IT}/ deposit and one month s rent totaling $ 86,560. Thc (ompdny mov cd into thc
new manuﬁcturmﬁ and hvldquartcu f1c111tv Aprll 1, 2()72 -O1 Any-asst v o a e a

ase-ren an e ar-thereafte On /\ugust 9, 202 3 the Cn)mpdny emeled a 39- month agreement 101 ‘B 20, 88() to ledse an dutumoblle
Wi 1th a monthly pa} ment of $ 605.F- 23 Tlu follov» ing table reconciles future minimum operating lease payments to the discounted lease liability as of December
31,2023:Schedule of Future Minimum Operating Lease Payments 2024 696,362 2025 407,580 2026 389,397 2027 393,899 2028 404,721 Thereafter 2,313,460
Total lease payments 4,605,419 Less imputed interest (892,116) Total lease obligations 3,713,303 Less current obligations (541,324) Long- term lease
obligations $ 3,171,979 4 —70-%-, 589, 184 Less current obligations (449, 622) Long- term lease obligations $ 4, 139, 562 Financing Lease The Company entered
into several 60- month lease agreements to finance certain laboratory and office equipment. As such, the Company has accounted for these transactions as a financing
lease. The following table reconciles future minimum financing lease payments to the discounted lease liability as of December 31, 2623-2024 : Schedule ©f-of Future
Minimum Lease Payments Ferfor Finance Lease 2024487542025 48-17 . 486-630 2026 11, 976-982 2027 3, 992-994 Total lease payments 52-33 , 985-606 | _css
imputed interest (3-1 ., 569-606 ) Total lease obligations 49-32 , 336-000 Less current obligations (16, 799-522 ) Long- term lease obligations $ 32-15 , 537478 F- 22
Operating Leases On December 4,...... 2025 with a base rent of $ 24 , 234 for the first 12 months...... obligations $ 3, 171,979 (11) Notes Payable Promissory Note: On
September 12, 2019, AmpliTech Group, Inc. acquired Specialty, a privately held company based in Ronkonkoma, NY. The purchase included all inventory, orders,
customers, property and equipment, and all intellectual property. The assets also included all eight team members of Specialty. The total consideration paid was $ 1,

143, 633, consisting of $ 668, 633 in cash and a § 475, 000 promissory note with an interest rate of 6 %. Beginning November 1, 2019, payment of principal and interest
shall be due payable in fifty- nine (59) monthly payments of $ 9, 213 with a final payment due October 1, 2024 of $ 9, 203. As of December 31, 2023-2024 and-2022-,
the balance of this promissory note was $ 089—84-1—aﬂd—$—1-8-3—9+4—res~pee&vel-y- Principal payments of $ +62-80 , 841 +H-and-$-96,1405-along with interest expense of
$ 82, 082 were 39-and-$+4;466-was-paid during the years— year ended December 31, 2023-2024 and2022;respeetively-. Loan Payable: On September 12, 2019, the
Company was approved for a $ 250, 000 equipment leasing facility which was subsequently increased to $ 500, 000. The Company has borrowed against the leasing
facility as follows: ® On Peeember26-May 14 . 29-1-9—2020 thc ( ompany borrow: ed $ 58—27 -1-92—494 to be ])dld over a three- year term with monthly payments of $
815 H-736-at an interest rate of 54 . 2627 % —Fhe-b a A veby-. Principal payments of $ 6-3, 230 and interest
expense of $ 48:-630-- 30 were made-paid for the yeafs~ year ended DCLCmbCI ? 1, 702? &nd—%%%—respeeﬁvel-y— Fotat-interestexpense-This loan was paid in full in
April for-the-years-ended-Deeember314:-2023 a-nd%@%%—was%—@-an%éé—resﬁeeﬁveb'- F-%4—o On May—H—June 10, 2020, the Comp"my bnnow L.d i 2—7’—41 494-015

to be pdld overa thlce ycar term w 1th monthl\ pdyments of § 8454 27 % The-balanee-as-of-Decembe
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Prlnclpal payments SPhe-ba-}aﬂe&as-oi Deeembef—?v—l%@%%—ﬂnd
%92—2—was—$—9—aﬂd-s 6 012 and 1nterest expense —res-peeﬁvel-y—P-rmetpa-l—paymeﬁts—of ‘S 68 6—9—1%—&-3d—$—1—3—9—7’-5-\>» ere made—pald for the yea-rs— year cnded l)euember

m‘ March 14, 7023 the (ompany closed the eqmpmcnt lme of Lred]t ot § 500, 000 \\’hl(,h hdd $ 0 balance. All U( C hllng,s on the ( ompany assets haw becn released
as well as the President’ s personal guarantee. In January 2022, the Company purchased machinery for $ 91, 795, applying a deposit of § 9, 180 and financing the
balance of § 82, 616 over 24 payments at an mterest rate of 1. 90 % The balame as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and20622-was $ 0, respectively. Principal

payments of $ 0 and S 41, 700 srespee a 6-and interest expense of $ 0 and $ 430 were a-nd—$—l%—lé—was—pa1d for the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 7023 a-nd—2(-)2%— respcctl\ ely. Ftr&rreOn July 23 2024, the Company entered into a business loan and security agreement
with Altbanq Lending II LLC in the amount of $ 1, 300, 000, which included an origination fee of $ 26, 000 and an original issue discount of $ 403, 000. The
loan is payable within 76- weeks through 38 bi- weekly payments of $ 44, 816 and bore an annual interest rate of 21. 2 % with prepayment options available.
The loan was secured by the Company’ s assets through a UCC filing, and proceeds were used for working capital, 5G licensing and certification fees. During
the year ended December 31, 2024 the Company repald the loan in full through principal payments everthe-term-of thedoans-as-of Deeember3+;,2023-are-as

&y 4-5 86-1 , 84+ Fotalremainingpayments-534, 000, and recorded $ 86-260 . 841-000 in debt
dlscount amortlzatlon F- 25 (1" Inwme Taxes As of Dewmber 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, the (Onlpng had net operating loss carry forwards of $ 11. 6 million
and $ 7 . 9 million --646;-606-and-$-6;700;-000-, respectively, that may be available to reduce future years’ taxable income indefinitely. Future tax benefits which may
arise as a result of these losses have not been recognized in these consolidated financial statements, as their realization is determined not likely to occur. Accordingly,




the Company has recorded a valuation allowance for the deferred tax asset relating to these tax loss carry- forwards. For the years ending December 31, 2024 and 2023
and2022-, the Company reflects a deferred tax liability in the amount of $ 39, 000 and $ 24, 000 and-$-6-, respectively, due to the future tax liability from an asset with
an indefinite life known as a “ naked credit. ” The future tax liability from this indefinite lived asset can be offset by up to 80 % of net operating loss carryforwards
created after 2017. The remaining portion of the future tax liability from indefinite lived assets cannot be used to offset definite lived deferred tax assets. The
components for the provision of income taxes include the following: Schedule of Components for the Provision of Income Taxes December 31, 2023-2024 December
31, 2622-2023 Current federal and state $- $- Deferred federal and state 15, 000 24, 000 —Total provision for income taxes $ 24-15, 000 $ —24, 000 A reconciliation of
the statutory US federal income tax rate to the Company’ s effective income tax rate is as follows: Schedule of Effective Income Tax Rate December 31, 2023-2024
December 31, 2022-2023 Federal tax 21. 0 % 21. 0 % State tax 0. 8 % =0. 8 % Permanent items (0. 1) % (0. 4 ¥%2) % Change in rate 0. 0 % 2. 5 % —Valuation
allowance (21. 9) % Veluationr-AHowanee24. 9 Y %-19-8-) % Effective income tax rate (0.2) % (1. 0) %—% F-25-26 Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect
oflunpmaw dllluenu. between amounts recorded for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for tax purposes. The Company has a net cumulative eurrent

8 f atty ng—term-deferred tax liability of $ 24-39 , 000. The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as
follows: Schedule of( mnponenls of Delcrrcd Tax Assets and Liabilities December 31, 2623-2024 December 31, 2022-2023 Deferred tax assets Inventory obsolescence
$256-232 . 000 $ 250 248;-000-AHewanee-for-bad-debt—9- 000 ROU Assets-assets 40, 000 31, 000 —Stock- based compensation 227, 000 27, 000 —Research and
development 588, 000 426, 000 —Loss carryforward +3 , 723-474 , 000 1, 498-723 , 000 Valuation AHewanee-allowance (4, 315, 000) (2, 150 ;6669-1-323-, 000)
Total deferred tax assets $ 367246 , 000 $ +42-307 , 000 Deferred tax liabilities Fixed assets $ (120, 000) $ ( 149 5-000)-$-(23-, 000) Cost method investment ( 29, 000)
(28, 000) —Intangible assets ( 136, 000) ( 154 -866)-+9-, 000) Total deferred tax liabilities $ ( 285, 000) $ ( 331 70003542~ 000) Total net deferred income tax
liabilities $ (39, 000) $ (24, 000) $—F—26-(13) Stockholders’ Equity The total number of shares of stock this Corporation is authorized to issue shall be five hundred
one million (501, 000, 000) shares, par value $ 0. 001 per share. Our authorized capital stock consists of 500, 000, 000 shares of common stock and 1, 000, 000 shares of
blank check preferred stock. Preferred Stock On July 10, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a certificate of amendment to the articles of
incorporation and changed the authorized capital stock of the Company to include and authorize 500, 000 shares of Preferred Stock, par value $ 0. 001 per share. On
October 7, 2020, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a certificate of amendment to the articles of incorporation and changed the total number of authorized
shares of Preferred Stock to 1, 000, 000 shares, $ 0. 001 per share. On October 7, 2020, our Board of Directors and our stockholders approved a resolution to amend and
restate the certificate of designation of preferences, rights and limitations of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock to restate that there are 401, 000 shares of the
Company’ s blank check Preferred Stock designated as Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. The amended and restated certificate clarifies that the Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock eenrvert-converts at a rate of five shares of the Company’ s common stock for every share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, and also
restates that the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock shall be entitled to vote on all matters submitted to shareholders of the Company for each share of Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock owned on the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to vote on such matter or, if no such record date is established, on
the date such vote is taken , or any written consent of shareholders is solicited. The number of votes entitled to be cast by the holders of the Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock equals that number of votes that, together with votes otherwise entitled to be cast by the holders of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock at a
meeting, whether by virtue of stock ownership, proxies, voting trust agreements or otherwise, entitle the holders to exercise 51 % of all votes entitled to be cast to
approve any action which Nevada law provides may or must be approved by vote or consent of the holders of common stock entitled to vote. F- 27 Common Stock: The
Company originally authorized 50, 000, 000 shares of common stock with a par value of $ 0. 001. Effective May 20, 2014, the Company increased its authorized shares
of common stock from 50, 000, 000 to 500, 000, 000. On February 17, 2021, AmpliTech Group Inc., common stock and warrants under the symbols “ AMPG ” and *
AMPGW 7, respectively, commenced trading on NASDAQ. On September 9, 2024, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with a single
institutional investor to sell 1, 369, 488 shares of the Company’ s common stock, par value $ 0. 001 per share at a per share price of $ 0. 7302. The closing of
the offering occurred on September 11, 2024. The gross proceeds to the Company from this offering was approximately $ 1 million, before deducting
placement agent’ s fees and other offering expenses payable by the Company of approximately $ 180, 000. On November 24, 2024, the Company entered into a
Securities Purchase Agreement with three institutional investors pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell in a registered direct offering, 1, 425, 377
shares of the Company’ s common stock, par value $ 0. 001 per share, at a per share price of $ 0. 92 and prefunded warrants of 177, 882 shares of common
stock, at $ 0. 919 per prefunded warrant. The closing of the registered direct offering occurred on November 26, 2024. The exercise price of each Prefunded
Warrant is $ 0. 001 and 177, 882 warrants were exercised in full immediately. The gross proceeds to the Company from the offering was approximately $ 1,
474, 998, before deducting placement agent’ s fees and other offering expenses payable by the Company of approximately $ 200, 000. On December 11, 2024,
the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with three institutional investors pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell in a registered
direct offering, 1, 352, 500 shares of the Company’ s common stock, par value $ 0. 001 per share, at a per share price of $ 1. 60. The closing of the registered
direct offering occurred on December 13, 2024. The gross proceeds to the Company from the offering was approximately $ 2, 164, 000, before deducting
placement agent’ s fees and other offering expenses payable by the Company of approximately $ 220, 000. On December 16, 2024, the Company entered into a
Securities Purchase Agreement with two institutional investors pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell in a registered direct offering, 1, 516, 680 shares
of the Company’ s common stock, par value $ 0. 001 per share, at a per share price of $ 2. 10. The closing of the registered direct offering occurred on
December 18, 2024. The gross proceeds to the Company from the offering was approximately $ 3, 185, 028, before deducting placement agent’ s fees and other
offering expenses payable by the Company of approximately $ 290, 000. On December 19, 2024, the Company granted restricted stock awards under the
Company’ s 2020 Plan to directors of the Company for an aggregate of 45, 000 shares of common stock (15, 000 each) valued at $ 90, 000. These restricted
stock awards vested immediately. On December 24, 2024, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with three institutional investors
pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell in a registered direct offering, 1, 871, 000 shares of the Company’ s common stock, par value $ 0. 001 per share,
at a per share price of $ 3. 10. The closing of the registered direct offering occurred on December 27, 2024. The gross proceeds to the Company from the
offering was approximately $ 5, 800, 100, before deducting placement agent’ s fees and other offering expenses payable by the Company of approximately $
490, 000. On December 27, 2024, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with three institutional investors pursuant to which the
Company agreed to sell in a registered direct offering, 2, 173, 920 shares of the Company’ s common stock, par value $ 0. 001 per share, at a per share price of
$ 4. 60. The closing of the registered direct offering occurred on December 31, 2024. The gross proceeds to the Company from the offering was approximately
$ 10, 000, 032, before deducting placement agent’ s fees and other offering expenses payable by the Company of approximately $ 660, 000. On August 18, 2023,
the Company granted restricted stock awards under the Company’ s 2020 Plan to directors of the Company for an aggregate of 45, 000 shares of common stock (15, 000
each) valued at $ 82, 800. These uslrieled stock awards vested immediately. On December 20, 2023, the Company granted 25, 000 restricted stock units at an exercise
price of § 1. 73 under the Company”’ s 2020 Plan to a consultant. This restricted stock award vested immediately and the stock compensation was recorded under
research and development. On May 2() 2022, 30, 000 restricted stock units at an exercise price of $ 1. 96 were issued to a board advisor. Vesting will occur in equal
quarterly installments of 2, 500 shares beunnmu on May 20, 2072 As o]‘ I)eecmber 30, 2024 and 2023 aﬁé—Z-(-)Q—E— 10, 000 &ﬂd—7—599—sha|cs of common stod< were
1ssued 1espge11u1y AJun 4 attted ¢ avards A r

aeh)-v a hese-restrieted-stoek-awards—y nimedia 8-Equity [nccntl\e Plan In Outobm 2070
th Board ofDneelom and shmeholdux q(lopted the (ompan) S 2()7() Equity Incum\e Phn (th “2020 Plan ™), LerLll\L as of December 14, 2020. Under the 2020
Plan, the Company reserved 1, 250, 000 shares of common stock to grant shares of the Company’ s common stock to employees and individuals who perform services
for the Company. The purpose of the 2020 Plan is to attract and retain the best available personnel for positions of substantial responsibility, to provide incentives to
individuals who perform services for the Company, and to promote the success of the Company’ s business. The 2020 Plan permits the grant of Incentive Stock

Options, Nonstatutory Stock Options, Stock Appreciation Rights, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, Performance Units, Performance Shares, and other stock or
cash awards as the Board of Directors may determine. F-28 In 2023, the Board and the shareholders adopted the Company’ s Amended and Restated 2020 Equity
Incentive Plan (the *“ Amended and Restated Plan ), effective as of December 11, 2023. The Amended and Restated Plan is substantially similar to the 2020 Plan except
that it increases the shares of our common stock available for issuance thereunder to 2, 250, 000 shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2024, all outstanding
stock options were issued accordlng to the Company s 2020 Plan, and there remains 760 142 shares of common stock available for future issuance under the
2020 Plan Stock Options: On -9,2024;the-Compan y ons-to 66-shares of common stock according to the
Company’ s 2020 Plan.The stoek optlons vested— vest tmmediafe{-y—m quarterly mstallments over a 5- year perlod with an exercise price of $ +2 . 86-23 per
share.The Company has calculated these options estimated fair market value at $ 3-47 , 886-787 using the Black- Scholes model,with the following
assumptions:expected term of 54 . 86-5 years,stock price of $ +2 . 86-23 ,exercise price of $ +2 . 86-23 ,volatility of +4+6-134 . +-5 %,risk- free rate of 3. 9717 %,and no
forfeiture rate.On Jantary+6-December 20 , 2624-2022 ,the Company granted Matthew Kappers,Andrew Lee an-and Daniel Mazziota employee-ten—yearstock
options to purchase 5,000 ,5,000 and 7,500 shares of common stock respectively according to the Company’ s 2020 Plan.The stock options vest in equat-quarterly
installments over five-a 5- years— year period eommenetng-onApriH6;2024-with an exercise price of § 1.93-92 per share. The Company has calculated these options




estimated fair market value at $ 8-31 , 888-275 using the Black- Scholes model,with the following assumptions:expected term of 7. 545 years,stock price of $ 1. 93-92
,exercise price of $ 1. 93-92 ,volatility of +26-127 . +5 %,risk- free rate of 4—3 6+79 %,and no for (enure rate. OnJantary25-Equity Incentive Plan In October 2024
2020 the Company-granted-Board of Directors an-and + 8 hase-shareholders adopted the “ 2020 Plan ”,effective
as of December 14,2020.Under the 2020 Plan,the Company reserved 1, 59-250 ()()() shmes 01 common slock aeeording-o grant shares of common stock of the
Company to employees and individuals who perform services for the Company The purpose of the 2020 Plan is to attract and retain the best available
personnel for positions of substantial responsibility,to provide incentives to individuals who perform services for the Company,and to promote the success of
the Company” s business 2—929—P+aﬁ- 29—999—The 2020 Plan permlts the grant of Incentlve steeleStock ept-xens—Optlons vesfeé—rmmedmte{yhaﬂd-the-ba-}aﬂee-e%
Nonstatutory Stoc ; 3 : e a

of10:00-years;stoek-Stock Appreciation Rights priee-of-$219-, Restricted Stock e*emw&pﬁe&ef—ﬂ;—z—()n Fc.bruary "7 2023, thu ( ompany Lramed one meloyu
ten- year stock options to purchase 2, 000 shares of common stock according to the Company’ s 2020 Plan. The stock options vest in equal quarterly installments over
five years commencing on May 27, 2023, with an exercise price of § 2. 59 per share. The Company has calculated these options estimated fair market value at $ 4, 800
using the Black- Scholes model, with the following assumptions: expected term of 7. 46 years, stock price of $ 2. 59, exercise price of § 2. 59, volatility of 126. 8 %,
risk- free rate of 4. 08 %, and no forfeiture rate. On May 1, 2023, the Company granted one employee ten- year stock options to purchase 5, 000 shares of common
stock according to the Company” s 2020 Plan. The stock options vest in equal quarterly installments over five years commencing on August 1, 2023, with an exercise
price of § 3. 19 per share. The Company has calculated these options estimated fair market value at $ 14, 800 using the Black- Scholes modgl. with the following
assumptions: expected term of 7. 51 years, stock price of § 3. 19, exercise price of $ 3. 19, volatility of 126. 0 %, risk- free rate of 3. 62 %, and no forfeiture rate. On
June 5, 2023, the Company granted one employee ten- year smek options to purchase 2, 000 shares of common stock according to the Company’ s 2020 Plan. The stock
options vest in equal quarterly installments over three years commencing on September 5, 2023, with an exercise price of $ 2. 40 per share. The Company has calculated
these options estimated fair market value at $ 4, 200 using the Black- Scholes model, \\uh the Iolloan assumptions: expected term of 5. 50 years, stock price of § 2.
40, exercise price of § 2. 40, volatility of 127. 3 %, risk- free rate of 3. 82 %, and no forfeiture rate. ¥29-On June 12, 2023, the Company granted one employee ten-
year stock options to purchase 3, 000 shares of common stock according to the Company’ s 2020 Plan. The stock options vest in equal quarterly installments over three
years commencing on September 12, 2023, with an exercise price of $ 2. 49 per share. The Company has calculated these options estimated fair market value at $ 6, 600
using the Black- Scholes model, with the following assumptions: expected term of 5. 50 years, stock price of $ 2. 49, exercise price of $ 2. 49, volatility of 127. 0 %,
risk- free rate of 3. 89 %, and no forfeiture rate. F- 29 On August 18, 2023, the Company granted one employee ten- year stock options to purchase 5, 000 shares of
common stock according to the Company’ s 2020 Plan. The stock options vest in equal quarterly installments over five years commencing on November 18, 2023, with
an exercise price of $ 1. 84 per share. The Company has calculated these options estimated fair market value at $ 8, 500 using the Black- Scholes model, with the
following assumptions: expected term of 7. 51 years, stock price of $ 1. 84, exercise price of $ 1. 84, volatility of 122. 5 %, risk- free rate of 4. 34 %, and no forfeiture
rate. On September 25, 2023, the Company granted one employee ten- year stock options to purchase 3, 000 shares of common stock according to the Company’ s 2020
Plan. The stock options vest in equal quarterly installments over five years commencing on December 25, 2023, with an exercise price of $ 1. 85 per share. The
Company has calculated these options estimated fair market value at $ 5, 100 using the Black- Scholes model, with the following assumptions: expected term of 7. 51
years, stock price of $ 1. 85, exercise price of $ 1. 85, volatility of 122. 5 %, risk- free rate of 4. 61 %, and no forfeiture rate. On October 2, 2023, the Company granted
one employee ten- year stock options to purchase 5, 000 shares of common stock according to the (ompdny $ 2020 Plan. The stock options vest in equal quarterly
installments over five years commencing on January 2, 2024, with an exercise price of $ 2. 01 per share. The Company has calculated these options estimated fair
market value at $ 9, 300 using the Black- Scholes model, with the following assumptions: expected term of 7. 51 years, stock price of $ +2 . 8501 , exercise price of §
2. 01, volatility of 122. 4 %, risk- free rate of 4. 73 %, and no forfeiture rate. On December 20, 2023, the...... no forfeiture rate. F- 30 On December 20, 2023, the
Company granted two employees and one consultant ten- year stock options to purchase 95, 000 shares of common stock according to the Company’ s 2020 Plan. The
stock options vest in quarterly installments over a 5- year period with an exercise price of $ 1. 73 per share. The Company has calculated these options estimated fair
mdlket \d]LlC at § 149, ()07 usmg the Bldd( Sdmles model, w lth the ful]ov» ing dssumptlons e‘(pected term of 7. 36 years, smek price m‘ $1. 7 3, exercise pllw of $1.

a e e e atility 5 erate andn e ate Bclov\ isa lablu summarizing the
Lhang,es in stock opnonx outstandmb for the year ended chcmbel 31, 2024 and 2023: Schedule of Stouk Options Outstdndlmy Number of Weighted Average Options
Exercise Price ($) Outstanding at December 31, 2023 1, 236, 000 $ 2. 30 Granted 72, 500 $ 1. 92 Exercised-- Forfeited or expired (13, 500) $ 2. 41 Outstanding at
December 31, 2024 1, 295, 000 $ 2. 28 Exercisable at December 31, 2024 706, 202 $ 2. 64 Number of Weighted Average Options Exercise Price ($) Outstanding
at December 31, 2022 916, 000 $ 2. 49 Granted 320, 000 % 1. 78 Exercised-- Forfelted or E*pﬂ‘ed-explred $ ()umtandmg at Dncembm 31,2023 1, 236 000 $ 2. 30
l'xclusable at Decembe] 31, 2073 483,344 82.95 s-of December t RS- o-to-the-Compan AR

0005 chavattable-fo i At btock based compensation cxpumc 1e1ated to Stock options 0f$
408 191 and $ 248, 9% a-ﬂd—$%44—6—3—l—\\ as 1eundcd for the years ended Decembe] 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respectively. As of December 31, 2623-2024 | the
remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to non- vested stock options is $ +953 , 483 255;294-and is expected to be recognized over 4. 4-6—05 years. The
Qutxt‘mdmo stock optlons hd\e aw elghted av erdge remdmlng u)ntmgtual life of 5-4 . 26-14 years and a totd] intrinsic \d]LlC of $ 763, 549—701 285 F-30 Vvarmnts




—00- i Below is a tablg summarizing tln changes in wi dndnts outstandnw TOI the year mdul
December 31 2024 and "()7“ Schedule ui W mmms Outstanding \Iumbu of Weighted Average Warrants Exercise Price ($) Outstanding at December 31, 2622-2023 3
296,942 $ 7. 83 Granted-- Exercised-- Forfeited or E*pfred-explred -- Outstanding at December 31, 2024 3, 296, 942 $ 7. 83 Exercisable at December 31, 2024 3
296, 942 $ 7. 83 Number of Weighted Average Warrants Exercise Price ($) Outstanding at December 31, 2022 3, 296, 942 $ 7. 83 Granted-- Exercised--
Forfeited or expired -- Outstanding at December 31, 2023 3, 296, 942 § 7. 83 Exercisable at December 31, 2023 3, 296, 942 § 7. 83 Stock- based compensation
expense related to warrants of $ 0 ard-$48;962-was recorded for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2022-, respectively. As of December 31, 2623-2024
, the remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to non- vested warrants is § 0. The outstanding warrants have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2
1. 23 years and a total intrinsic value of $ 8-4, 200 . Restricted Stock Units: On December 20, 2023, 25, 000 restricted stock units at an exercise price of $ 1. 73 were
issued to a consultant. This restricted stock award vested immediately. On May 20, 2022, 30, 000 restricted stock units at an exercise price of § 1. 96 were issued to a
board advisor. Vesting will occur in equal quarterly installments of 2, 500 shares beginning on May 20, 2022. As of December 34-30 , 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, 10,
000 erd-7F-500-shares of common stock were issued, respectively. F- 34-31 Below is a table summarizing the changes in restricted stock units outstanding for the year
ended December 31, 2023-2024 : Schedule of Changes in Restricted Stock Units Outstanding Number of Weighted Average RSB-RSUs *s-Exercise Price ($)
Outstanding at December 31, 26222023 22-12, 500 $ 1. 96 Granted 76-45 , 000 $ 42 . 86-Exeretsed-00 Vested ( 86-55 , 000) $ 1. 8299 Forfeited or Expired-expired
-- Outstanding at December 31, 2023-2024 42-2 , 500 $ 1. 96 Exereisable-atDeeember34-2623—Stock- based compensation expense related to restricted stock units of
$109, 590 and $ 140, 662 and-$+05;-593-was recorded for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and20622-, respectively. As of December 31, 2023-2024 | the
remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to non- vested restricted stock units is $ 277 , 245-655 . The outstanding restricted stock units have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of +-0 . 14 years and a total intrinsic value of $ 8-12, 850 . F~35+14) Commitments and Contingencies On Nevember3+9-July 26 ,
20242024 , Ampliteeh-Group-ine-the Company’ s AGTGSS division cntered into a licensing product agr t. Under the terms of the agreement, the
licensor agreed to an AssetPurehase-Agreement{exclusive United States distribution and global licensing rights for certain 5G telecom equipment for 18
months for lh(. Ll?-\1-rehase—A—greememi)-purpose of marketmg, elhng, rentlng, deployment and malntenance of the hcensed products with Speetram

Ma v whie W ets-ofthe Company {the-“Aequisition
2y For services SPhe—Aeqms-r&en—was-eenﬁeleted-eﬂ—Beeeﬂaber—lé— %G%I—the Company will pay the Llcensor certaln software IP license fees in the amount of $ 1,

r-In addltlon, the llcensor may prov1de certain product certlﬁcatlon support fert-y

-- for (49)—days—after—certaln fees. As of Deccmbu %l 262%—2024 $ i v
¥e&rs—Net—Reveﬁues—e-f—t-he—bﬂs-mess- 000 eﬁhe—Reveﬁue—Statemeﬁ%hemﬂn&e&me&t—adﬁsﬁﬁeﬂt—x\ as deteﬁmned-te-be—pald towards thls llcensmg agreement

he-fatrva he-reven tstaTent-y nin 6 e as-previeusty ueolded1nlong-termdepos1tsas—ef
Peeembe 0 ts-an v rt-Habiity-as-of Decembe q d-on Mareh20;2623-the
consolldated balance sheet (lw Su )\Lqu(.]]l events ()n Lmuan -16-17 %9%4—2025 Mr. Matthew Kappers res1gned as a dlrector oflhe Company entered-,
including his positions as the chairman of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, and as a triple-netdease-agreement-member of the Audit
Committee and the Compensation Commlttee, eﬁectlve lmmedlately Mr Kappers reslgnatlon is for personal reasons a—l—%@-sqﬁafe—feet—faeﬂ-rt—y—m—&l-}eﬁ-
?eews—?e*a—term—ef—ﬁﬂve—yeafs-zmd not due ene yea
the Company first-an vlease-eommenee e rth-" s management team orrent—sh&ll—be—tﬂaated—ﬁal-}ewmg—the
eemmeﬁeemeﬁt—leas&date—kl-peﬁ-lease—eeeeutmﬁ—lhe ( ompany pa-rd— s board on any matter relatmgtwe— to months-the operations, policies or practices of rent
the Company or any issues regarding the Company’ s accounting policies or practices. On January 17, 2025, the Board appointed Mr. Shailesh “ Sonny ”
Modi as a seeurity-deposit-and-one-month-director of the Board of Directors of the Company to fill the vacancy resulting from Mr. Kappers ’ resignation s+ent
totaling-$17-999- The Cempany-expeets-Board appointed Mr. Modi to serve as be-fully-operationalat-thc rewMMICdivistonfaetlity May+-chairman of the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Commlttee 20624-and a member of the Audlt Commlttee and the Compensatlon Commlttee, effectlve lmmedlately

On January 20, 2024-2025 , the-e f 3 3 t g HESHE
Company entered into a standard form of director qtity-In ' agreement with Jerge
Heores-to-extend-its-each of the foregoing independent dlrectorS‘ Mr Andrew Lee, Mr. Danlel Mazzmta and Mr Shallesh “ Sonny ” Modl The Dlrector
Agreement provrdes for a one (1) year term unless termlnated earller upon certam Ma - 3 v -
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Director Agreement

Eem%a%ﬂr&ﬁeﬂ&@beﬁﬁﬁﬁmmk@#ﬁeeﬁ&f&d—seﬁew whlch Dnmlol I() rge Flores (1) C hld ...... "()()() and 2001. His dLll](.S mdudud mcludes samong other things,

resignation or removal leu Optl(, (.Omleﬂl(,dthﬂ appllcdtlons Mr....... Loewen (Jroup

International, Im) In (udllmn’ée-liﬂs—M-&hA—baekgretmd— he-th h O-a

S Dlrecto

H Effaet L
oftticesiectvesantary

providingfor-, among olhu lhm"s ha he-direetors-shalt-be-entt S
meetings —On-August22-, mdemmﬁcatlon and annual compensatlon of 15 20
common stock according to the Slmk /\ppuualmn Rmhl\ Restricted Slnck Rulmlcd Slmk l nits pursuant to

v e ay 2 b adepted-the Company’ s »\mmde and Restated 2020 Equity
lnunm e Pl.m for services. On March 20 é&re—ﬁmeﬁded—&nd—l%esf&ted—ll}aﬁi)- e#feeﬂ*e—as—eﬂBeeembeH—l%@Q%—ZOZS the Company entered into a non- binding
letter of intent with a contract manufacturer on behalf of its end user for the purchase of $ 78 million of the Company s Oran radios. If fulfilled, deliveries of
the order are expected to start in FY2025 and will substantially increase each year thereafter into 2027 . The Amended-and-Restated-Plan-non- binding letter of
intent is subject substantialysimilar-to the 2020-Plan-exeept-parties entering into a series of definitive purchase orders. No assurance can be given that
inereases—thc Company will enter into any purchase orders for the total amount of $ 78 million. On March 21, 2025, we entered into an equity distribution
agreement, or the Equity Distribution Agreement, with Maxim Group LLC, or Maxim, relating to offer and sell sharcs of our common stock avatlable-having an
aggregate offering price of up to $ 25 million from time to time through Maxim, acting as our exclusive sales agent, in an “ At- the- Market Offering ” at our
discretion. F- 32 On March 25, 2025, AmpliTech Group, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “ Company ”), entered into a Bank Loan Agreement (the “ Loan
Agreement ”) with Dime Community Bank (the “ Bank ») for issuanee-thereunder-a revolving line of credit for up to 2-$ 750 , 000 (the “ Revolving Line of Credit
”). The Company has established the Revolving Line of Credit for general working purposes and uses, as needed. As of the date of this filing, there is no
outstanding balance on the Revolving Line of Credit. The term of the Loan Agreement expires once all indebtedness under the Revolving Line of Credit has
been paid in full, or until such time as the Bank and the Company agree in writing to terminate the Loan Agreement. In addition to interest, the Company
agreed to pay an annual fee of $ 500. 00 on the anniversary date of each year the Loan Agreement is in effect, subject to change by the Bank with notice.
Pursuant to an Assignment of Deposit Agreement dated March 25, 2025 between us and the Bank, the Revolving Line of Credit is secured by a demand deposit
account with the Bank which requires us to have a balance no less than $ 814, 635. The Revolving Line of Credit is evidenced by a promissory note, which is
due on demand, or if there is no demand, then on March 1, 2026, unless extended, modified or renewed (the “ Note ). The Company has agreed to pay
regular monthly payments of all accrued unpaid interest due as of each payment date, beginning April 1, 2025, with all subsequent interest payments to be due
on the same day of each month thereafter. The Note bears a variable interest rate based on changes in the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate as published in the
Wall Street Journal from time to time, plus 1. 000 %, provided however, under no circumstances will the interest rate be less than 6. 250 ~% per annum or
more than the maximum rate allowed by applicable law. Late payment is subject to a fee of 5. 000 % of the regularly scheduled payment. In the event of
default, the Note bears an interest at a rate per annum equal to 5. 000 % above the rate that is otherwise applicable to such amounts. The aggregate purchase
price for the assets is $ 8 000 000 whlch consists of $ 3, 000, 000 in cash and $ 5, 000, 000 in restrlcted shares m common stmk —I-ﬂ—BeeembeHO%—B—ﬂ&e—Beafd—uf
which B+ h ah stated-the first § eu A a v plan-te-2, 250-500 ,
000 sha-res—ef-m cash and $ 2 500, 000 in restrlcted common stock will %EM%%—SEGH%HPP@WNERSH%P—@F@E&FB&N—BENEH@IA&GWNERS%

, 000 shar Ls OT




H%G%—Numbeﬁef-seeuﬁ&es—te—lx issued upon e*ereise-the procurement 01 eu-tstaﬂd-mg—e-pt-mﬁs—vwrﬁa-ﬁts—the Telus lnltlal purchase order lmd recelptﬁghﬁ
Weighted—aveﬁ&ge—pﬂee—ot assurance eutstaﬂdmg—epﬁeﬁs—waﬂaﬂts-aﬂd-ﬁghts%hmbeﬁn seeuﬁt-xes—the Telus Subsequent Purchase OrderS‘ and that the remaining

seeuﬂfy—hel-ders—l—E%é— 00 () in cash to be pald on December 5 2025 and % 500 —36-869- ((J() Equﬁy—eempeﬂs-&ﬁeﬂ-p-l-aﬂs—ﬂet—mapfeved-m shares of restrlcted
common stock will be issued to Company upon the transfer of the 5G ORAN radio products’ technology and intellectual property rights by seeurity-hetders-the
Seller to the Company. In connection with the transaction, Seller’ s affiliate agreed to transfer all of its rights, title and interest in SG ORAN radio products
technology and intellectual property rights to Seller. Subsequent to the transaction, Seller’ s affiliate will continue its business and retain its employees
focusing on software solutlons and services. F 33 Exhlblt 4 —46*&4—1—2—36—999% 39—869—999—4 DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK l he mllmx ing table

Fees-- Total $ 156,...... ) shdl&. of Ihc Company’ s common stock, par \.1]uc % 0. ()l)l per sh.uc ,as Well as certain prOVlSlonS of our amended and restated articles of
incorporation ( the-our * Commen-Articles of Incorporation ”) and our amended and restated bylaws (“ Bylaws ). This description is only a summary. You
should also refer to our Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, which have been filed with the SEC as exhibits to the registration statement of which this
prospectus forms a part. Authorized and Outstanding Capital Stock Our authorized capital stock consists of 500, 000, 000 shares of common stock, $ 0. 001
par value per share, and 1, 000, 000 shares of blank check preferred stock, $ 0. 001 par value per share. As of March 13, 2025, there are 19, 658, 960 shares of
common stock and 0 shares of preferred stock outstanding. Holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters
submitted to a vote of the stockholders, and do not have cumulative voting rights. Subject to preferences that may be applicable to any outstanding shares of
preferred stock, holders of common stock are entitled to receive ratably such dividends, if any, as may be declared from time to time by our Board of
Directors out of funds legally available for dividend payments. All outstanding, shares of common stock are fully paid and nonassessable, and the shares of
common stock to be issued upon completion of this offering will be fully paid and nonassessable. The holders of common stock have no preferences or rights
of cumulative voting, conversion, or pre- emptive or other subscription rights. There are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to the common
stock. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding- up of our affairs, holders of common stock will be entitled to share ratably in any of our assets
remaining after payment or provision for payment of all of our debts and obligations and after liquidation payments to holders of outstanding shares of
preferred stock, if any. Our common stock is traded on Nasdaq under the symbol “ AMPG. ” )-The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is
VStock Transfer LLC. The Board generally will be authorized, without further stockholder approval, to issue from time to time up to and- an aggregate of 1,
000, 000 shares of preferred stock, in onec or more series. Each series of preferred stock will have the number of shares, designations, preferences, voting
powers ( or special, preferential or no voting powers), relative, participating, optional or other special rights and privileges and such qualifications, limitations
or restrictions as is determined by the Board, which may include, among others, the right to provide that the shares of each such series may be: (i) subject to
redemption at such time or times and at such price or prices; (ii) entitled to receive dividends (which may be cumulative or non- cumulative) at such rates, on
such conditions, and at such times, and payable in preference to, or in such relation to, the dividends payable on any other class or classes or any other series;
(iii) entitled to such rights upon the dissolution of, or upon any distribution of the assets of, the Company; (iv) convertible into, or exchangeable for, shares of
any other class or classes of stock, or of any other series of the same or any other class or classes of stock of the Company at such price or prices or at such
rates of exchange and with such adjustments, if any; or (v) entitled to the benefit of such limitations, if any, on the issuance of additional shares of such series
or shares of any other series of preferred stock. Our stockholders have granted the Board authority to issue the preferred stock and to determine the rights
and preferences of the preferred stock in order to eliminate delays associated with a stockholder vote on specific issuances. The rights of the holders of
common stock will be subordinate to the rights of holders of any preferred stock issued in the future. The issuance of preferred stock, while providing
desirable flexibility in connection with possible acquisitions and other corporate purposes, could adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the
holders of common stock, and could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire, or discourage a third party from attempting to acquire, a majority of
our outstanding voting stock. Public Warrants In connection with our public offering in February 2021, | , 371, 428 units }-warrant-{the—Warrants-)-to
purehas&ene—Hﬁ-shere—e#Gemmeﬁ—Stec%&h%Waﬁaﬁ%Shafes—}tu a-an offermg p] ice of § 7 (l{) per unit were sold Each unit lssued in the offermg consisted of
one share fer1+66-%-0f common stock he-prie ach-Unt S o 8

warrant On February 17 ove




W es gula y A Ry-may-gty he rtAgent-at any time allu i-h&thelr orlglnal lssuanceel-es-mg-dafeef
the—@fferx-ng,—and at e t it ate{(a is eatey-any G-l-ebaw]—\‘%afrﬁﬂt—er—@-leb&l—tlme
up to February 19 2026 The Waﬁaﬁts-warrants may be exercnsed upon ARS sphit-ap-eombin changed-for-anothe

warrant certlficate on or prior shattmake-sueh
xercise G-leba-l—Wﬁﬁaﬂt—te—be—ﬁraﬂsferred—sp-l-ﬁ—u-p—

prlce whieh-ma oo y-wire-transfer-or-by ccxtmed or official bank Lhc‘d\ payablem—U-n-rted—Sfates
deHats-(o us, for the number of Warrants bemg exerclsed Under the terms of lhu \\ arrant Agem—&t—Agreement we must use our best efforts to maintain the
effectiveness prineipal-offtee-of the registration statement and current prospectus relating to common stock issuable upon exercise of the WarrantWarrants
Agentuntil the expiration of the Warrants. If we fail to maintain the effectiveness of the registration statement and current prospectus relating to the common
stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants, the holders of the Warrants shall have the rlght to exercise the Warrants solely via a cashless exercise feature
prov1ded effor te-in the Warrants, untll such time efﬁee—ef—eﬂe—ef—rts—ageﬂ-ts—q S ma




there is an effective registration statement peﬁﬁ-x-&-mg—the—rssu&nee-and current prospectus Exercise leltatmn. A holder may not exercise any portlon of the-a
Warrant to the extent that the holder, together with its affiliates and any other person or entity acting as a group, would own more than 4. 99 % of the
outstanding common stock after exercise, as such percentage ownership is determined in accordance with the terms of the Warrant, except that upon prior
notice from the holder to us, the holder may waive such limitation up to a percentage not in excess of 9. 99 %. Exercise Price. The exercise price per whole
share of common stock purchasable upon exercise of the Warrants is $ 7. 00 per share. The exercise price is subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of
certain stock dividends and distributions, stock splits, stock combinations, reclassifications or similar events affecting our common stock and also upon any
distributions of assets, including cash, stock or other property to our stockholders. Fractional Sharcs te-er+esale-. No fractional shares of common stock will be
issued upon exercise of the Warrants. If, upon exercise of the Warrant Shares-by-, a Holder-holder would or(B)-the-Warrantis-being-exereised-via-Cashless
E*eferse—then—éhe-eemﬁeafes—fer—W&ﬁ&m—Shafes-s-ha*lx entltled &aﬂsmﬁted-by—t-he—\‘#aﬁaﬂt—z%gem—m receive a fractional interest in a share the Holderby-erediting
bt-, i the-Company-beeomes-obligated-to-we will, upon
tv)-of ﬂae—Wa-ﬁa-ﬁt-Gert-rﬁeat&xueh fraction ebligation
. W 5 ary ] 1
e A er-fats ehverpaymen h Agent-efan am«mm equ al m such fractlon multiplied by the aggregate—E*efetseexermsePﬁee
price efl If multlple Warrants are exercnsed by the holder at the same time, we shall pay a cash adjustment in respect of such final fraction in an amount equal
to such fraction multiplied by the exercise price. Transferability. Subject to applicable laws, the Warrants may be offered for sale, sold, transferred or
assigned without our consent. Exchange Listing. The Warrants are listed on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol “ AMPGW ”. Warrant Shares-te
Agent; Global Certificate. The Warrants were issued in registered form under a warrant agent agreement between the Warrant Agent and us. The warrants
shall initially be purehased-represented only by one or more global warrants deposited with the Warrant Agent, as custodian on behalf of The Depository Trust
Company (DTC) and registered in the name of Cede & Co., a nominee of DTC, or as otherwise directed by DTC. Fundamental Transactions. In the event of a
fundamental transaction, as described in the Warrants and generally including any reorganization, recapitalization or reclassification of our common stock,
the sale, transfer or other disposition of all or substantially all of our properties or assets, our consolidation or merger with or into another person, the
acquisition of more than 50 % of our outstanding common stock, or any person or group becoming the beneficial owner of 50 % of the voting power
represented by our outstanding common stock, the holders of the Warrants will be entitled to receive the kind and amount of securities, cash or other
property that the holders would have received had they exercised the warrants immediately prior to such fundamental transaction. Rights as a Stockholder.
The Warrant holders do not have the rights or privileges of holders of common stock or any voting rights until they exercise their Warrants and receive
shares of common stock. After the issuance of shares of common stock upon exercise of saeh-the Warrants, each Helder-holder will be entitled to one vote for
each share held of record on all matters to be voted on by stockholders. Governing Law. The Warrants and the warrant agency agreement are governed by
New York law. Anti- Takeover Effects of Some Provisions of Nevada Law The following provisions of the Nevada Revised Statutes (“ NRS ”) could, if
applicable, have the effect of discouraging takeovers of our company. Transactions with Interested Stockholders. The NRS prohibits a publicly- traded
Nevada company from engaging in any business combination with an interested stockholder for a period of three years following the date that the stockholder
became an interested stockholder unless, prior to that date, the Board of Directors of the corporation approved either the business combination itself or the
transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder. An “ interested stockholder  is defined as any entity or person beneficially
owning, directly or indirectly, 10 % or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation and any entity or person affiliated with, controlling, or
controlled by any of these entities or persons. The definition of “ business combination ” is sufficiently broad to cover virtually any type of transaction that
would allow a potential acquirer to use the corporation ’ s Warrant-assets to finance the acquisition or otherwise benefit its own interests rather than the
interests of the corporation and its stockholders. In addition, business combinations that are not approved and therefore take place after the three year
waiting period may also be prohibited unless approved by the board of directors and stockholders or the price to be paid by the interested stockholder is equal
to the highest of (i) the highest price per share paid by the interested stockholder within the 3 years immediately preceding the date of the announcement of the
business combination or in the transaction in which he or she became an interested stockholder, whichever is higher; (ii) the market value per common share
on the date of announcement of the business combination or the date the interested stockholder acquired the shares, whichever is higher; or (iii) if higher for
the holders of preferred stock, the highest liquidation value of the preferred stock. Acquisition of a Controlling Interest. The NRS contains provisions
governing the acquisition of a “ controlling interest ” and provides generally that any person that acquires 20 % or more of the outstanding voting shares of
an “ issuing corporation, ” defined as Nevada corporation that has 200 or more stockholders at least 100 of whom are Nevada residents ( as sct forth in the
corporation’ s stock ledger); and does business in Nevada directly or through an affiliated corporation, may be denied voting rights with respect to the
acquired shares, unless a majority of the disinterested stockholder of the corporation elects to restore such voting rights in whole or in part. The statute
focuses on the acquisition of a “ controlling interest ” defined as the ownership of outstanding shares sufficient, but for the control share law, to enable the
acquiring person, directly or indirectly and individually or in association with others, to exercise (i) one- fifth or more, but less than one- third; (ii) one- third
or more, but less than a majority; or (iii) a majority or more of the voting power of the corporation in the election of directors. The question of whether or not
to confer voting rights may only be considered once by the stockholders and once a decision is made, it cannot be revisited. In addition, unless a corporation’ s
articles of incorporation or bylaws provide otherwise (i) acquired voting securities are redeemable in whole or in part by the issuing corporation at the average
price paid for the securities within 30 days if the acquiring person has not given a timely information statement to the issuing corporation or if the
stockholders vote not to grant voting rights to the acquiring person’ s securities; and (ii) if voting rights are granted to the acquiring person, then any
stockholder who voted against the grant of voting rights may demand purchase from the issuing corporation, at fair value, of all or any portion of their
securities. The provisions of this section do not apply to acquisitions made pursuant to the laws of descent and distribution, the enforcement of a judgment, or
the satisfaction of a security interest, or acquisitions made in connection with certain mergers or reorganizations. Exhibit 10. 32 CERTAIN IDENTIFIED
INFORMATION HAS BEEN EXCLUDED FROM THE EXHIBIT BECAUSE IT IS BOTH NOT MATERIAL AND IS THE TYPE THAT THE
REGISTRANT TREATS AS PRIVATE OR CONFIDENTIAL. [ * * * * * | INDICATES THAT INFORMATION HAS BEEN REDACTED OR OMITTED.
FORM OF ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN AMPLITECH GROUP, INC. TITAN CREST, LLC March 26, 2025 TABLE OF
CONTENTSARTICLE I Purchase and Sale Scction 7-1. 01 Purchase and Sale of Assets Section 1. 02 Excluded Assets Section 1. 03 Assumed Liabilities Section
1. 04 Excluded Liabilities Section 1. 05 Purchase Price Section 1. 06 [ * * * * * | License to Use the Purchased Assets Section 1. 07 Buyer License Section 1. 08
Transition Services Agreement Section 1. 09 Allocation of Purchase Price Section 1. 10 Withholding Tax Section 1. 11 Closing Section 1. 12 Closing
Deliverables. ARTICLE II Representations and warranties of Seller and [ * * * * * | Section 2. 01 Organization and Authority of Seller; Enforceability Section
2. 02 No Conflicts; Consents Section 2. 03 Title to Purchased Assets Section 2. 04 Intellectual Property Section 2. 05 Assigned Contracts Section 2. 06 Permits
Section 2. 07 Compliance with Laws Section 2. 08 Legal Proceedings. Section 2. 09 Brokers Section 2. 10 Full Disclosure. Section 2. 11 Financial Information
Section 2. 12 Sufficiency of Assets Section 2. 13 Accredited Investor Section 2. 14 No Other Representations and Warranties ARTICLE III Representations
and Warranties of Buyer Section 3. 01 Organization and Authority of Buyer; Enforceability Section 3. 02 No Conflicts; Consents Section 3. 03 Legal
Proceedings. Section 3. 04 Brokers Section 3. 05 Solvency; Sufficiency of Funds Section 3. 06 Full Disclosure Section 3. 07 No Other Representations and
Warranties ARTICLE IV Covenants Section 4. 01 Public Announcements Section 4. 02 Non- Competition Section 4. 03 Discontinuation of Seller’ s Activity
Relating to the Purchased Assets Section 4. 04 Bulk Sales Laws Section 4. 05 Transfer Taxes Section 4. 06 Further Assurances; Assistance of AuditARTICLE
V Indemnification Section 5. 01 Survival Section 5. 02 Indemnification By Seller Section 5. 03 Indemnification By Buyer Section 5. 04 Indemnification
Procedures Section 5. 05 Certain Limitations. Section 5. 06 Tax Treatment of Indemnification Payments Section 5. 07 Cumulative Remedies ARTICLE VI
Miscellaneous Section 6. 01 Expenses Section 6. 02 Notices Section 6. 03 Headings Section 6. 04 Severability Section 6. 05 Entire Agreement Section 6. 06




Successors and Assigns Section 6. 07 No Third- Party Beneficiaries Section 6. 08 Amendment and Modification Section 6. 09 Waiver Section 6. 10 Governing
Law, Dispute Resolution, Venue and Attorneys’ Fees. Section 6. 11 Waiver of Jury Trial Section 6. 12 Specific Performance Section 6. 13 Counterparts
Appendices Appendix A- Allocation of NRE Payments Exhibit A- Form of Assignment and Assumption Exhibit B- [ * * * * * | [P Transfer Agreement ASSET
PURCHASE AGREEMENT This Asset Purchase Agreement ( this “ Agreement ), dated as of March 26, 2025 (the “ Effective Date ), is entered into by and
between Titan Crest, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, with its principal office located at 9 E. Loockerman Street, Suite 311, Dover, Delaware 19901
(“ Titan Crest ” ) hereof-, (the « Seller ”), [ * * * * * |, a corporation organized under the laws of Canada (solely relating to Section 1. 06 and Articles II, IV and
V of this Agreement, “ [ * * * * * | ) and AmpliTech Group, Inc., an Nevada corporation (“ Buyer ”). Each Seller, [ * * * * * | and Buyer are referred to
herein, individually, as a “ Party ” and, collectively, the “ Parties. ” RECITALS A. Seller, either directly or indirectly through its subsidiary [ * * * * * ] is in
the business of developing, designing, marketing and selling a wide range of [ * * * * * | based on ORAN standards (“ Seller’ s Business ”); B. Seller’ s
Business includes, but is not limited to, developing, manufacturing, marketing and selling products that use radio frequency technology to make [ * * * * * |;
C. Prior to execution of this Agreement, [ * * * * * | has transferred to Seller all of its right, title and interests, free and clear of any claims, liens and
encumbrances, certain assets, including, but not limited to, assets and intellectual property relating to the radio frequency technology used for the [ * * * * * ]
currently being manufactured and sold by the-Warrant-Share DeliveryDate-[ * * * * * | _or in design and development by [ * * * * * |, ( thc WarrantAgent-* [ * *
* % * ] Assets ”) under that certain Intellectual Property Assignment And Transfer Agreement, dated March 26, 2025, a copy of which is attached hereto as
Exihibit B (the « [ * * * * * | [P Transfer Agreement ) and Seller desires to sell and Buyer desires to purchase from Seller the [ * * * * * | Assets subject to the
terms and conditions set forth herein; and D. Seller and [ * * * * * | will continue to engage in the business of developing, designing, marketing and selling a
wide range of [ * * * * * | based on ORAN standards, but will not ebligated-engage in any activity that develops or supports a technology or design that would
compete with the [ * * * * * | Assets for a period of 10 years from the Closing. NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
hereinafter set forth and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as
follows: ARTICLE I Purchase and Sale Section 1. 01 Purchase and Sale of Assets. Subject (0 the terms and conditions set forth herein, Seller shall sell, assign,
transfer, convey and dcliver to Buyer, and Buyer shall purchase from Seller, all of Seller’ s right, title and interest in its [ * * * * * ]| Assets, which consists of
the following assets: (a) all related product lines and product specifications listed on Section 1. 01 (a) of the disclosure schedules attached hereto (“ Disclosure
Schedules ) or as transferred to Seller under the [ * * * * * | [P Transfer Agreement; (b) a list of all of Seller’ s customers related to [ * * * * * | Assets, as set
forth on Section 1. 01 (b) of the Disclosure Schedules or as transferred to Seller under the [ * * * * * | IP Transfer Agreement (“ [ * * * * * | Assets Customers
”); (¢) Purchased IP (as defined below) listed on Section 1. 01 (¢) of the Disclosure Schedules related to the [ * * * * * | Assets or as transferred to Seller under
the [ * * * * * | P Transfer Agreement; (d) the [ * * * * * | IP Transfer Agreement and other contracts of Seller, if any, related to the [ * * * * * | Assets set
forth on Section 1. 01 (d) of the Disclosure Schedules (the “ Included Contracts ”); (e) the items and rights related to the [ * * * * * | Assets including samples,
prototypes, inventory, jigs, molds, etc. set forth in Section 1. 01 (e) of the Disclosure Schedules or as transferred to Seller under the [ * * * * * | IP Transfer
Agreement. (f) all [ * * * * * ] Assets related intellectual property listed on Section 1. 01 (f) of the Disclosure Schedules, or as transferred to Seller under the [ *
* % % % | P Transfer Agreement including, but not limited, the source code for any software related to the [ * * * * * | Assets including the intellectual property
being developed by [ * * * * * | for future delivery under the [ * * * * * | [P Transfer Agreement; (g) all [ * * * * * | Assets related data and records, vendor
lists, research and development reports and records, production reports and records, operating guides and manuals, product formulas and designs, financial
and accounting records, creative materials, advertising materials, promotional materials, studies, and reports or as transferred to Seller under the [ * * * * * |
IP Transfer Agreement; and (h) other assets set forth on Section 1. 01 (h) of the Disclosure Schedules. Collectively, such assets are referred to herein as the «
Purchased Assets ” and shall be offered and sold to Buyer free and clear of any mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, security interest, claim or other encumbrance
(“ Encumbrance ”). The [ * * * * * ] related assets and intellectual property shall be delivered to Buyer within thirty (30) days of the Closing Date. Section 1.
02 Excluded Assets. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Purchased Assets shall not include Seller’ s raw materials, work in process, or finished goods (“ Seller’
s Inventory ), whether or not related to the [ * * * * * | Assets nor any assets of Seller that are not included in the Purchased Assets (collectively, the «
Excluded Assets ). Section 1. 03 Assumed Liabilities. Following the Closing, Buyer will only pay, perform, discharge and satisfy the liabilities and obligations
arising out of or relating to the Purchased Assets that are set forth in Section 1. 03 of the Disclosure Schedules and the liabilities and obligations under the
Assigned Contracts (as hereinafter defined) arising after the date hereof (collectively, the “ Assumed Liabilities ). Section 1. 04 Excluded Liabilities.
Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, other than the Assumed Liabilities set forth in Section 1. 03 of this Agreement, Seller will
retain and Buyer is not assuming nor will Buyer be responsible for any liability or obligation of Seller or any affiliate of Seller or arising out of or relating to
the Purchased Assets including any Warrant-warranty Shares{via-DWAC-liability for products sold by Seller prior to the Closing. Specifically, the Buyer is not
assuming any liability or obligation relating to the Seller’ s Business, or operation of the Seller’ s Business, of whatever nature, whether known or unknown,
contingent or otherwise , arising out of or relating to Seller’ s ownership or operation of the Seller’ s Business and the Purchased Assets prior to the Closing
(collectively, the “ Excluded Liabilities ” ) untit-. All Excluded Liabilities will be retained by and remain obligations and liabilities of Seller. Section 1. 05
Purchase Price. Buyer intends to acquire the Purchased Assets free and clear of all liens and encumbrances of any kind or nature for a total consideration of
Eight Million United States Dollars ($ 8, 000, 000) (“ Purchase Price ”) to the Seller to be paid as follows: (a) Cash Payment (i) A first cash payment of Two
Million Five Hundred Thousand U. S. Dollars (US $ 2, 500, 000) (the “ Closing Payment ) which shall be contingent on the following conditions: 1.
Assignment or new issuance of a [ * * * * * | purchase order from Telus for fiscal year 2025 delivery to the Buyer; 2. reeeiptReceipt of correspondence from
Telus to Buyer, as determined by Buyer in its sole but reasonable discretion, indicating Telus’ s intention to issue purchase orders in the amount of [ * * * * * |
(including the initial purchase order indicated in Section 1. 05 (a) (i) 1 above. These purchase orders are to be spread over three (3) years for [ * * * * * | to the
Buyer. The purchase orders shall include [ * * * * * | for non- recurring engineering (NRE) related to the development of [ * * * * * |, with such payment
allocated in accordance with Appendix A attached hereto. (ii) A second cash payment of Five Hundred Thousand U. S. Dollars (US $ 500 . and-000) to be paid
on December 5, 2025, contingent on the transfer of fully developed design package for [ * * * * * | technology (the “ Transfer ) as contemplated by the [ * * * *
* ] IP Transfer Agreement and [ * * * * * |> s acknowledgment that the documentation / drawing package is suitable for full production purposes. If the
Transfer does not occur by October 31, 2025, this milestone payment will be postponed by the same number of days equal to the difference between October
31, 2025 and the day Transfer occurs. (b) Payment in Common Stock. A total of Five Million U. S. Dollars (US $ 5, 000, 000) to be paid in the form of
restricted common stock of Buyer upon achievement of the following milestones: (i) First payment of Two Million Five Hundred Thousand U. S. Dollars (US $
2,500, 000) in the form of Buyer’ s restricted common stock based on the Volume Weighted Average Price of Buyer’ s common stock over the preceding thirty
(30) trading days from the date the milestone set forth in Section 1. 05 (a) (i) is achieved. (ii) Second payment of Two Million Five Hundred Thousand U. S.
Dollars (US $ 2, 500, 000) in the form of Buyer’ s restricted common stock based on the Volume Weighted Average Price of Buyer’ s common stock over the
preceding thirty (30) trading days from the date of the Transfer. (c) Issuance of Shares: All share issuances contemplated by this Agreement shall be
conducted in full compliance with applicable Warrant-U. S. Federal and state securities laws, including, but not limited to, the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. The common stock contemplated to be issued in connection with the sale of [ * * * * * |
Assets shall be subject to a six (6) month restriction period, during which Seller shall not be permitted to engage in any sale, transfer, or other disposition of
such shares. All Share-share Delivery-issuances under this Agreement shall be subject to approval by the Buyer’ s shareholders if, and only if, required by
NASDAQ Rule 5635 (d) or similar rule of another National Stock Exchange, if applicable. Section 1. 06 [ * * * * * | License to Use the Purchased Assets. [ * * *
* * | hereby grants to Buyer an irrevocable, perpetual, transferable, sublicensable, royalty free, worldwide exclusive license to use the Purchased Assets set
forth in Section 1. 01 of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, (a) make, use, offer to sell, sell, import, advertise, manufacture, market, and distribute
products and provide services related to the Purchased Assets and (b) reproduce, publicly perform, transmit, publicly display, distribute and recreate
derivative works based on the Purchased Assets through all media, now known or hereafter developed, for any purpose. Buyer has the sole right, in its
discretion, and at its expense, to file, prosecute, and maintain all applications, registrations, and patents relating to the licensed intellectual property covered
by this Section 1. 06 of this Agreement and [ * * * * * |, at the request of Buyer, and at Buyer’ s expense, shall provide any reasonably requested assistance
with such filing, maintenance and prosecution. It is the intent of the Parties that the Buyer shall have the sole, exclusive, and unencumbered right to
commercialize all of the assets described in Section 1. 01 of this Agreement. Seller and [ * * * * * | further agree to take further action reasonably requested by
the Buyer to fully effect the intention of the Parties to the license granted in this Section 1. 06 of this Agreement. Section 1. 07 Buyer License. Buyer hereby
grants to [ * * * * * | and Seller a royalty free, worldwide license to use the Purchased Assets to the extent reasonably necessary for [ * * * * * | and / or Seller
to perform their respective obligations under this Agreement. Section 1. 08 Transition Services Agreement. Promptly after the Closing, Buyer and Seller shall
enter into a short- term transition services agreement for up to two (2) of Seller’ s employees to provide Buyer assistance in the assignment and transfer of the
Purchased Assets from Seller to Buyer for a fee not to exceed Four Hundred Thirty Thousand U. S. Dollars (US $ 430, 000. 00) (the “ Transition Services



Agreement ). Section 1. 09 Allocation of Purchase Price. Seller and Buyer agree to allocate the Purchase Price, including any Milestone Payments, among the
Purchased Assets for all purposes (including tax and financial accounting) as agreed by their respective accountants, negotiating in good faith on their behalf.
Buyer and Seller shall file all tax returns (including amended returns and claims for refund) and information reports in a manner consistent with such
allocation. Section 1. 10 Withholding Tax Buyer shall be entitled to deduct and withhold from the Purchase Price, Milestone Payments and any other
payments contemplated by this Agreement such amounts that Buyer may be required to deduct and withhold under any applicable tax law. All such withheld
amounts shall be treated as delivered to Seller hereunder. Section 1. 11 Closing. The closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “ Closing
”) shall take place promptly upon the satisfaction of the condition set forth in Section 1. 05 (a) (i) of this Agreement (the day on which the Closing takes place
being the “ Closing Date ”) remotely via electronic exchange of signatures. The consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be
deemed extended-to occur at 12: 01 a. m. on the Closing Date. Section 1. 12 Closing Deliverables. (a) At the Closing, Seller shall deliver to Buyer the following:
(i) an assignment and assumption agreement in form and substance satisfactory to Buyer (the “ Assignment and Assumption Agreement ) and duly executed
by ene-day-Seller, effecting the assignment to and assumption by Buyer of the Purchased Assets, in substantially the for-form attached each-day-(er-part-thereof-
- hereto as Exhibit A; (ii ) untitsueh-payment-copies of all consents, approvals, waivers and authorizations referred to in Section of the Disclosure Schedules;
(iii) a certificate of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary (or equivalent officer) of Seller certifying as to (A) the resolutions of the Members of Seller, duly
adopted and in effect, which authorize the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby; (B) the names
and signatures of the officers of Seller authorized to sign this Agreement and the documents to be delivered hereunder; (iv) a certificate of the Secretary or
Assistant Secretary (or equivalent officer) of [ * * * * * | certifying as to (A) the resolutions of the Board of Directors of [ * * * * * |, duly adopted and in effect,
which authorize the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the transactions contemplated hereby and the Intellectual Property Assignment
And Transfer Agreement between [ * * * * * ]| and Seller, dated March , 2025, (the “ [ * * * * * ] IP Transfer Agreement ”) a copy of which is attached
hereto as Exhibit B; (B) the names and s1gnatures of the ofﬁcers of [ * ** * % ] authorlzed to slgn thls Agreement and the documents to be dcll\ ered hereunder,
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W v A A eh o \mh other customary 1nstruments of transfer, assumptlon, ﬁllngs or documents, in form and
substance reasonably satlsfactory to Buyer, as may be requ1red to give effect to this Agreement. (b) At the Closing, Buyer shall deliver to Seller the following:
(i) the Closing Payment, by wire transfer of immediately available funds to an account designated in writing by Seller to Buyer no later than five (5) days prior
to the Closing Date; (ii) the Assignment and Assumption Agreement duly executed by Buyer; (iii) a certificate of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary (or
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the transactions contemplated hereby; and (B) the names and signatures of the ofﬁcers of Buyer authorlzed to sign this Agreement and the documents to be
delivered hereunder; (iv) a Purchase Order from buyer to t-he—W-aﬁaﬂt—Ageﬁt—[ BaOTL ] for eﬁﬂeel-l-a-t-teﬂ-er—l-&eﬁﬂee-}ed-the same number and feﬂﬁ- for orif
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the previstens-Purchase Order from Telus descrlbed in Sectlon 1. 05 (a) (1) 1 of this \”lL\.lllLlll ARTICLE I Representatlons and warranties of Seller and [ * *
* % %] Seller and [ * * * * * |, jointly and severally represent and warrant to Buyer that the statements contained in this Article III are true and correct as of
the date hereof and as of the Closing. For purposes of this Article 111, « Seller’ s knowledge ” and “ knowledge of Seller ” shall mean the actual knowledge
(after reasonable investigation) of , who is the Managing Director of Seller and authorized agent of [ * * * * * ], Section 2. 01 Organization and
Authority of Seller; Enforceability. Titan Crest is a limited liability company, duly formed, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of
Delaware. [ * * * * * ] is a corporation, duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the federal laws of Canada. Seller and [ * * * * * ] each has
the requisite power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated
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be dehvered hereunder and the consummatlon of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly oulhm ized by all requisite company or corporate action
on the part of Seller and [ * * * * * ] as the case may be. This Agreement and the documents to be delivered hereunder have been duly cxccuted and delivered
by Seller the-Cempany-and [ * * * * * | and (assuming due authorization, L\LL[IUOH and delivery hereef-by Buyer) this Agreement and the Warrant-Agent;
documents to be delivered hereunder eenstitutes— constitute a-legal, valid and fegalty-binding ebligatienr-obligations of the-Company-Seller and [ * * * * * |,

enforceable against each in accordance with the-their Gempaﬂy-respectlve terms. Section 2. 02 No Conflicts; Consents. Other than as set forth on Section 3. 02 of

the Disclosure Schedules, the execution, delivery and performance by Seller and [ * * * * * | of this Agreement and the documents to be delivered hereunder,
and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, do not and will not: (a) violate or conflict with the certificate of incorporation, by- laws or
other organizational documents of Seller or [ * * * * * |; (b) violate or conflict with any judgment, order, decree, statute, law, ordinance, rule or regulation
applicable to Seller and [ * * * * * ] or the Purchased Assets; (c) conflict with, or result in (with or without notice or lapse of time or both) any violation of, or
default under, or give rise to a right of termination, acceleration or modification of any obligation or loss of any benefit under any contract or other
instrument to which Seller or [ * * * * * | js a party or to which any of the Purchased Assets are subject; or (d) result in the creation or imposition of any
Encumbrance on the Purchased Assets. No consent, approval, waiver or authorization is required to be obtained by Seller or [ * * * * * | from any person or
entity (including any governmental authority) in connection with the execution, delivery and performance by Seller and [ * * * * * ] of this Agreement and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. Section 2. 03 Title to Purchased Assets. Seller and [ * * * * * | own and have good title to the
Purchased Assets, free and clear of Encumbrances, except for: (a) liens for taxes not yet due and payable or being contested in good faith by appropriate
procedures; (b) mechanics’, carriers’, workmen’ s, repairmen’ s or other like liens arising or incurred in the ordinary course of business; and (c) liens arising
under original purchase price conditional sales contracts and equipment leases with third parties entered into in the ordinary course of business. Prior to the
execution of this Agreement, [ * * * * * | has transferred all of its right, title and interest to the Purchased Assets to Seller. Section 2. 04 Intellectual Property.
(a) “ Intellectual Property ” means any and all of the following in any jurisdiction throughout the world: (i) trademarks and service marks, including all
applications and registrations and the goodwill connected with the use of and symbolized by the foregoing; (ii) copyrights, including all applications and
registrations related to the foregoing; (iii) trade secrets and confidential know- how; (iv) patents and patent applications; (v) software, both source code and
object code, relating to the Purchased Assets; (vi) designs, BOM, and other documents and handbooks reasonably necessary for the manufacture of products
from the Purchased Assets; and (vii) other intellectual property and related proprietary rights, interests and protections (including all rights to sue and
recover and retain damages, costs and attorneys’ fees for past, present and future infringement and any other rights relating to any of the foregoing). (b)
Section 2. 04 (b) of the Disclosure Schedules lists all Intellectual Property owned by Seller and related solely and exclusively to the Seller’ s Business that is
included in the Purchased Assets (“ Purchased IP ). Seller and [ * * * * * ] own or have adequate rights to use all the Purchased IP, free and clear of all
Encumbrances. Seller is not bound by any outstanding judgment, injunction, order or decree restricting the use of the Purchased IP, or restricting the
licensing thereof to any person or entity. With respect to the registered Intellectual Property listed on Section 2. 04 (b) of the Disclosure Schedules, (i) all
registrations for such Intellectual Property are subsisting and in full force and effect; and (ii) Seller has paid all maintenance fees and made all filings required
to maintain Seller’ s registrations thereof. For all registered Intellectual Property or Intellectual Property for which an application to register has been filed,
Section 2. 04 (b) of the Disclosure Schedules lists (A) the jurisdiction where the application or registration is located; (B) the application or registration
number; and (C) the application or registration date. (c) To the knowledge of Seller and [ * * * * * ], Seller’ s current use and use by [ * * * * * | within the last
five (5) years of the Purchased IP has not infringed and does not infringe, violate, dilute or misappropriate the Intellectual Property of any person or entity.
There are no claims pending or threatened in writing by any person or entity with respect to the ownership, validity, enforceability, effectiveness or use of the
Purchased IP. To the knowledge of Seller and [ * * * * * |, no person or entity is infringing, misappropriating, diluting or otherwise violating any of the
Purchased IP, and neither Seller nor any affiliate of Seller has within the last five (5) years made or asserted any claim, demand or notice against any person
or entity alleging any such infringement, misappropriation, dilution or other violation. Section 2. 05 Assigned Contracts. Section 2. 05 of the Disclosure
Schedules sets forth each material contract related to the Purchased Assets and, other than as indicated therein, each is included in the Purchased Assets and
will be assigned to Buyer as part of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “ Assigned Contracts ). Each Assigned Contract is valid and



binding on Seller in accordance with its terms and is in full force and effect. None of Seller or . to Seller’ s knowledge, any other party thereto is in breach of or
default under (or is alleged to be in breach of or default under) or has provided or received any notice of any intention to terminate, any Assigned Contract.
No event or circumstance has occurred that, with or without notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute and-- an event of default under any Assigned
Contract or result in a termination thereof or would cause or permit the acceleration or other changes of any right or obligation or the loss of benefit
thereunder). Complete and correct copies of each Assigned Contract have been made available to Buyer. To the knowledge of Seller and [ * * * * * |, there are
no disputes pending or threatened under any Assigned Contract. Section 2. 06 Permits. Section 2. 06 of the Disclosure Schedules lists all permits, licenses,
franchises, approvals, authorizations, registrations, certificates, variances and similar rights obtained from governmental authorities related to the Seller’ s
Business that are included in the Purchased Assets (the “ Transferred Permits ). The Transferred Permits are valid and in full force and effect. All fees and
charges with respect to such Transferred Permits as of the date hereof have been paid in full. No event has occurred that, with or without notice or lapse of
time or both, would reasonably be expected to result in the revocation, suspension, lapse or limitation of any of the Transferred Permits. Section 2. 07
Compliance with Laws. Seller and [ * * * * * | have been in material compliance, and each is now in material compliance, with all applicable international,
federal, state and local laws and regulations applicable to the Seller’ s Business as conducted at and prior to the Closing relating to the ownership and use of
the Purchased Assets. Section 2. 08 Legal Proceedings. There is no claim, action, suit, proceeding or governmental investigation (“ Action ”) of any nature
pending or, to Seller’ s knowledge, threatened against or by Seller or [ * * * * * ] (a) relating to or affecting the Purchased Assets; or (b) that challenges or
seeks to prevent, enjoin or otherwise delay the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. To the knowledge of Seller and [ * * * * * |, no event has
occurred or circumstances exist that may give rise to, or serve as a basis, for any such Action. Section 2. 09 Brokers. No broker, finder or investment banker is
entitled to any brokerage, finder’ s or other fee or commission in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement based upon arrangements
made by or on behalf of Seller or [ * * * * * ], Section 2. 10 Full Disclosure. To the knowledge of Seller and [ * * * * * |, no representation or warranty by Seller
or [ * * * * %] in this Agr t and no stat t contained in the Disclosure Schedules to this Agreement contains any untrue statement of a material fact, or
omits to state a material fact necessary to make the statements contained herein, in light of the circumstances in which the-they are made, not misleading.
Section 2. 11 Financial Information. The financial information provided by Seller to Buyer relating to the [ * * * * * ]| Assets in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the « [ * * * * * | Assets Financial Information ") was prepared by Seller and was based on final versions of
financial statements reviewed by Seller’ s independent accountants and other books and records of Seller kept in the ordinary course of its business. The [ * * *
* * | Assets Financial Information is accurate and complete in all material respects. Section 2. 12 Sufficiency of Assets. Other than as set forth in Section 3. 13
of the Disclosure Schedules, the Purchased Assets constitute all of the [ * * * * * | Assets and represent all assets reasonably necessary for Buyer’ s production
of radio frequency products derived from the [ * * * * * | Assets in a manner reasonably consistent with Seller’ s operation of the Seller’ s Business prior to the
Closing. Section 2. 13 Accredited Investor. Seller represents that it is an Accredited Investor within the meaning of Section 501 (a) of Regulation D
promulgated under Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Section 2. 14 No Other Representations and Warrants-Warranties . Except for the representations and
warranties contained in this Article II1, neither Buyer nor any other person or entity has made or makes any other express or implied representation or
warranty, either written or oral, on behalf of Buyer. ARTICLE III Representations and Warranties of Buyer Buyer represents and warrants to Seller that the
statements contained in this Article III are true and correct as of the date hereof. For purposes of this Article I1I, “ Buyer’ s knowledge ” and “ knowledge of
Buyer ” shall mean the actual knowledge (after reasonable investigation) of Fawad Maqbool, Buyer’ s Chief Executive Officer. Section 3. 01 Organization and
Authority of Buyer; Enforceability. Buyer is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the state of Nevada. Buyer
has full corporate power and authority to enter into this Agreement and the documents to be delivered hereunder, to carry out its obligations hereunder and
to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. The execution, delivery and performance by Buyer of this Agreement and the documents to be
delivered hereunder and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly authorized s-by all requisite corporate action on the part of
Buyer. This Agreement and the documents to be delivered hereunder have been duly cxccuted and issted-delivered by Buyer the-Company-and-, and (assuming
due authentieation-thereof-authorization, execution and delivery by Seller) this Agreement the-Warrant-Agent-pursuantherete-and paymenttherefor-by-the
documents to be delivered hereunder Holders-as-provided-in-the-Registration-Statement-constitute legal, valid and fegatby-binding obligations of Buyer the-Company
enforceable against Buyer the-Cempany-in accordance with their respective terms . Section 3. 02 No Conflicts; Consents. The execution, delivery and performance
by Buyer of this Agreement and the documents to be delivered hereunder, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, do not and will
not: (a) violate or conflict with the certificate of incorporation, by- laws or other organizational documents of Buyer; or (b) violate or conflict with any
judgment, order, decree, statute, law, ordinance, rule or regulation applicable to Buyer. No consent, approval, waiver or authorization is required to be
obtained by Buyer from any person or entity (including any governmental authority) in connection with the execution, delivery and performance by Buyer of
this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. Section 3. 03 Legal Proceedings. There is no Action of any nature pending or,
to Buyer’ s knowledge, threatened against or by Buyer that challenges or seeks to prevent, enjoin or otherwise delay the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement. To Buyer’ s knowledge, no event has occurred or circumstances exist that may give rise to, or serve as a basis for, any such Action. Section 3. 04
Brokers. No broker, finder or investment banker is cntitled to any brokerage, finder’ s or other fee or commission in connection with the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of Buyer. Section 3. 05 Solvency; Sufficiency of Funds. Immediately after
giving effect to the transactions contemplated hereby, Buyer shall be solvent and shall: (a) be able to pay its debts as the-they become due; (b) own property
that has a fair saleable value greater than the amounts required to pay its debts (including a reasonable estimate of the amount of all liabilities); and (c) have
adequate capital to carry on its business. No transfer of property is being made and no obligation is being incurred in connection with the transactions
contemplated hereby with the intent to hinder, delay or defraud either present or future creditors of Buyer or Seller. In connection with the transactions
contemplated hereby, Buyer has not incurred, nor plans to incur, debts beyond its ability to pay as they become absolute and matured. Section 3. 06 Full
Disclosure. To the knowledge of Buyer, no representation or warranty by Buyer in this Agr t and no stat t contained in the Agreement contains any
untrue statement of a material fact, or omits to state a material fact necessary to make the statements contained herein, in light of the circumstances in which
they are made, not misleading. Section 3. 07 No Other Representations and Warranties. Except for the representations and warranties contained in this
Article III, neither Buyer nor any other person or entity has made or makes any other express or implied representation or warranty, either written or oral,
on behalf of Buyer. ARTICLE IV Section 4. 01 Public Announcements. Unless otherwise required by applicable law, rule or regulation, none of the Parties
shall make any public announcements regarding this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby without the prior written consent of the other
Parties (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld). Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Party will make any public announcement regarding this
Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby without the prior written consent of Telus. Section 4. 02 Non- Competition. Each of Seller and [ * * * * * ],
jointly and severally, covenants and agrees that during the period commencing on the Closing Date and expiring ten (10) years from the Closing Date, neither
shall, anywhere that Seller or [ * * * * * |, prior to the Closing Date, operated or had active plans to expand to after the Closing Date (the “ Restricted
Territory ), directly or indirectly, own any interest in, manage, control, participate in (whether as an owner, operator, manager, consultant, officer, director,
manager, member, employee, investor, agent, representative or otherwise), consult with, render services for or otherwise engage in any business or entity that
competes with the Purchased Assets as conducted on or within five (5) years before the Closing Date, or contemplated to be conducted by the Seller or [ * * * *
* ] (the “ Restricted Business ). (a) If, at the time of enforcement of any of the provisions of this Section 4. 02, a court determines that the restrictions stated
herein are unreasonable under the circumstances then existing, then the Parties agree that the maximum period, scope or geographical area reasonable under
the circumstances shall be substituted for the stated period, scope or area. The Parties further agree that such court shall be allowed to revise the restrictions
contained herein to cover the maximum period, scope or geographical area permitted by Law. (b) Seller and [ * * * * * | each acknowledge and agree that
money damages would not be an adequate remedy for any breach or threatened breach of the provisions of this Section 5. 02 and that, in such event, Buyer or
any of its successors or assigns, shall, in addition to any other rights and remedies existing in their favor, be entitled to specific performance, injunctive and /
or other relief in order to enforce or prevent any violations of the provisions of this Section 4. 02. (¢) Seller and [ * * * * * | each acknowledge and agree that (i)
they will each receive substantial benefits hereef-by virtue of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, (ii) certain of the goodwill of Seller also inures
in Buyer, and all such goodwill is being transferred to Buyer in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and (iii) each agrees that the
restrictions contained in this Section 5. 02 are reasonable and are no greater than necessary to protect the goodwill being received by Buyer in connection with
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Section 4. 03 Discontinuation of Seller’ s Activity Relating to the Purchased Assets. Immediately following
the Closing, Seller and [ * * * * * | shall each take all actions necessary to cause Seller and [ * * * * * | to discontinue and cease, all of its activity, globally of
any nature, relating to the Purchased Assets and future development activities that would directly and materially compete with the Purchased Assets acquired
by the Buyer in this Agreement other than purchase orders issued by Buyer to Seller or [ * * * * * | or as otherwise agreed by Buyer. Seller may continue
Seller’ s Business in all aspects other than activities relating to the Purchased Assets and future development activities that would directly and materially




compete with the Purchased Assets. In furtherance of the foregoing and in recognition of the significant value and importance of the confidential list of
customers being purchased by Buyer in this transaction, Seller and [ * * * * * ] each agree that, neither shall enter into any business or transactions with any
of the customers included in the Purchased Assets or take any action that may, directly or indirectly, be reasonably likely to interfere with Buyer’ s operation
of its business with the customers for the products marketed by Buyer utilizing the Purchased Assets. Notwithstanding anything else to the contrary in this
Agreement, Buyer shall issue a Purchase Order to [ * * * * * | for the same number of [ * * * * * | and for the same price as the initial purchase order from
Telus described in Section 1. 05 (a) (i) 1 of this Agreement. Section 4. 04 Bulk Sales Laws. The parties hereby waive compliance with the provisions of any bulk
sales, bulk transfer or similar laws of any jurisdiction that may otherwise be applicable with respect to the sale of any or all of the Purchased Assets to Buyer
provided, however, that Seller agrees (a) to pay and discharge when due or to contest or litigate all claims of creditors which are asserted against Buyer or the
Purchased Assets by reason of such noncompliance; and (b) to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Buyer from and against any and all such claims; and (c)
to take promptly all necessary action to remove any lien which is placed on the Purchased Assets by reason of such noncompliance. Section 4. 05 Transfer
Taxes. All transfer, documentary, sales, use, stamp, registration, value added and other such taxes and fees (including any penalties and interest) incurred in
connection with this Agreement and the documents to be delivered hereunder shall be borne and paid by Seller when due. Seller shall, at its own expense,
timely file any tax return or other document with respect to such taxes or fees (and Buyer shall cooperate with respect thereto as necessary). Section 4. 06
Further Assurances; Assistance of Audit. Following the Closing, cach ease-exeept-of the parties hereto shall execute and deliver such additional documents,
instruments, conveyances and assurances and take such further actions as enfereeability-may be reasonably required to carry out the provisions hereof and
give effect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the documents to be delivered hereunder. In addition, if required under the regulations of
the U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“ SEC ), Buyer is required to prepare an audit of the Seller’ s Business relating to the Purchased Assets for
the Seller’ s most recent fiscal year, Seller will assist Buyer in completing such audit in order to comply with SEC regulations. ARTICLE V Indemnification
Section 5. 01 Survival. All representations and warranties contained herein and all related rights to indemnification shall survive twenty- four (24) months
following the Closing, except for the core representations and warranties contained in Section 3. 01 (Seller’ s Organization and Authority), Section 3. 03
(Seller’ s Title to Purchased Assets), and Section 4. 01 (Buyer’ s Organization and Authority) which shall survive until the seventh anniversary of Closing. The
covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement shall survive indefinitely, other than the covenants and agreements in Section 5. 02 (Non- Competition)
and Section 5. 03 (Discontinuation of Seller’ s Radio Business) which shall survive for the periods provided therein. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any claims
asserted in good faith with reasonable specificity (to the extent known at such time) and in writing by notice from the non- breaching party to the breaching
party prior to the expiration date of the applicable survival period shall not thereafter be barred by the expiration of such survival period and such claims
shall survive until finally resolved. Section 5. 02 Indemnification By Seller. Seller and [ * * * * * |, jointly and severally, shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmless Buyer, its affiliates and their respective stockholders, members, managers, directors, officers, employees and agents from and against all claims,
judgments, damages, liabilities, settlements, losses, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements (collectively, “ Losses »),
arising from or relating to: (a) any inaccuracy in or breach of any of the representations or warranties of Seller contained in this Agreement or any document
to be delivered hereunder; (b) any breach or non- fulfillment of any covenant, agreement or obligation to be performed by Seller pursuant to this Agreement
or any document to be delivered hereunder; or (c) any Excluded Liability. Section 5. 03 Indemnification By Buyer. Buyer shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmless each of Seller and [ * * * * * |, their affiliates and their respective stockholders, members, managers, directors, officers, employees and agents from
and against all Losses, arising from or relating to: (a) any inaccuracy in or breach of any of the representations or warranties of Buyer contained in this
Agreement or any document to be delivered hereunder; (b) any breach or non- fulfillment of any covenant, agreement or obligation to be performed by Buyer
pursuant to this Agreement or any document to be delivered hereunder; or (c) any Assumed Liability. Section 5. 04 Indemnification Procedures. Whenever
any claim shall arise for indemnification hereunder, the party entitled to indemnification (the “ Indemnified Party ) shall promptly provide written notice of
such claim to the other party (the “ Indemnifying Party ). In connection with any claim giving rise to indemnity hereunder resulting from or arising out of
any Action by a person or entity who is not a party to this Agreement, the Indemnifying Party, at its sole cost and expense and upon written notice to the
Indemnified Party, may assume the defense of any such Action with counsel reasonably satisfactory to the Indemnified Party. The Indemnified Party shall be
entitled to participate in the defense of any such Action, with its counsel and at its own cost and expense. If the Indemnifying Party does not assume the
defense of any such Action, the Indemnified Party may, but shall not be obligated to, defend against such Action in such manner as it may deem appropriate,
including, but not limitcd to, settling such Action, after giving notice of it to the Indemnifying Party, on such terms as the Indemnified Party may deem
appropriate and no action taken by bankruptey;-insolveney;reorganization,meratorit-the Indemnified Party in accordance with such defense and settlement
shall relieve the Indemnifying Party of its indemnification obligations herein provided with respect to any damages resulting therefrom. The Indemnifying
Party shall not settle any Action without the Indemnified Party’ s prior written consent (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed).
Section 5. 05 Certain Limitations. (a) The aggregate amount for which either Seller or Buyer shall be liable pursuant to Section 5. 02 or Section 5. 03, as
applicable, and any other simtardawsrelating-dispute regarding this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby, shall not exceed the amount of
Purchase Price actually received by Seller. (b) No Party will be entitled to indemnification under Section 5. 02 or Section 5. 03, as applicable, orfor affeeting
ereditors-any indemnifiable Losses under this Article VI until the indemnifiable Losses have an aggregated cumulative amount which equals or exceeds $ 100,
000, after which time such indemnifying Party shall be liable in full for the accumulated indemnifiable Losses subject to the provisions of this Article VI. (¢) In
no event shall any Party be liable to any other Party for any punitive, special, exemplary, or speculative damages, related to the breach, or alleged breach, of
this Agreement or in connection with any transaction contemplated hereby, except (i) if paid or payable to a third party, or (ii) in connection with any fraud
on the part of Seller in connection with this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Party shall have the right to recover all other indirect damages
including, without limitation, lost profits, loss of future revenue or income, diminution in value, loss of business reputation, or incidental damages except the
Seller and [ * * * * * ] liability for the lost profit, income or revenue shall not exceed the Purchase Price. (d) Each Party entitled to indemnification hereunder
(each, an “ Indemnified Party ”) shall take, and cause its affiliates to take, all reasonable steps to mitigate any Loss upon becoming aware of any event or
circumstance that would be reasonably expected to, or does, give rise thereto, including incurring costs only to the minimum extent necessary to remedy the
breach that gives rise to such Loss but not exceeding Ten Thousand U. S. Dollars (US $ 10, 000); provided, however, that (i) no Indemnified Party shall: (1) be
required to take any action to mitigate any Losses incurred or suffered to the extent based upon, arising out of, with respect to or by reason of fraud prior to
the Closing; (2) be required to bring a legal proceeding against any person; or (3) have any obligation to take any actions that unreasonably interfere with or
impact the business of such Indemnified Party; and (ii) the failure of an Indemnified Party to use such efforts to mitigate shall not constitute a defense to the
Indemnifying Party ° s obligations to indemnify the Indemnified Party pursuant to this Agreement. (e) Provided, however that none of the limitations set forth
in this Section 5. 05 shall apply with respect to any Losses arising from, in connection with or related to, a breach that constitutes fraud or intentional
misrepresentation. Section 5. 06 Tax Treatment of Indemnification Payments. All indemnification payments made by Seller under this Agreement shall be
treated by the parties as an adjustment to the Purchase Price for tax purposes, unless otherwise required by law. Section 5. 07 Cumulative Remedies. The
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courier ;-(receipt requested), (c) on the date sent by e- mall (wnth confirmation of transmnssnon) if sent durmg normal busmess hours of the reclplentby—l:edefa}
, and {e)-on the feurth-next Business-business Day-folowing-day if sent after normal business hours of the mating
thereof-with-pestage-prepaid;-recipient; or (d) on the day received or rejected if mailed , by certified or registered ereertifted-mail €, return receipt requested ¥,
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fn-eaeh—ease—te—the—paltlcs at thc ‘rollow ing addresses (or at such other dddlcss for a party as shall be spcuhcd by—l-rke—m a notlcc given in accordance w1th this Sectlon
6. 02 ): (a)-If to the-Companyste-Seller or [ * * * * * | : Johnsen-: Titan Crest LLC E. Loockerman Street, Suite 311 Dover, Delaware 19901 Attn:
Email: If to Buyer: AmpllTech Group, Inc Plant —\\ enue Behem-x-a— Hauppauge NY 11788 Attn -l-l—7-l-6—E—mar1-l- Email
fmagbooH@-amplitechine—eomAttention Faw P ; y a Section 6. 03 Headings.
The headings in this Agreement are for «Fereﬂee—reference Gaﬂﬁel—l:l:P—Aveﬁue-ef-only and shall not affect the mterpretatlon of this Agreement AsterieasNew
ForkNewYork10036-e—mail—gsichenzia{w-srfe-. Section 6 faw-Attention—Gregory-Sichenzia; Ese-. {b)-04 Severability. [{ to-the-Warrant-Agentto—VStoek
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unenforceability shall not affect any other term or provision of th1s Agreement or 1nvalldate or render unenforceable such term or provision in any other
jurisdiction. Section 6. 05 Entire Agr t. This Agr t and the documents to be delivered en-hereunder constitute the next-business-day-followingsole
and entire agreement of the parties to this Agreement with respect to the subject matter contalned hereln, and supersede all prlor and contemporaneous
understandlngs and agreements, both written and oral, with respect to such subject matter ema :
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1hu| respective successors and permltted assigns . Neither party may assign its rlghts or obllgatlons
hereunder without the prior written consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. No assignment shall relieve the
assigning party of any of its obligations hereunder . Scction 22-6 . Benefits-o£07 No Third- Party Beneficiaries. Except as provided in Article VI, this Agreement
—is for the sole benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns and Nething-nothing herein, express or implied, is intended to
or shall confer upon any other person or entity any legal or equitable right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement.
Section 6. 08 Amendment and Modification. This Agreement may only be amended, modified or supplemented by an agreement in writing signed by each
party hereto. Section 6. 09 Waiver. No waiver by any party of any of the provisions hereof shall be effective unless explicitly set forth in writing and signed by
the party so waiving. No waiver by any party shall operate or be construed as a waiver in respect of any failure, breach or default not expressly identified by
such written waiver, whether of a similar or different character, and whether occurring before or after that waiver. No failure to exercise, or delay in
exercising, any right, remedy, power or privilege arising from this Agreement shall operate or be construed as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial
exercise of any right, remedy, power or privilege hereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, remedy, power or
privilege. Section 6. 10 Governing Law, Dispute Resolution, Venue and Attorneys’ Fees. (a) Governing Law. This Agreement, and the rights and obligations of
the Parties hereunder, shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York, excluding conflicts of law rules which might
apply the law of a different jurisdiction. (b) Good Faith Negotiations. The Parties shall use their best efforts to resolve any and all claims and disputes arising
under this Agreement first through good faith negotiations and without initially resorting to litigation, or other similar proceedings; provided, however, that
either Party shall be entitled to: (i) seek injunctive relief in any forum of competent jurisdiction to avoid irreparable harm, for breach of confidentiality, or for
infringement or misappropriation of its intellectual property rights; or to (ii) commence litigation in the venue set forth below to avoid being barred by an
applicable statute of limitations; in each case without first attempting to resolve such claim or dispute through good faith negotiations or mediation. (c)
Mediation. If the Parties are unable to resolve such claim or dispute via good faith negotiations, the Parties agree, prior to commencement of any legal action
or suit, to submit to at least one day of non- binding mediation in Hauppauge, New York with a mediator chosen jointly by the Parties and with costs to be
divided equally between the Parties. (d) Litigation and Venue. Any legal action, suit, or proceeding with respect to this Agreement shall be eeﬂst-rued—brought
exclusively in federal court in Suffolk County or state court in, Hauppauge, New York if a federal court is not available) and each Party consents o give-any
Person-other—- the jurisdiction than-the-Company;the-Helders-of said court Warrant-Certifieates-and-the-Warrant-Agent-anyltegal-or-for all matters that arise

equitable-rightremedy-orelatmunder this Agreement. Each Party waives Fhis-Agreementshalt-be-for-the sefe-right to formal service of process and agrees to
accept service of process via and-hand e*el-&swe—beﬂeﬁ-t—e{ldellvery or by U.S. Mall postage prepald certlﬁed or reglstered return recelpt requested or by
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G-l-ebﬁ-l—Wﬂ-rrﬂﬂt—lssued—hu umdu shall be geverned—entltled to attorneys’ fees and costs The prevallmg Party, for purposes of awardlng attorneys’ fees and costs,
shall be: (1) the claiming Party if the judgment is an amount equal to or greater than said Party’ s final written settlement demand; or (2) the defending Party
if the judgment is equal to or lower than said Party’ s final, written settlement offer. If the Parties do not exchange a final, written settlement demand and a
corresponding final, written settlement offer, or if the judgment is less than the final, written settlement demand but greater than the final, written settlement
offer, the Parties shall pay their own attorneys’ fees and costs. Section 6. 11 Waiver of Jury Trial. Each Party acknowledges and agrees that any controversy
which may arise under this Agreement is likely to involve complicated and difficult issues and, therefore, each such party irrevocably and unconditionally
waives any right it may have to a trial by ;-and-eenstraed-jury in respect of any legal action arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the transactions
contemplated hereby. Section 6. 12 Specific Performance The Parties agree that lrreparable damage would occur if any provnsmn of this Agreement were not
performed in accordance with s-the terms aws v v - hereof and that the parties -
Any-aetion-brought-by-any-party-hereto-shall b breugh-t—w%hm—entltled to speCIﬁc performance of the terms hereof in addltlon to any other remedy to which the
they State-of New—York-SuffollCountry-are entitled at law or in equity . Scction 24-6 . 13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any-number-of
counterparts ane-, cach of which sueh-eeunterparts-shall fer-attpurpeses-be deemed te-be-an original, and-but all sueh-eeunterparts-of which together shall together
eonstitute-but-be deemed to be one and the same instrament-agreement . A signed copy Seeﬁem%—@&pﬁeﬂs#h&eﬁaﬁeﬁs—e#ﬂae—eeeﬁeﬂs—o this Agreement dellvered
by facsimile, e- mail or other means of electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same legal been y
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follows | IN \\ ITNFS\ W IIFRF()F the parties huuo hm e caused 1]1]\ \“uunuu to ln d-u-l-y-c\uuud as of the dated-&y—aﬁd—yea-ﬁ irst written above sritten-by their
respective officers thereunto duly authorized . AMPHTECH-GROUP-TITAN CREST LLC , ING-a Delaware limited liability company By: /s+Fawad-Magboet
Name: Fawad-Magbool-Fitle—Chief Exeeutive-Offteer[ * * * * * | Canadian corporation By: /s+Feunisa-SanfrateHo-Name:Fouisa-SanfrateHo-TFitle:-Chief Finanetal
Offteer VSTOCKTRANSFEREECBy+s+Name: Title: Exhibit AMPLITECH GROUP, INC., a Nevada corporation By: APPENDIX A [ * * * * * | EXHIBIT
A Form of W&Fr&ﬁt—@eﬁrﬁe&t&E*hrbﬁ—Ferm—Assngnment and Assumptlon Assngnment and Assumptlon Agreement This Assngnment and Assumption Agreement
(the “ Agreement ), effective as of Wa R March 26, 2025 (the «
Effective Date ), is by and between Tltan Crest . LL( as—Wa-rraﬁt—Prgen-t—FeFa Delaware limited liability company, with lts principal office located at 9 E.
Loockerman Street, Suite 311, Dover, Delaware 19901 (“ Seller ), and AmpliTech Group, Inc. , an Nevada corporation (“ Buyer ”). WHEREAS, Seller and
Buyer have entered into a certain Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 26, 2025 (the “ Purchase Agreement ”), pursuant to which, among other
things, Seller has agreed to assign all of its rights, title and interests in, and Buyer has agreed to assume all of Seller’ s duties and obligations under, the
Intellectual Property Assignment And Transfer Agreement, dated March 26, 2025, a copy of which is attached to the Purchase Agreement as Exihibit B (the
[ * * * % * ] IP Transfer Agreement ”). NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, terms, and conditions set forth herein, and for other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 1. Definitions. All capitalized
terms used in this Agreement but not otherwise defined herein are given the meanings set forth in the Purchase Agr t. 2. Assig t and Assumption.
Seller hereby sells, assigns, grants, conveys and transfers to Buyer all of Seller’ s right, title and interest in and to the [ * * * * * | IP Transfer Agreement.
Buyer hereby accepts such assignment and assumes all of Seller’ s duties and obligations under the [ * * * * * | IP Transfer Agreement. 3. Terms of the
Purchase Agreement. The terms of the Purchase Agreement, including, but not limited to, the representations, warranties, covenants, agreements and
indemnities relating to the [ * * * * * | [P Transfer Agreement are incorporated herein by this reference. The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the
representations, warranties, covenants, agreements and indemnities contained in the Purchase Agreement shall not be superseded hereby but shall remain in
full force and effect to the full extent provided therein. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms of the Purchase Agreement and the
terms hereof, the terms of the Purchase Agreement shall govern. 4. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the internal laws of the State of New York without giving effect to any choice or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of New York or any
other jurisdiction). 5. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together
shall be deemed to be one and the same agreement. A signed copy of this Agreement delivered by facsimile, email or other means of electronic transmission
shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original signed copy of this Agreement. 6. Further Assurances. Each of the parties hereto shall
execute and deliver, at the reasonable request of the other party hereto, such additional documents, instruments, conveyances and assurances and take such
further actions as such other party may reasonably request to carry out the provisions hereof and give effect to the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement. | signature page follows | IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement to be effective as of the date first above written.
Titan Crest, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company By Name: Title: AmpliTech Group, Inc., a Nevada corporation By Name: Title: EXHIBIT B [ * * * * *
] IP Transfer Agreement Exhibit 10. 33 Exhibit 10. 34 Exhibit 19. 1 INSIDER TRADING COMPLIANCE POLICY AmpliTech Group, Inc., a Nevada
corporation (the “ Company ) prohibits: e insider trading in the Company’ s securities (“ Securities ”) 1; and e the unauthorized disclosure of the Company’ s
confidential information that might enable others to engage in insider trading in the Securities. Thec Company adopted this Insider Trading Compliance Policy
to prevent insider trading. In this Insider Trading Compliance Policy, we will discuss how you must comply with the laws against insider trading to avoid the
serious penalties that could accompany a violation. We also seek to fulfill our obligation to educate and reasonably supervise the activities of employees,




officers, directors and consultants who own or trade in the Company’ s stock as part of our corporate compliance program. There are severe civil and criminal
penalties associated with violations by you, your colleagues or the Company under insider trading laws. It is your obligation to review, understand and comply
with this Insider Trading Compliance Policy. Please take the time to become familiar with its content. If you have questions about the Policy or your stock
ownership or trading, please speak with Louisa Sanfratello, our Chief Compliance Officer. PART I. OVERVIEW A. To Whom does this Insider Trading
Compliance Policy Apply? This Insider Trading Compliance Policy applies to all of us, i. e., the Company’ s board of directors (the “ Board ”), officers,
employees and consultants, as well as our Affiliates (as defined below), and to multiple methods of trading in the Securities, such as purchases or sales of stock,
options or other forms of equity. This Insider Trading Compliance Policy applies not only to you but also to your “ Affiliates ” (as defined by the securities
laws), which include: ® your spouse, child, parent, significant other or other family member, in each case, living in the same household; e all trusts, family
partnerships and other types of entities formed for your benefit or for the benefit of a member of your family over which you have the ability to influence or
direct investment decisions concerning securities; ® all persons who execute trades on your behalf, e. g., your stockbroker; and e all investment funds, trusts,
retirement plans, partnerships, corporations and other types of entities for which you have the ability to influence or direct investment decisions The law
defines “ securities ” broadly to include common stock, options to purchase common stock, any other type of securities that the Company may issue (such as
preferred stock, convertible debentures, warrants, exchange- traded options or other derivative securities), and any derivative securities that provide the
economic equivalent of ownership of any of the Company’ s securities or an opportunity, direct or indirect, to profit from any change in the value of the
Company’ s securities. concerning securities. Please note that the Insider Trading Procedures (as defined below) do not apply to entities that engage in the
investment of securities in the ordinary course of its business (e. g., mutual funds, an investment fund or partnership) if such entity has established its own
insider trading controls and procedures in compliance with applicable securities laws and an Insider has hereby represented to the Company that such
Insider’ s affiliated entities: (a) engage in the investment of securities in the ordinary course of their respective businesses; (b) have established insider trading
controls and procedures in compliance with applicable securities laws; and (c) are aware such securities laws prohibit any person or entity who has material,
nonpublic information concerning the Company from purchasing or selling securities of the Company or from communicating such information to any other
person under circumstances in which it is reasonably foreseeable that such person is likely to purchase or sell securities. You are responsible for ensuring
compliance with this Insider Trading Compliance Policy, including the Insider Trading Procedures contained herein, by all of your Affiliates. We recommend
you obtain advice from your legal and financial advisors regarding trading in Company Securities by your Affiliates. Special Procedures for Persons with
Regular Access to Inside Information: Members of our Board and our executive officers are deemed to have access to all “ inside information ” under insider
trading laws. Other officers, employees and consultants may also require regular access to “ inside information ” in performing their work. For this reason
and for their protection, additional trading procedures apply to these directors, officers, employees and consultants. We will notify all members of the Board,
officers and designated employees and consultants (collectively, and solely for the purpose of this Insider Trading Compliance Policy, ¢ Insiders ”) that they
are subject to these additional trading procedures (the “ Insider Trading Procedures ), which are set forth in Part II of this memorandum. All Insiders must
comply with these Insider Trading Procedures. These Insider Trading Procedures establish trading blackout period restrictions, trading window periods, and
pre- clearance requirements. Insiders covered by the Insider Trading Procedures will be restricted from trading in the Securities during blackout periods.
Additionally, Insiders covered by the Insider Trading Procedures will be required to pre- clear all transactions in the Securities. You will be notified if you are
an Insider and required to comply with the Insider Trading Procedures. Post- Termination Responsibilities: In the event that you leave the Company for any
reason, this Insider Trading Compliance Policy, including, if applicable, the Insider Trading Procedures, will continue to apply to you and your Affiliates until
the completion of one full Trading Day (as defined below) after any material nonpublic information known to you has become public or is no longer material.
As used in this Insider Trading Compliance Policy, the term “ Trading Day ” shall mean a day on which the primary national securities exchange or
exchanges and / or over- the- counter market or markets on which Securities of the Company are listed or traded are open for trading. B. What is Prohibited
by this Insider Trading Compliance Policy? It is generally illegal for you to trade in the Securities of the Company, whether for your account or for the
account of another, while in the possession of material, nonpublic information about the Company or its business activities. It is also generally illegal for you to
disclose material, nonpublic information about the Company or its business to others who may trade on the basis of that information. In addition, if we receive
material, non- public information from collaborators or from other companies that do business with the Company, then these same prohibitions would apply
to trading in the securities of these other companies’ securities. These illegal activities are commonly referred to as “ insider trading. ” When you are in
possession of material, nonpublic information about the Company, whether positive or negative, you are prohibited from the following activities: e trading
(whether for your account of for the account of another) in Securities, except for trades made in compliance with a valid Rule 10b5- 1 trading plan2; e giving
trading advice of any kind about the Company; and e disclosing such material, nonpublic information about the Company, whether positive or negative, to
anyone else (commonly known as “ tipping ). The Insider Trading Compliance Policy prohibitions on insider trading do not apply to: (1) an exercise of an
employee stock option when payment of the exercise price is made solely in cash to the Company; or (2) the withholding by the Company of shares of stock
upon vesting of restricted stock or upon settlement of restricted stock units to satisfy applicable tax withholding requirements if (a) such withholding is
required by the applicable plan or award agreement or (b) the election to exercise such tax withholding right was made by the Insider in compliance with the
Insider Trading Procedures. The Insider Trading Compliance Policy prohibitions on insider trading do apply to: (1) the sale of Securities on or after the
exercise of an employee stock option; (2) the use of outstanding Securities to pay part or all of the exercise price of an option; and (3) any sale of stock as part
of a broker- assisted cashless exercise of an option or any other market sale for the purpose of generating the cash needed to pay the exercise price of an
option. The above discussion is a summary; please read further below for additional details on the precise circumstances under which this Insider Trading
Compliance Policy applies. These prohibitions continue whenever and for as long as you know or are in possession of material, nonpublic information.
Remember, anyone scrutinizing your transactions will be doing so after the fact, with the benefit of Under Rule 10b5- 1 of the Exchange Act, you are
permitted to enter a written binding plan with your stock broker to trade in the Securities before you knew or had possession of material, nonpublic
information and certain other conditions are satisfied. hindsight, and often with access to stock trading records and your communications regarding the
transactions. As a practical matter, before engaging in any transaction, you should carefully consider how enforcement authorities and others might view the
transaction in hindsight. C. What is Material, Nonpublic Information? This Insider Trading Compliance Policy prohibits you from trading in the Company’ s
Securities if you are in possession of information about the Company or its business that is both “ material ” and “ nonpublic. ” If you have a question
whether certain information you are aware of is material or has been made public, you are encouraged to consult with the Compliance Officer. “ Material ”
Information Information about the Company is “ material ” if it could reasonably be expected to affect the investment or voting decisions of a stockholder or
investor. Similarly, information about the Company is “ material ” if its disclosure could reasonably be expected to significantly alter the total mix of
information in the marketplace about the Company and affect investor views. In simple terms, material information is any type of information that could
reasonably be expected to affect the price of the Securities. Both positive and negative information may be material. While it is not possible to identify all
information that would be deemed “ material, ” the following items are types of information that should be considered carefully to determine whether they are
material: ® program developments, regulatory or clinical status or updates, including communications with regulatory authorities, prior to issuance of a press
release or public update; e significant developments regarding collaborations, products, customers, suppliers, orders, contracts or financing sources (e. g., the
acquisition or loss of a contract); e potential collaboration discussions or information about an unannounced new collaboration, financing or other similar
deals; ® projections of future earnings or losses, or other earnings guidance; ® earnings or revenue that are inconsistent with the consensus expectations of the
investment community; e potential restatements of the Company’ s financial statements, changes in auditors or auditor notification that the Company may no
longer rely on an auditor’ s audit report; ® pending or proposed corporate mergers, acquisitions, tender offers, joint ventures or dispositions of significant
assets; ® changes in senior management or the Board; e significant actual or threatened litigation or governmental investigations or major developments in
such matters; e a cybersecurity incident; e changes in dividend policy, declarations of stock splits, or public or private sales of additional securities; ®
potential defaults under the Company’ s credit agreements or indentures, or the existence of material liquidity deficiencies; and e bankruptcies or
receiverships. In some situations, the above events may not be material and in others, consultation with the Compliance Officer may help you determine that
it has been publicly disclosed. In each situation, you should carefully consider and seek advice to determine their materiality (although some determinations
will be reached more easily than others). For example, some new products or contracts may clearly be material to one company and not to a much larger
company with multiple products; yet that does not mean that all product developments or contracts will be material. This demonstrates, in our view, why no “
bright- line ” standard or list of items can adequately address the range of situations that may arise. Furthermore, the Company cannot create an exclusive list
of events and information that have a higher probability of being considered material. You can look to our public press releases and SEC filings to confirm
recent disclosures. The SEC has stated that there is no fixed quantitative threshold amount for determining materiality, and that even very small quantitative
changes can be qualitatively material if they would result in a movement in the price of the Securities. “ Nonpublic ” Information Material information is «



nonpublic ” when it is not generally available to investors. The rationale is to provide all investors with an equal opportunity to access material information
when making investment decisions. To claim information is “ public, ” we have to be able to point to some fact that establishes that the information has
become publicly available, such as the filing of a report with the SEC, the distribution of a press release through a widely disseminated news or wire service, or
by other means (such as a pre- announced webcast presentation) that are reasonably undersigned---- designed Helderto provide broad public access.
Information is not considered public at the moment it is disclosed. Before a person who possesses material, nonpublic information can trade, there also must
be adequate time for the market as a whole to access and absorb the information that has been disclosed. For the purposes of €ommon-this Insider Trading
Compliance Policy, information will be considered public one full Trading Day after the close of the stock market following the Company’ s public release of
the information. For example, if the Company announces material nonpublic information of which you are aware before trading begins on a Tuesday, the
first time you can buy or sell Company Securities is the opening of the market on Wednesday. However, if the Company announces this material information
after trading begins on that Tuesday, the first time that you can buy or sell Company Securities is the opening of the market on Thursday. D. What are the
Penalties for Insider Trading and Noncompliance with this Insider Trading Compliance Policy? Both the SEC and the national securities exchanges, through
the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“ FINRA ”), investigate and are very effective at detecting insider trading. They have direct access to examine
all trades and typically request names of employees and Insiders from Companies following a public announcement (positive or negative) that impacts a
company’ s stock price to determine whether suspect insider trading has occurred. The SEC, together with the U. S. Attorneys, pursue insider trading
violations vigorously. For instance, cases have been successfully prosecuted against trading by employees in foreign accounts, trading by family members and
friends, and trading involving only a small number of shares. The penalties for violating insider trading or tipping rules can be severe and include: e
disgorgement of the profit gained or loss avoided by the trading; e payment of the loss suffered by the persons who purchased or sold, as applicable, securities
of the same class at prices impacted by the insider trading; e payment of criminal penalties of up to $ 5, 000, 000; ® payment of civil penalties of up to three
times the profit made or loss avoided; and e imprisonment for up to 20 years. The Company and / or the supervisors of the person engaged in insider trading
may also be required to pay civil penalties of up to the greater of $ 1, 525, 000 or three times the profit made or loss avoided, as well as criminal penalties of up
to $ 25, 000, 000, and could under certain circumstances be subject to private lawsuits. Violation of this Insider Trading Compliance Policy or any federal or
state insider trading laws may subject the person violating such policy or laws to disciplinary action by the Company up to and including termination. The
Company reserves the right to determine, in its own discretion and on the basis of the information available to it, whether this Insider Trading Compliance
Policy has been violated. The Company may determine that specific conduct violates this Insider Trading Compliance Policy, whether or not the conduct also
violates the law. It is not necessary for the Company to await the filing or conclusion of a civil or criminal action against the alleged violator before taking
disciplinary action. E. How Do You Report a Violation of this Insider Trading Compliance Policy? If you have a question about this Insider Trading
Compliance Policy, including whether certain information you are aware of is material or has been made public, you are encouraged to consult with the
Compliance Officer. In addition, if you violate this Insider Trading Compliance Policy or any federal or state laws governing insider trading, or know of any
such violation by any director, officer or employee of the Company, you should report the violation immediately to the Compliance Officer. PART II.
INSIDER TRADING PROCEDURES FOR INSIDERS A. Special Trading Restrictions Applicable to Insiders In addition to the restrictions on trading in
Company Securities set forth above, Insiders and their Affiliates are subject to the following special trading restrictions: 1. Prohibited Transactions At Any
Time. ® No Short Sales. No Insider may at any time sell any Securities of the Company that are not owned by such Insider at the time of the sale (a ¢ short sale
). ® No Purchases or Sales of Derivative Securities or Hedging Transactions. No Insider may buy or sell puts, calls, other derivative securities of the Company
or any derivative securities that provide the economic equivalent of ownership of any of the Company’ s Securities or an opportunity, direct or indirect, to
profit from any change in the value of the Company’ s Securities or engage in any other hedging transaction with respect to the Company’ s Securities, at any
time, with the exception of the Company’ s tradeable warrants. ¢ No Company Securities Subject to Margin Calls. No Insider may use the Company’ s
Securities as collateral in a margin account. ¢ No Pledges. No Insider may pledge Company Securities as collateral for a loan (or modify an existing pledge). 2.
Gifts. No Insider may give or make any other transfer of Company Securities without consideration (e. g., a gift or limited partner distribution, in the case of a
fund) during a period when the Insider is not permitted to trade unless the donee agrees not to sell the shares until such time as the Insider can sell. 3.
Quarterly Blackout Periods No Insider may trade in any Company’ s Securities during the period commencing on close of business on the seventh (7th)
calendar day before the end of each fiscal quarter or fiscal year of the Company and ending at the close of trading on the third (3rd) Trading Day following
the date the Company’ s financial results for such quarter or year are publicly disclosed. If, for example, the Company were to make a public announcement
or filing of such results or on a Monday, Insiders shall not trade in the Company’ s Securities until the following Friday. During these “ blackout periods, ”
Insiders may possess or may be presumed to possess material nonpublic information about the Company’ s financial results. 4. No Trading During Retirement
Plan Blackout Periods. If the Company adopts a policy to allow ownership of Company stock in any 401 (k) or other retirement plan of the Company, then no
Insider may trade in any Company Securities, which were acquired in connection with such Insider’ s service or employment with the Company, during a “
retirement plan blackout period ” except as specifically permitted below. A “ retirement plan blackout period ” includes any period of more than three (3)
consecutive Trading Days during which at least fifty percent (50 %) of all participants and beneficiaries under all of the individual account plans maintained
by the Company and members of its controlled group are prohibited from trading in Company Securities through their plan accounts. Insiders will receive
advance notice of any such blackout period from the Compliance Officer. 5. Special Blackout Periods There are times when the Company or certain members
of its Board or senior management or other team members may be aware of a material, nonpublic development. Although an Insider may not know the
specifics of such development, if an Insider engages in a trade before such development is disclosed to the public or resolved, such Insider and the Company
might be exposed to a charge of insider trading that could be costly and difficult to refute. In addition, a trade by an Insider during such period could result in
adverse publicity for the Company. Therefore, Insiders may not trade in Company Securities if they are notified that the trading window is closed because of
the existence of a material, nonpublic develop t. The Compliance Officer will subsequently notify the Insiders once the material nonpublic development is
disclosed to the public or resolved and that, as a result, the trading window is again open. While the Compliance Officer will undertake reasonable efforts to
notify the Insiders that material, nonpublic events have developed, or are soon likely to develop, it is each Insider’ s individual duty to ensure that they do not
make any trade in Company Securities when material, nonpublic information exists, regardless of whether such Insider is aware of such development. B. Pre-
Clearance Procedures No Insider may trade in Company Securities unless the trade has been approved by the Compliance Officer in accordance with the
procedures set forth below. The Compliance Officer will review and either approve or prohibit all proposed trades by Insiders in accordance with the
procedures set forth below. The Compliance Officer may consult with the Company’ s other officers and / or outside legal counsel and will receive approval
for his / her own trades from each other. 1. Procedures. No Insider may trade in Company Securities until: ® The Insider has notified the Compliance Officer
of the amount and nature of the proposed trade (s) using the Stock Purehase-Warrants-Transaction Request form attached to this Insider Trading Compliance
Policy. In order to provide adequate time for the preparation of any required reports under Section 16 of the Securities and Exchange Act, as amended (*
Warrants-Exchange Act ”) in-the-, a Stock Transaction Request form ef-Glebal-Warrants-issued-should, if practicable, be received by thc Compliance Officer at
least two (2) Trading Days prior to the intended trade date; ® The Insider has certified to the Compliance Officer in writing prior to the proposed trade (s)
that the Insider is not in possession of material, nonpublic information concerning the Company hereby-eleets-; ® The Insider has informed the Compliance
Officer, using the Stock Transaction Request form attached hereto, whether, to the Insider’ s best knowledge, (a) the Insider has (or is deemed to have)
engaged in any opposite way transactions within the previous six months that were not exempt from Section 16 (b) of the Exchange Act and (b) if the
transaction involves a sale by an “ affiliate ” of the Company or of “ restricted securities ” (as such terms are defined under Rule 144 under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended (“ Rule 144 )), whether the transaction meets all of the applicable conditions of Rule 144; and @ The Compliance Officer has approved
the trade (s) and has certified such approval in writing. Such certification may be made via digitally- signed electronic mail. The Compliance Officer do not
assume the responsibility for, and approval from the Compliance Officer does not protect the Insider from, the consequences of prohibited insider trading. 2.
Additional Information. Insiders shall provide to the Compliance Officer any documentation reasonably requested by him or her in furtherance of the
foregoing procedures. Any failure to provide such requested information will be grounds for denial of approval by the Compliance Officer. 3. No Obligation to
Approve Trades. The existence of the foregoing approval procedures does not in any way obligate the Compliance Officer to approve any trade requested by
an Insider. The Compliance Officer may reject any trading request at his or her sole discretion. From time to time, an event may occur that is material to the
Company and is known by only a few directors or executives. Insiders may not trade in Company Securities if they are notified by the Compliance Officer that
a proposed trade has not been cleared because of the existence of a material, nonpublic development. Even if that particular Insider is not aware of the
material, nonpublic development involving the Company, if any Insider engages in a trade before a material, nonpublic development is disclosed to the public
or resolved, the Insider and the Company might be exposed to a charge of insider trading that could be costly and difficult to refute even if the Insider was
unaware of the development. So long as the event remains material and nonpublic, the Compliance Officer may determine not to approve any transactions in




the Company’ s Securities. The Compliance Officer will subsequently notify the Insider once the material, nonpublic development is disclosed to the public or
resolved. If an Insider requests clearance to trade in the Company’ s Securities during the pendency of such an event, the Compliance may reject the trading
request without disclosing the reason. 4. Completion of Trades. After receiving written clearance to engage in a trade signed by the Compliance Officer, an
Insider must complete the proposed trade within te-two (2) Trading Days or make a new trading request. 5. Post- Trade Reporting. Any transactions in the
Company’ s Securities by an Insider (including transactions effected pursuant to a Rule 10b5- 1 Plan) must be reported to the Compliance Officer by
completing the “ Confirmation of Transaction ” section of the Stock Transaction Request form attached to this Insider Trading Compliance Policy on the
same day in which such a transaction occurs. Each report an Insider makes to the Compliance Officer should include the date of the transaction, quantity of
shares, price and broker- dealer through which the transaction was effected. This reporting requirement may be satisfied by sending (or having such Insider’ s
broker send) duplicate confirmations of trades to the Compliance Officer if such information is received by the Compliance Officer on or before the required
date. Compliance by directors and executive officers with this provision is imperative given the requirement of Section 16 of the Exchange Act that these
persons generally must report changes in ownership of the Securities within two business days. The sanctions for noncompliance with this reporting deadline
include mandatory disclosure in the Company’ s proxy statement for the next annual meeting of stockholders, as well as possible civil or criminal sanctions for
chronic or egregious violators. PART IV. EXEMPTIONS FROM INSIDER TRADING RESTRICTIONS (ALL DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES
AND CONSULTANTS) A. Pre- Approved Rule 10b5- 1 Plan. The securities law permits establishment of trading plans under Rule 10b5- 1 of the Exchange
Act that allow for persons to authorize, at a time when they are not in possession of material, nonpublic information, future trading. Under a compliant 10b5-
1 Plan, a trade will not be subject to the Company’ s trading windows, retirement plan blackout periods or pre- clearance procedures, and Insiders are not
required to complete a Stock Transaction Request form for such transactions. If an Insider intends to trade pursuant to a Rule 10bS- 1 Plan, such plan,
arrangement or instruction must: e satisfy the requirements of Rule 10b5- 1; e be documented in writing; e be established during a trading window when
such Insider does not possess material, nonpublic information; and e be pre- approved by the Compliance Officer. Any deviation from, or alteration to, the
specifications of an approved Rule 10b5- 1 Plan (including, without limitation, the amount, price or timing of a purchase or sale) must be reported immediately
to the Compliance Officer. Any transaction pursuant to a Rule 10b5- 1 Plan must be timely reported following the transaction in accordance with the
procedures set forth above. The Compliance Officer may refuse to approve a Rule 10b5- 1 Plan as he or she deems appropriate including, without limitation,
if he or she determines that such plan does not satisfy the requirements of Rule 10b5- 1. Any modification of an Insider’ s prior Rule 10b5- 1 Plan requires pre-
approval by the Compliance Officer. A modification must occur during a trading window and while such Insider is not aware of material, nonpublic
information. B. Employee Benefit Plans. Exercise of Stock Options. The trading prohibitions and Insider Trading Procedures do not apply to the exercise of a
stock option to purchase securities of the Company when payment of the exercise price is solely made in cash and the Securities are held, not sold. The trading
prohibitions and Insider Trading Procedures do apply to: e the same day or subsequent sale of the Securities acquired on the exercise of a stock option; e the
use of outstanding Securities to pay part or all of the exercise price of an option; e any net option exercise; ® any exercise of a stock appreciation right; o
share withholding; e any sale of stock as part of a broker- assisted cashless exercise of an option; or ® any other market sale for the purpose of generating the
cash needed to pay the exercise price of an option. For directors and executive officers subject to the requirements of Section 16 of the Exchange Act, the
exercise of an option to purchase securities of the Company (and any subsequent sale) each triggers the obligation to file a Form 4 within two days. For this
reason, Insiders must comply with the post- trade reporting requirement described in Section C above for any such transaction. Tax Withholding on
Restricted Stock / Units. The trading prohibitions and restrictions set forth in the Insider Trading Procedures do not apply to the withholding by the
Company of shares of stock upon vesting of restricted stock or upon settlement of restricted stock units to satisfy applicable tax withholding requirements if
(a) such withholding is required by the applicable plan or award agreement or (b) the election to exercise such tax withholding right was made by the director,
officer or employee in compliance with the Insider Trading Procedures. Retirement Plan. The trading prohibitions and restrictions set forth in the Insider
Trading Procedures do not apply to purchases of Securities in any 401 (k) Plan of the Company (the “ Retirement Plan ”) resulting from periodic
contributions by Insiders to the Retirement Plan pursuant to payroll deduction elections. Such prohibitions and restrictions do apply, however, to certain
elections Insiders may make under the Retirement Plan, including: (a) an election to increase or decrease the percentage of periodic contributions that will be
allocated to the Company stock fund; (b) an election to make an intra- plan transfer of an existing account balance into or out of the Company stock fund; (c)
an election to borrow money against or receive a Warrant-Certifteate-evideneing-distribution from such Insider’ s Retirement Plan account if the Warrantsheld
loan or distribution will result in a liquidation of some or all of such Insider’ s Company stock fund balance; and (d) an election to pre- pay a plan loan if the
pre- payment will result in an allocation of loan proceeds to the Company stock fund. PART IV. WAIVERS A waiver of any provision of this Insider Trading
Comphance Pohcy, or the Insnder Tradmg Procedures contamed herem, ina spec1ﬁc instance may be authorized in wrltmg by either llm. Comphance Officer
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delivered to the-all current Insnders and to all directors, officers, and employees and consultants following address-its adoption or thereafter at the start of their
employment or relationship with the Company. Each individual must acknowledge that he or she has received a copy and agrees to comply with the terms of
this Insider Trading Compliance Policy under the Company’ s electronic training record system, and, if applicable, the Insider Trading Procedures contained
herein. Directors and consultants that do not have access to the electronic training system will furnish a written acknowledgement of acceptance. A form of
Acknowledgement is attached as Exhibit B. All directors, officers, and employees and consultants will be required upon the Company’ s request to re-
acknowledge and agree to comply with the Insider Trading Compliance Policy (including any dments or modifications). For such purpose, an individual
will be deemed to have acknowledged and agreed to comply with the Insider Trading Compliance Policy, as amended from time to time, when copies of such
items have been delivered by regular or electronic mail (or other delivery option used by the Company) by the Compliance Officer. * * * Questions regarding
this Insider Trading Compliance Policy are encouraged and may be directed to the Compllance Ofﬁcer ADOPTED The—uﬂdefs—rgﬂed—August 20, 20215TOCK
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ba arrant-Req Netiee AmpliTech Group, Inc. , a Nevada
corporatlon (the “ Company ) Thetmdefs-rgﬂed—HeIder—oT my mtent to trade Gemmen—SteelePﬁrehase—Waﬁa-nts-(—Wa-ﬂ‘aﬁtsi)ﬁtm fornrsecurities of Warrants
the Company here - h S8 indicated below: REQUESTER
INFORMATION Insider’ s Name: INTENT TO PURCHASE Number of shares: Intended
trade date: Means of acquiring Shares: O Acquisition through employee benefit plan (please specify): O Purchase through a broker on the open market O
Other (please specify): INTENT TO SELL Number of shares: Intended trade date: Means of selling Shares: O Sale through employee benefit plan (please
specify): O Sale through a broker on the open market 0O Other (please specify): SECTION 16 RULE 144 (Not applicable if transaction requested involves a
purchase) O I am not subject to Section 16. O I am not an “ affiliate ” of the Company and the transaction requested above does not involve the sale of *
restricted securities ” (as such terms are defined under Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended). O To the best of my knowledge, I have not
(and am not deemed to have) engaged in an opposite way transaction within the previous 6 months that was not exempt from Section 16 (b) of the Exchange
Act. O To the best of my knowledge, the transaction requested above will meet all of the applicable conditions of Rule 144. O None of the above. O The
transaction requested is being made pursuant to an effective registration statement covering such transaction. 0 O None of the above. CERTIFICATION I
hereby certify that I am not ( | ) in possession of any material, nonpublic information concerning the Company, as defined in the Company’ s Insider Trading
Compliance Policy and (2) purchasing any securities of the Company on margin in contravention of the Company’ s Insider Trading Procedures . I
understand that, if I trade while possessing such information or in violation of such trading restrictions, I may be subject to severe civil and / or criminal
penalties, and may be subject to discipline by the Company including termination. Insider’ s Signature Date AUTHORIZED APPROVAL Signature of
Compliance Officer (or designee) Date * NOTE: Multiple lots must be listed on separate forms or broken out herein. EXHIBIT B ACKNOWLEDGMENT I
hereby acknowledge that I have read, that I understand, and that I agree to comply with, the Insider Trading Compliance Policy of AmpliTech Group, Inc., a




Nevada corporation (the “ Company ). I further acknowledge and agree that I am responsible for ensuring compliance with the Insider Trading Compliance
Policy and the Insider Trading Procedures included therein by all of my “ Affiliates ”. I also understand and agree that I will be subject to sanctions, including
termination of employment that may be imposed by the Company, in its sole discretion, for violation of the Insider Trading Compliance Policy, and that the
Company may give stop- transfer and other instructions to the Company’ s transfer agent against the transfer of any Securities in a transaction that the
Company considers to be in contravention of the Insnder Tradmg Compllance Pollcy Date' Slgnature' ame eilHelder—ef—Wﬁfmﬂts—m-feﬁn-ef—Wﬁm
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C ()NSE\T OF INDEPE\IDENT RE(JISTERED PUBLI( A( Ci ()U\ITI\I(I FIRM Vv e consent to the mcmpomllon by u.luunu. in RLgslHllOll Statements (I\o 333-
251332 and No. 333- 276902) on Form S- 8, and Registration Statements (No. 333- 255656, No. 333- 254969, No. 333- 251260 ané-, No. 333- 264420 and No. 333-
278657 ) on Form S- 3 of AmpliTech Group, Inc. of our report dated Apri--March 31 , 2624-2025 , with respect to our audits of the consolidated financial statements
of AmpliTech Group Inc. as of and for the years ended December 31, 2023, and 2022-2024 , which appears in this Form 10- K. ~s/+Sadler-Gibb-&-Asseeiates; EEC
EXHIBIT 31. 1 CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE ()FFILER PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 (a) OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 I, Fawad
Magbool, President and Chief Executive Officer of AmpliTech Group, Inc. (the “ Company ”), certify that: 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10- K of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 ; 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 4. The registrant’ s other certifying
officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and
internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: a) Designed such disclosure controls
and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; b)
Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles; ¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and d) Disclosed in this report
any change in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant” s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’ s fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting;
and 5. The registrant’ s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’ s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’ s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): a) All significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting. By Pate-Aprit2624By-: / s / Fawad Magbool Fawad Maqbool President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer) EXHIBIT 31. 2 CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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and Accounting Officer) EXHIBIT 32. 1 CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U. S. C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 The undersigned, Fawad Magbool, President and Chief Executive Officer, of AmpliTech Group, Inc. (the ““ Registrant ™) certifies,
under the standards set forth and solely for the purposes of 18 U. S. C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual
Report on Form 10- K of the Registrant for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 (the “ Report ”): (1) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13 (a) or 15
(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Registrant. Dated: ApritH-March 31 , 2624B5-2025By : / s / Fawad Magbool Fawad Magbool President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer) A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. EXHIBIT 32. 2 The undersigned, Louisa Sanfratello, Chief Financial Officer and
Secretary of AmpliTech Group, Inc. (the “ Registrant ™) certifies, under the standards set forth and solely for the purposes of 18 U. S. C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual Report on Form 10- K of the Registrant for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 (the “ Report ”):
(1) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) the information contained in the Report fairly
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations o‘r the chstrant /s/Loulsa Sanfratello Loulsa Sanfratello E—)ehtbi-t—9—7—l-
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